
Shooter Episode Guide
Episodes 001–031

Last episode aired Thursday September 13, 2018

c ©
w
w
w
.
u
s
a
n
e
t
w
o
r
k
.
c
o
m

www.usanetwork.com


c© 2018 www.tv.com c© 2018
www.usanetwork.com

The summaries and recaps of all the Shooter episodes were downloaded from http://www.tv.com and http://www.
usanetwork.com and processed through a perl program to transform them in a LATEX file, for pretty printing. So, do not
blame me for errors in the text !

This booklet was LATEXed on September 16, 2018 by footstep11 with create_eps_guide v0.61

www.tv.com
www.usanetwork.com
http://www.tv.com
http://www.usanetwork.com
http://www.usanetwork.com


Contents

Season 1 1
1 Point of Impact . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
2 Exfil . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
3 Musa Qala . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
4 Overwatch . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
5 Recon by Fire . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
6 Killing Zone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
7 Danger Close . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
8 Red on Red . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21
9 Ballistic Advantage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
10 Primer Contact . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25

Season 2 29
1 The Hunting Party . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31
2 Remember the Alamo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33
3 Don’t Mess with Texas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35
4 The Dark End of the Street . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37
5 The Man Called Noon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41
6 Across the Rio Grande . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43
7 Someplace Like Bolivia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45
8 That’ll Be the Day . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47

Season 3 51
1 Backroads . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53
2 Red Meat . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57
3 Sins of the Father . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59
4 The Importance of Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61
5 A Call to Arms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63
6 Lines Crossed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65
7 Swing Vote . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67
8 The Red Badge . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69
9 Alpha Dog . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71
10 Orientation Day . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73
11 Family Fire . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75
12 Patron Saint . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77
13 Red Light . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79

Actor Appearances 81



Shooter Episode Guide

II



Season One





Shooter Episode Guide

Point of Impact

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Tuesday November 15, 2016
Writer: John Hlavin
Director: Simon Cellan Jones
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: David Marciano (John Renlow), Rob Brown (Donny Fenn), Lexy Kolker
(Mary Swagger), Stephen Hunter (Henry), Ondrej Habinak (Dimitri
Voydian), David Jacox (Wolf Hunter #1), Robert Moloney (Wolf Hunter
#2), Jun Kim (Mikey), Kurt Max Runte (Ruffled Man), David Stuart
(President of the USA), Yaroslav Poverlo (President of Ukraine), Alexan-
der Bateman (FBI Task Force), Kevin Bielinski (Russian Bodyguard),
Tatjana Bluchel (Russian Bathhouse Girl), Tony Cane-Honeysett (Rus-
sian Gangster), Braxton Goe (Inmate), Boualem Hassaine (Kandak),
Tony Katsaras (Russian Gangster), Angelique Kenney (FBI Task Force),
Lance Lee (Inmate), Jack Leopardo (Russian Mobster), Daniel Man-
dehr (Officer Stein), Ricardo Ricky Martin (Homeland Security Agent),
Alexander Moonie (Pizza Man), Angelos Poulis (Police officer), Angel
Qinan (Embassy Receptionist)

Summary: Retired Marine sniper Bob Lee Swagger returns to the line of fire. In
the opener, Swagger is recruited by his former commander to prevent
an assassination of the U.S. president. Meanwhile, FBI agent Nadine
Memphis investigates potential assassins.

Bob Lee Swagger is the most skillful
marksman in the history of the Marine
Corps, but is now living a quiet life with
his wife and daughter in Washington
state. One day he gets a visit from a
former Corps buddy who appeals to his
patriotic duty when he asks Swagger to
help prevent an assassination attempt on
the President. But Swagger’s good deed
goes horribly wrong and puts him in the
crosshairs of some very powerful, very de-
termined people.

Bob Lee Swagger has a sharp nick-
name to go with his Corps history, but he is a family man, a doting father to six-year-old Mary
and husband to Julie. He knows the power of the weapons he uses and is responsible with them,
even lecturing fellow hunters who don’t respect the sport. His daughter’s bedtime stories are all
(presumably very G-rated) versions of his overseas missions.

Swagger is carrying around the guilt of losing his spotter, Donnie, on a mission in Kandahar.
Under the command of Isaac Johnson, they had gotten the green light to go after the infamous
Chechen sniper, T. Solotov. Even though there’d been no sign of Solotov for a week, Swagger
was on guard. Still, he ended up leading Donnie right into the sniper’s path. Swagger was hit
first in the hip when Solotov miscalculated the wind, but his second shot killed Donnie. Swagger
puts the people and country he cares about first and remembers his friend each year by sending
flowers to Donnie’s mother.
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One day when Swagger is home with his daughter, Johnson comes to ask for his help. Johnson
is now leading up the President’s Secret Service advance team and says they have a credible
threat. Ten days ago a CIA agent was killed by a sniper in Virginia from 1,400 yards away and a
note was found saying the President will be executed at an upcoming Seattle appearance. They
think it’s Solotov. Johnson, along with Agent Payne of Homeland Security, want Swagger’s help
figuring out how Solotov will take his shot.

Payne sends Swagger a replica of Solotov’s rifle and Swagger does recon on all the possible
hides for the shot, settling on three options. One is an apartment building almost three-quarters
of a mile away, but Swagger rules it out because a giant flag will be hanging in the sight line. He
settles on a small shed from across the water.

FBI Agent Nadine Memphis wants out of her field office in Seattle. She is driven and deter-
mined, and still paying the professional price for once shooting a hostage, which, as it turns out,
is not good for career advancement. She meets Johnson and Payne after they get in the way of her
operation with a Russian source. He had claimed to have intel on something big that is about to
go down in the Ukraine. After stealing her source, the FBI sends over a stack of low-level threats
against the president to be cleared — Swagger’s file is among them. Memphis thinks Swagger’s
inclusion is odd, given his decorated career, and mentions it to her boss, who blows her off. But
Memphis isn’t one to let something go.

Johnson cautions Payne about Swagger, telling him the R-rated Kandahar bedtime story:
Swagger and his spotter saw the Taliban approaching a girl’s school while out on a mission.
Even though they were alone and hugely outnumbered, they took on more than 200 Taliban for
over 46 hours, just moving and shooting; they didn’t sleep, didn’t eat, and had 51 kills. To this
day, the Taliban stays away from the school because they think it’s cursed.

The day of the president’s visit, with his recon complete, Swagger and his wife head to the
site of the president’s speech. But Payne radios that Solotov isn’t where Swagger expected. In the
next few moments, Swagger’s life changes forever. First, he realizes Solotov is going to blow the
rigging on the giant flag — the first option Swagger scouted and dismissed. Swagger races to the
first option hide — an apartment. He finds the sniper rifle set up for the shot, but the room is
empty. At that moment, a shot rings out at the president’s location.

Inside the apartment, Payne confronts Swagger and draws on him. Swagger jumps from three
stories up as Payne fires on him. He crashes onto the roof of a car but survives. Agent Memphis
finds him and draws on him. Our hero insists: ”My name is Bob Lee Swagger; I did not kill the
president.”
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Exfil

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Tuesday November 22, 2016
Writer: John Hlavin
Director: Simon Cellan Jones
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: David Marciano (John Renlow), Jason Gedrick (Officer Timmons),
David Andrews (Sam Vincent), Ravil Isyanov (Alexander Rosovich),
Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Yancey Arias (John Dominguez), David
Chisum (Jim Wallingford), Delaina Mitchell (Anna Wallingford), Donza-
leigh Abernathy (Mrs. Fenn), Sean Cameron Michael (Grigory Krukov),
Bayardo De Murguia (David Tiejo), Justin Welborn (Prison Guard
Raines), Tom Sizemore (Hugh Meachum), Jay Charan (Doctor), Carin
Chea (Press #1), Jessica Harbeck (Secret Service Driver), Brian Ibsen
(Agent Bosack), Brian Kimmet (FBI Tech), Brian Oerly (Pavlo), Alexan-
der Bateman (FBI Task Force), Angelique Kenney (FBI Task Force)

Summary: Bob Lee tries to protect his family while incarcerated; and Isaac aims
to silence him. In other events, Nadine contacts Bob Lee’s wife, Julie,
who’s dealing with the backlash against her family.

We start to learn more about the con-
spiracy against Bob Lee Swagger, which
traces all the way back to Russia. A CIA
Agent named Hugh Meachum appears to
be running things and the fact that Jack
Payne missed his chance to kill Swagger
is proving inconvenient for everyone. In
prison, ”protective custody” proves to be
anything but for Swagger.

Swagger is surprised to learn that
the U.S. president is fine – it was the
Ukranian president who was killed. Julie
Swagger cites this supposed miss as evi-

dence her husband couldn’t have taken the shot, noting his unfailing accuracy, but agents are
already confiscating all of Swagger’s research and camping out with Julie at her sister’s.

Swagger keeps his mouth shut once he’s in custody in the hospital. He asks for his attorney,
Sam Vincent, an old friend of his father’s. Knowing they’re being listened to, Swagger writes just
two words for Sam to look into: Isaac Johnson. Johnson and Swagger ran 53 missions together,
including one in which Swagger saved his commanding officer’s life, but Swagger knows that he’s
now a loose end for whoever set him up – as is his family.

Swagger is moved to protective custody in federal prison, where being caged just makes him
an easier target. Payne uses a dirty guard to rig a carbon monoxide leak, forcing Swagger to be
moved into general population, where the guards conveniently leave him alone with the wolves.
A group of inmates come after him, but are called off by a powerful Russian inmate named
Alexander Rosovich, who shows his appreciation for Swagger supposedly killing the Ukranian
president by offering him protection and the use of a satellite phone.

After a chewing-out by her boss, Special Agent John Renlow, for ”missing” an email Swagger
supposedly sent demanding the Medal of Honor, Agent Nadine Memphis starts to think things
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are hinky. She visits Julie to confirm her growing skepticism of Swagger’s guilt. Julie suggests if
an old friend visited Swagger, he would have left a way to get in touch. Memphis thinks there’s
a connection between the fact her source wanted to get her intel on a situation in the Ukraine
and the assassination of the Ukrainian president. Memphis shares some of her concern with
Johnson, who doesn’t see her as a threat – yet.

CIA Agent Hugh Meachum appears to be running the conspiracy on behalf of the Russians.
Swagger calls Johnson and offers to confess to protect his family, but that’s not good enough
for Meachum, who wants Swagger dead to get the Russians off his back. Meachum clearly has
reach, not just into prison, but into the evidence lock-up to snatch the business card Johnson
left at Swagger’s — a loose end, tied.

In prison, a crooked guard lets a giant convict into Swagger’s cell, offering to split the bounty
on Swagger with him. But Swagger takes out the inmate and then the guard, proving he’s not
just deadly at a distance. Swagger takes the guard’s uniform and thumb to get past biometric
security, and hitches a ride out in a prison laundry van. Swagger goes to his late spotter Donnie’s
mother’s house. She knows how her son felt about Swagger and is happy to help. She gives him
cash, a motorcycle, and Donnie’s field gear – and then a head start when Johnson tracks him
down via credit card payment for annual flower delivery in Donnie’s honor. Swagger finally calls
Julie, knowing the feds are listening. His plan? Swagger promises, ”I’m going to do what I do
best: I’m going to hunt.”
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Musa Qala

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Tuesday November 29, 2016
Writer: Adam Fierro
Director: Roxann Dawson
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: David Marciano (John Renlow), Jason Gedrick (Officer Timmons), Ed-
die George (Guest Star), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Stefanie von
Pfetten (Kasper), Sheila Shaw (Doris), Michael Rothhaar (Guest Star),
Karishma Ahluwalia (Computer Agent), Betsy Baker (Store Owner),
Alexander Bateman (FBI Task Force), Brian Ibsen (Agent Bozack),
Katie Johnson (Police Dispatcher), Angelique Kenney (FBI Task Force),
Malcolm Matthews (Russian Mobster), Eddie McGee (Vet), Aleh Neliu-
bin (Hitman), Rob Norton (FBI Agent #1), Chido Nwokocha (FBI Agent
#2), Dale Pavinski (Jules / Hitman #1)

Summary: Bob Lee reaches out to Nadine while evading his pursuers; and Isaac
juggles his double life while trying to find Bob Lee.

Bob Lee Swagger starts to make good on
his promise to hunt, putting Isaac John-
son firmly in his crosshairs (literally) and
taking a big risk trusting Agent Nadine
Memphis. As he works to uncover who
set him up, Swagger also takes steps to
protect himself and his family.

After a close call, being recognized at
a convenience store, Swagger calls Isaac
Johnson, watching him through his rifle
scope from nearby. Swagger warns him
that the only reason he’s still alive is to
ensure his family’s safety, and if they get

hurt, Johnson gets hurt. Swagger promises he’ll uncover the truth. To drive home his point, and
remind Johnson who he’s dealing with, Swagger shoots Johnson’s cell phone right out of his
hand.

Johnson works the situation from both angles, telling the FBI task force that Swagger is
paranoid and unstable. Then he gives his co-conspirators a frank assessment, warning them
that if Swagger lives long enough, he’ll try to take them all out. Swagger can hide in plain sight,
he’s patient, committed, and fearless. Johnson knows that Swagger’s only weakness is his family
and he’s prepared to use them as bait if necessary.

Julie shops for ingredients for lasagna night and gets a call from Swagger while she’s in the
store. Two agents trail her as someone spills coffee on her. She goes alone to the restroom to
clean up. Swagger is waiting there for her. After a brief happy reunion, he gets down to business,
warning her not to mention Isaac Johnson’s name to anyone. He tells her bluntly that if she
talks, they’ll kill her. He’s working on getting her and Mary out of the country. He asks Julie to
mention the story of Musa Qala, Afghanistan to their daughter if she doubts her daddy. Julie tells
Swagger that she trusts Agent Memphis, so he suggests Julie tell her to look into Kyle Timmons,
the police officer who supposedly shot him, and see what Memphis does with it.
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Swagger calls ”Kasper,” a woman Alexander Rosovich mentioned might be able to get his
family out of the country. She asks for $100,000, and that’s the hero rate.

Swagger goes to a VA hospital to see Ron Perkins, the director of rehabilitation and prosthetic
services. Ron initially brushes his friend off, angry about the negative public perception of vets
that Swagger is adding to, but he changes his mind, giving Swagger the item he asked for. Perkins
mentions that he changed the serial number, but we don’t know yet why that’s important. Yet
again, Swagger slips through a police barricade.

After Julie mentions Timmons to Memphis, she takes the name to her boss, Agent John
Renlow, who encourages her to continue trying to get Swagger to trust her. Is it possible Memphis
isn’t the ally she seems? She sidles up to Timmons in a bar and tries to get him talking, then
turns to interrogation, mentioning his less-than-stellar record and the fact he wasn’t supposed to
be working the day of the assassination. He warns her off, but she’s starting to believe Swagger.

Memphis comes home at the end of a long day to find Swagger in her living room. He found
Kyle Timmons’ body; Payne killed him but staged it to look like suicide. Swagger asks Memphis
for her help. He tells her the truth about Isaac Johnson and how he was set up. She wants to
believe him, but notes he has no evidence. Swagger points her in the direction of a journalist
named Kalina Ordenko, who was working on a story about dealings in Ukraine but hasn’t been
heard from since the assassination. When Memphis asks Johnson about her later, his vague
answers don’t satisfy her curiosity.

As Johnson is scrambling to fend off Swagger, Payne is not making his job any easier. He tells
Johnson their supposed boss, Meachum, blames Johnson for Swagger getting away. And there’s
a key piece of evidence missing. Payne leaves a flash drive in a dead drop at a church, then bails
when Johnson sends him after Swagger.

Swagger hides out at a friend’s cabin, hunting deer, and rigging a bomb. He draws Johnson
and the FBI to him by going out in public. Johnson threatens Julie with arrest to get the name of
Swagger’s friend with a cabin in the area. SWAT teams find the house empty, but once Johnson
and Memphis are inside, Swagger starts shooting at them. He misses, which is not like him.
Johnson waits for his moment and shoots back into the woods. There’s a giant explosion.

The team finds body parts everywhere and the remains of a suicide vest. There’s so much
gore, it’s hard to tell what they’re looking at, but we’ve been paying attention and remember
Swagger killed a deer earlier. Then they find a titanium hip like Swagger’s, and Perkins’ comment
about altering Swagger’s record to match also suddenly makes sense.

After seeing news reports of Swagger’s death, Julie tells her daughter that they have to have
faith in him. She asks Mary about the story of Musa Qala. Mary remembers that her dad saved
Isaac’s life. But, she says that wasn’t the best part of the story: daddy had to be a ghost. Julie
understands and is relieved.

In the cabin, Memphis finds Swagger’s evidence board before Johnson can get to it. Her phone
rings, it’s Swagger. He’s trusting her with his life and asks her to trust her gut and keep digging.
She remembers the last time she trusted her instincts, someone got killed. ”Then the good news
is I’m already dead,” Swagger says.
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Overwatch

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Tuesday December 6, 2016
Writer: T.J. Brady, Rasheed Newson
Director: Simon Cellan Jones
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Rob Brown (Donny Fenn), Eddie George (Guest Star), Yousuf Azami
(Mullah Abdul), Monier West (Captain Rahim), Lexy Kolker (Mary
Swagger), David Chisum (Jim Wallingford), Delaina Mitchell (Anna
Wallingford), Donzaleigh Abernathy (Mrs. Fenn), Michelle Krusiec (Lin
Johnson), Tom Sizemore (Hugh Meachum), Connor Skific (Marine at
Funeral), Alexander Bateman (FBI Task Force), Natalia Castellanos (TV
Personality #2), Brendan Connor (Marine #2), Essam Ferris (Peeker),
David Goldman (TV News Personality), Mustafa Haidari (Afghan Village
Gunman #1), Ash Kadian (Afghani Soldier), Angelique Kenney (FBI
Task Force), Roman Mitichyan (Taliban), Ardeshir Radpour (Afghan
Military), Shahaub Roudbari (Afghan Village Gunman), Ethan Stone
(Marine)

Summary: In a flashback to their time serving in Afghanistan, Bob Lee and Isaac
clash with opposing ideologies. Nadine investigates the Ukrainian con-
nection, putting herself on the conspirators’ radar.

In flashbacks to Afghanistan, Isaac John-
son is revealed as a straight arrow who
begins to lose his way with persuasion
from a familiar face. We see what really
happened in Musa Qala and that the de-
cisions made by Johnson and Bob Lee
Swagger spoke to the character of each
man and even laid the groundwork for the
conspiracy to come. Meanwhile, Agent
Nadine Memphis continues to try to un-
ravel the mystery and ends up putting a
target on her back.

While providing cover on a mission in
Afghanistan during a flashback, Swag-
ger sees something that doesn’t look right

and ignores Johnson’s order to abort. Swagger’s defiance keeps him in place to protect 12
Marines on the ground but, as Johnson points out to him later, the extremely difficult shot
Swagger makes also confirms to the enemy that the Nailer is in town. The bounty on Swagger
stands at $600,000 and Johnson cautions him to be more careful.

Still in the past, the unit gets word that Mullah Abdul is in Musa Qala. He’s wanted for many
atrocities, including beheading several UN doctors. Because he’s a high-value target, they’re
getting special help – Agent Hugh Meachum from the CIA. Johnson gives Swagger and his spotter
Donnie Fenn orders to infil at night and provide cover for him when he goes in the next day. Then
Meachum has a private talk with Johnson to convince him to go against orders and help the CIA
capture Abdul while reporting he’s been killed. Meachum argues that the intel they could get
from Abdul could save American lives.
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In the present, Ron Perkins and Donnie’s mother Susan Fenn come to Swagger’s funeral,
which is attended by fewer than a dozen people, but not his daughter Mary. Watching from across
the street, Johnson shares his doubts about Swagger’s death with Meachum. But Meachum only
cares that the Russians think he’s dead, as Meachum promised. To further cover their tracks,
Meachum orders Johnson to kill Mrs. Fenn, calling her a broken window because she helped
Swagger and believes him. Johnson hates the idea but knows if he doesn’t, someone else will.
When he visits her, she isn’t surprised by the purpose of his visit, and declines his offer to let
her run. Johnson chokes her to death and buries her in the woods, not feeling particularly good
about his choices.

After Swagger’s funeral, Julie’s sister Anne is alarmed when Mary says her daddy is still alive.
Julie tells her sister the truth, but asks her not to tell her judgmental husband Jim.

In an Afghanistan flashback, Johnson goes along with Meachum and changes Swagger’s or-
ders so that he won’t be in position to kill Mullah Abdul. Swagger recognizes how out of character
the last-minute change is and figures out something is up. Johnson urges Swagger to see the
big picture. Swagger goes along to the spot as Johnson orders, but reminds Johnson he has no
shot. Johnson orders him: ”Do your job.” Johnson and his translator Captain Rahim arrive in
Musa Qala to try to convince the villagers to turn over Abdul, but things quickly go off the rails.
Rahim wants the bounty on Swagger and grabs a bazooka and blows up the shed where Johnson
ordered Swagger and Fenn to set up. Johnson is taken hostage.

After disposing of Mrs. Fenn, Johnson seems worn down by his role and tells Meachum he’ll
be unreachable for a few days. He goes home to his wife, and turns out to be fluent in Mandarin.

Memphis is still trying to figure out what happened to her Russian informant who claimed
to have intel on something in the Ukraine. Jack Payne visits her, introducing himself as Matt
Simms with Homeland Security. He claims that after his team scooped up Dimitri Voydian, he
was returned to Russia and killed by their intelligence service. Memphis doesn’t buy it and
wonders if there’s a connection to Swagger. Pointing to the articles Swagger left in the cabin, she
argues the Russians had the most to gain from the assassination. When Memphis asks about
the connection to Graznyole in the Ukraine, Payne doesn’t lie fast enough and she sniffs him out
as CIA. He promises to try to bump up her security clearance so he can discuss it with her, but
urges her to keep her questions to herself. We know that Memphis has just put herself in a very
dangerous spot.

Flashing back to Musa Qala, Mullah Abdul reveals himself and is about to kill Johnson when
Swagger takes him out from a distance. He had moved from the position where Johnson ordered
him. Swagger quickly takes out the enemy forces around Johnson, much to the frustration of
Meachum, watching via video back at the base. Johnson orders Swagger to leave the translator
Rahim alive for interrogation, but Swagger disobeys him and finishes him, too.

Back at the base, Meachum tells Johnson he failed the test of his leadership by not controlling
Swagger’s hero impulses. He promises Johnson he won’t get a chance to command troops in the
field again and says he needs to learn about lying to his men to protect the greater good. Later,
Johnson tells Swagger his report will say that Johnson allowed himself to be ambushed to draw
out Mullah Abdul for Swagger to kill, and Captain Rahim, the traitorous translator, will receive
a commendation posthumously and die a hero. Johnson insists he’s protecting the greater good.

Payne is already waiting for Memphis with coffee when she arrives at a café, thinking she’s
gotten security clearance to hear the truth about her informant. Payne tells her that Voydian was
running protection for a mining company in Graziowa but the water got poisoned and hundreds
of villagers were killed. Memphis thinks it could be what the missing reporter Karlina Ordenko
was writing about. Payne says the Russians wanted to prosecute Voydian, so the CIA handed
him over. But Memphis doesn’t just accept the story. She picks at it, noting that the Russians
wouldn’t care about the mine because it was in the Ukraine. Payne’s lie fails. ”You’ve gone to an
awful lot of trouble to try to throw me off track, I must be right about a thing or two,” Memphis
says. Payne argues that no one will believe her. Memphis takes her coffee and leaves. She makes
it to her car before the drugs Payne put in it kick in. She comes to, tied up on her couch with
Payne preparing to inject her with alcohol and stage her suicide.

Before Payne can act, Swagger comes to Memphis’ rescue. He and Payne fight viciously all
over her apartment, with Swagger ending up with a pencil through his shoulder and Payne
taking a few hits. Payne eventually gets the advantage and is choking Swagger when Memphis
frees herself and gets a gun. She seems to hesitate shooting and Payne runs.
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After the attack, Swagger asks Memphis to go back to work and pretend like nothing happened
and keep digging. They agree to work together. ”You’re the most famous dead assassin in history
and I’m a semi-disgraced FBI agent, we’re not exactly Butch and Sundance,” she says.

”Definitely not Butch and Sundance – they both died in the end,” Swagger says.
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Recon by Fire

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Tuesday December 13, 2016
Writer: Dara Resnik
Director: Adam Davidson
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: David Marciano (Howard Utey), Randy Orton (Guest Star), Alex Saxon
(Joey Richards), Kamar de los Reyes (Guest Star), Teddy Lane Jr.
(Guest Star), René Ashton (Female Reporter), Tom Sizemore (Hugh
Meachum), Daniel D. Houy (Militiaman), Angelique Kenney (FBI Task
Force), Brandon Van Vliet (Militia)

Summary: Bob Lee finds the bullet from the assassination, leading him to a radi-
cal militia group and a reckoning with Isaac while Nadine is locked in
a deadly game of cat and mouse with Payne.

Julie Swagger manages to sneak off to
meet Swagger at yet another remote
cabin, for some much-needed time to re-
connect. She had set up an email address
so they can communicate and appears
prepared to be separated from her hus-
band for the long haul while he works to
prove his innocence.

Swagger goes back to the Science Cen-
ter where the assassination took place to
calculate where the real bullet could have
ended up. The feds have the one that
was planted, but he’s figuring that, in the

chaos after the shooting, nobody had time to collect the real thing. Comparing trajectories and
photos from the day, Swagger realizes the bullet hit a police car. He texts Memphis for help
finding the car.

Memphis comes in to work the day after her attack by Jack Payne and finds roses on her
desk – from Payne. She immediately dumps them in the trash. She also pulls all her files on her
informant, Dimitri Voydian.

Swagger goes to the police garage. He scours the car from the scene for the bullet and finds
a dent in a wheel well. He’s trying to get the bullet out from behind the tire when the manager
notices him. Swagger talks and walks in circles staying a step ahead just long enough to remove
the bullet and run. He meets up with Memphis. He recognizes the bullet as master armor work,
and illegal. Memphis calls a guy with ATF, David Hall, who has a crush on her. Hall says the ATF
thinks similar bullets are being made by a 2nd Amendment group called Tree of Liberty outside
of Spokane.

After telling Isaac Johnson that Meachum has ordered more ”wet work,” Payne consults Mem-
phis’ files and heads to a Russian restaurant. When Memphis stops by later with a partner to
check up on all of Voydian’s connections, she finds a blood bath inside and a body with a single
red rose on it – just like the one Payne sent her.

Swagger rides out to the Tree of Liberty compound, where he pretends to sympathize the
militia’s cause. They are only too happy to listen to his talk of the conspiracy against him, until
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he pulls out their red bullet. But it turns out it isn’t theirs. A man in Idaho makes their bullet
materials for them, but they won’t say more. Swagger notices bags of fertilizer being loaded into
a van.

Johnson follows Swagger’s trail from the police garage to the Tree of Liberty, where he heads
into the woods with his rifle and camouflage. Inside, Swagger gives a 17-year-old named Joey
a few tips on long-range shooting and swipes a cell phone. When he sees Joey getting picked
on, Swagger stops to encourage him to find his own path. Then Swagger slips away to poke
around and finds the van is rigged with ammonium nitrate, Oklahoma City-style. The group has
dangerous plans. Swagger calls David Hall at ATF and pretends to be a disillusioned follower.
Joey finds him and holds a gun on him, but they’re called by the leader. They caught Johnson
in the woods and have him strung up. Swagger prevents them from killing Johnson on the spot,
saying they should use him for target practice.

Payne gets Memphis alone in the FBI garage and taunts her from the shadows, lobbing various
threats at her, including that he’ll hurt Julie and Mary Swagger. Memphis visits Julie to warn
her that Payne is getting bolder. Memphis wants them to hide, but instead Julie marches outside
her front door to the waiting news vans and holds up Payne’s picture, saying the FBI believes he
might be the real shooter. She urges people to call Memphis with tips and Memphis is caught
totally flat-footed and can only say ”no comment.”

Acting on Swagger’s tip, the ATF arrives near the compound and launches a drone. Back in
the compound, Swagger walks Johnson out to a tree a mile away and quietly explains he can’t let
the militia go through with their bombing plans; he’s stalling. But he isn’t about to let Johnson
go, given that Johnson came to kill him. Swagger misses his first shot and lets a militia man
take the second, which comes up short. When Swagger lines up to take another one, instead
he shoots the ATF drone out of the sky. Johnson uses a rock to cut his ropes and escape. Joey
jumps in the van with the bomb and starts to drive off, but Swagger shoots out the tires and
stops him. He lets Joey go, laying down cover fire as the ATF storms the compound. By way of
thanks, Joey tells Swagger the name of the man in Idaho who made the bullet before he runs.
Swagger recognizes it as Rathford O’Brien, but we have to wait to see why it’s familiar.

At FBI headquarters, Renlow calls Memphis on the carpet for Julie’s news stunt, making clear
that Memphis is alone in her belief in the conspiracy. Memphis goes to collect herself at her desk,
but is shocked when Payne waltzes right up to her. He’s quickly put in cuffs.
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Killing Zone

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Tuesday December 20, 2016
Writer: Matt Bosack
Director: Simon Cellan Jones
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: William Fichtner (Sgt. Major Rathford O’Brien), Mickey Cassidy (PMC
Heavy Rifle), Tim Connolly (PMC Hulking), Tim DeZarn (Clerk), Leif
Gantvoort (Cal Nix), Chad Guerrero (Cautious PMC), Robert Javinett
(Dead Russian), Angelique Kenney (FBI Task Force), Lexy Kolker (Mary
Swagger), Diandra Lyle (Agent Davis), Afsheen Olyaie (FBI Agent),
Chad Todhunter (Paparazzo)

Summary: Bob Lee tracks down his former instructor, who he hopes will help him
find the shooter; Nadine interrogates Payne; Isaac realizes that he’s in
over his head; and a reporter makes Julie an offer.

Swagger stops running and spends a
quiet afternoon in the country with his
wife Julie and daughter Mary. As wonder-
ful as it is for Swagger to see Mary for the
first time since the assassination, when
Julie tells him Donnie Fenn’s mom is
missing, Swagger realizes he can’t chance
meeting up with them again. Julie brings
him a stack of guns and ammo maga-
zines. Swagger is hoping the bullet-maker
might be selling his wares in them.

Following Payne’s dramatic appear-
ance at FBI headquarters, Memphis sits

down with him in interrogation. She lays out all of the collateral damage from the conspiracy, in-
cluding Dimitri Voydian, Voydian’s contacts at the restaurant, supposed hero cop Kyle Timmons
and Susan Fenn. She shows him the IV bag he was going to use to stage her suicide and warns
him they’re closing in. She toys with him, getting in his face and under his skin, until he blurts
out: ”Annex B.”

She keeps on him, but getting through to him is a challenge (given that he’s basically a
sociopath). But ultimately, he gives her Hugh Meachum’s name.

Swagger goes to Idaho to track down Sgt. Major Rathford O’Brien. His property is booby-
trapped and remote. Swagger is conducting recon when O’Brien sneaks up on him. O’Brien is
gruff and not happy for the company. He denies the sniper’s bullet is his, saying his are designed
to splinter on impact so they’re untraceable. Eventually, O’Brien admits he remembers teaching
Swagger how to shoot in the Corps and starts to help him.

Johnson and Meachum aren’t happy to hear Payne is in custody and talking. Johnson is
even less pleased that he doesn’t know what Annex B is – and Meachum won’t tell him. Johnson
visits an old army friend, Justin Singer, to get access to top-level clearance info. He finds that
Annex B is a program using private military contractors to handle off-book black ops, which is
unconstitutional. He sees the name Anhur Dynamics linked to Meachum – the same men he saw
with Meachum earlier. As he and Singer are looking at the file online, their clearance is revoked.
Someone knows they were looking at it, which can’t be good.
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O’Brien demonstrates how his heavy bullet flies differently than other bullets by setting Swag-
ger up to miss – which is no small feat. Then he explains that there are only four guns in the world
strong enough to fire his bullet: Black Kings. O’Brien has the King of Spades. O’Brien suggests
Swagger track the gun, not the bullet. But that’s all he can offer. O’Brien doesn’t know anyone
besides himself or Swagger who is skilled enough to make the shot that killed the Ukrainian
president.

Julie goes to an ATM and is surprised to find her bank account is empty. A man sticks a
camera in her face and says ugly things about Swagger. Another man intervenes and tells Julie
he’s writing a book about Swagger and claims he believes he’s innocent. He gives Julie his card
in the hopes she’ll talk to him.

After his demonstration, O’Brien tells Swagger about losing sight of why he was killing in war
and starting to like it too much. It cost him his wife and son. As they’re talking, O’Brien gets a
CB call from his friend at a diner down the road who sees black SUVs heading in their direction.
O’Brien and Swagger re-rig the booby traps and get ready to take on the private contractors
heading their way.

Memphis discusses her interrogation of Payne with her boss, Agent John Renlow. They had
looked up Meachum and found him listed under Department of Defense, which they figure means
he’s CIA. They’re talking about him when Meachum himself strolls into Renlow’s office. Meachum
calls Payne ”deranged” and says they found him unfit for duty. Memphis doesn’t buy it for a
minute and mentions Annex B and the assassination. Meachum dismisses her as ”the girl stupid
enough to get caught in a press conference,” but Renlow defends her.

The mercenaries make their way onto O’Brien’s property, but aren’t smart enough to avoid
his many booby traps. O’Brien and Swagger pick off the ones that make it through, firing from
far away and changing positions when they can. As O’Brien is running to his next shot, he takes
a hit in the leg, and falls. He puts on a tourniquet but is exposed and out in the open. Swagger
provides cover for O’Brien until someone lobs a grenade in his direction and he has to bail.

The grenade blast temporarily knocks Swagger out and we pick up from the opening scene of
the episode. Swagger wakes up with two mercs charging him, but he takes them both out. Then
he picks off another merc closing in on O’Brien and runs to help his former teacher. Swagger
helps O’Brien to his feet. ”You couldn’t have gotten them before I got shot?” O’Brien asks. Later
at his cabin, O’Brien is back on his feet with the ”bug bite” bandaged up. Swagger tries to help,
but O’Brien brushes him off. He insists Swagger take his Black King and gives him the remaining
bullets, urging him to go find the real shooter. Then retire.

At FBI headquarters, Memphis is angry when she sees army MPs escorting Payne away, on
orders from the Secretary of the Army. Renlow hits the phones but all they can find out is that it
was official military orders, someone other than Meachum. Renlow grudgingly admits he believes
Memphis is right about the conspiracy.

Johnson and Meachum meet up, neither of them knows where Payne has been taken. But
they know Swagger took out ten mercenaries sent after him. Johnson feels he’s gotten dragged
into something other than what he signed up for. He thought he was helping prevent a war, but
now he’s wondering if they’re just covering up one Meachum already started.
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Danger Close

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Tuesday December 27, 2016
Writer: Tim Talbott
Director: Christoph Schrewe
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: David Marciano (Howard Utey), Desmond Harrington (Guest Star),
Jose Pablo Cantillo (Justin Singer), David Chisum (Jim Wallingford),
Delaina Mitchell (Anna Wallingford), Izabella Miko (Karlina Ordenko),
Stefanie von Pfetten (Kasper), Catherine Haena Kim (Claire Hopkins),
Michelle Krusiec (Lin Johnson), Eric Allan Kramer (Guest Star), James
Harvey Ward (John Quince), Kurt Yaeger (S.C. Jones), Tom Sizemore
(Hugh Meachum), Allan Graf (Trooper McQuarrie), Angelique Kenney
(FBI Task Force), Afsheen Olyaie (FBI Agent)

Summary: Bob Lee travels across the country in order to find the shooter; Julie
deals with a family betrayal; Nadine contacts a Ukrainian reporter who
can explain the conspiracy; and Isaac questions his allegiance.

After being taken from the FBI by army
guards, Jack Payne is not rotting in a mil-
itary prison. Instead, he is taken to a pri-
vate mansion. A mysterious man named
Lon Scott tells Payne his cover is blown
and it’s time he retire. Instead, Payne de-
mands $10 million or he’ll release the mi-
crodrive he took from Dimitri Voydian’s
body, which includes video of graves and
the classified Annex B file. But Scott calls
Payne’s bluff and cuts him loose, daring
him to go to the feds. Payne realizes he’s
lucky to be alive and slinks off.

Hugh Meachum tells Isaac John-
son that because he brought his friend

Colonel Justin Singer into things, Johnson has to be the one to deal with him. ”You dug his
grave when you asked him to help you, now you’ve got to fill it,” Meachum says. Johnson is
defiant and protective of his childhood friend, but Meachum insists. Later, Johnson goes to see
Singer, who knows enough to be concerned. But Johnson urges Singer to trust him and says he
doesn’t have anything to fear with him. We think Donnie Fenn’s mother would disagree.

Julie’s brother-in-law Jim sees an open email from Swagger on her tablet. Later, Jim asks her
point-blank if Bob Lee is still alive and tells her the sooner they get everything behind them, the
better. He continues hounding her about it and we understand why Julie didn’t want her sister
to tell him the truth.

Swagger searches online for Black Kings and finds an ad for a gun show. At the show, he
chats up a seller named Paul Helling, using his good ol’ boy charm to get Helling to show him
his Black King. Each one is marked with a playing card; Helling has the King of Clubs. Swagger
asks about anyone skilled enough to shoot it and Helling shows him a recent YouTube video of
the man Jack Payne just met with, Lon Scott, making six shots from 1,500 yards. As Swagger
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is talking, one of the other gun sellers recognizes him and prepares to be a cowboy. As Swagger
is making his way out, the man stops him with a loaded weapon. Swagger effortlessly kicks the
gun and the man shoots himself in the foot. Swagger leaves calmly in the ensuing chaos.

Nadine Memphis pays Kasper the Russian crime boss a visit asking questions about Karlina
Ordenko and showing off her Russian. She wants Kasper to find the missing reporter and set
up a meet. When Kasper doesn’t feel like cooperating, Memphis calls in SWAT. They can take
their pick on what to charge Kasper with, she owns three beauty salons for money laundering,
an illegal casino, two brothels and the entire Russian drug trade in the Pacific Northwest.

Swagger calls Memphis and tells her the shooter is Lon Scott. She recognizes him as the CEO
of Anhur Dynamics – the company the mercenaries who came after Swagger work for. He’s on
his way to Anhur headquarters in Virginia. Swagger mentions the ”little jam” at the gun show in
Bozeman and asks if she can help clean it up. She quickly learns what Swagger was referring to
when Agent Renlow calls her into his office about the shooting. He tells her to warn Swagger to
be more careful. She starts looking into Lon Scott, but can’t find a home address listed.

Swagger is pulled over on a remote country road by a motorcycle officer for a broken tail light
cover on the truck he stole. He tells the cop he left his wallet back in the motel. He’s playing
everything cool until the country cop says he’s going to call it in. Swagger opens his door quickly
into the cop to knock him over, grabs his radio, then backs up over the motorcycle so he can’t be
followed. The cop is unhurt.

Swagger steals a new car from a church parking lot, pausing to stuff cash in the donation box
before he speeds off. He spray paints the car in the woods and removes all the identifying marks.

Kasper comes through with Karlina Ordenko, who is in hiding in Russia. She contacts Mem-
phis via Skype. Ordenko tells Memphis the information that Voydian had for her was much
worse than just a poisoned town. ”They” wiped out entire villages and she saw burning bodies
and babies crying for their mothers. ”What they did was inhumane. No government can stand in
their way,” Ordenko says. She explains that the missing microdrive had classified information
including files on US involvement and Annex B. The internet connection starts to go out and
Memphis catches only snippets, including the word ”CIA.” Then Ordenko screams and Memphis
can only watch helplessly as masked men burst into the room and beat Ordenko to death. One
of them looks into the webcam and says in Russian: ”See you soon, Agent Memphis.”

Johnson goes to Montana on Swagger’s trail. After talking to Helling about the Black King,
Johnson calls Meachum and tells him that Swagger has tracked the shooter. Meachum confirms
it’s Lon Scott. ”The CIA hired a private contractor to assassinate a foreign national on American
soil,” Johnson says. ”This thing started out as bad, now it’s gotten worse.”

Meachum visits Scott, who cavalierly admits he purposefully exposed himself in the YouTube
video, to lure Swagger to him. ”The trick is to make him think he’s in control, now he does. So
the video worked,” Scott says. Then he tells Meachum about Jack Payne’s extortion attempt, and
suggests Meachum pay him the $10 million for the Annex B files. We still don’t know much about
Scott’s motivation, but we do learn one interesting attribute: he’s missing a leg.

Swagger arrives at Anhur Dynamics corporate headquarters in Virginia, and poses as a deliv-
ery driver with something he insists is for Lon Scott personally. Johnson has tracked Swagger
there and watches from outside, then coolly intercepts Swagger on his way out. Swagger notices
that Johnson is alone and calmly walks with him to the parking lot, where the two men pull guns
on each other, careful not to make a scene. Johnson says he doesn’t want anyone else to get hurt,
but Swagger is disgusted that Johnson killed Donnie’s mom and thinks he’s now only trying to
save himself. Johnson warns him the mercenaries in Idaho were just a fraction of the firepower
at Scott’s disposal. But Swagger isn’t convinced of his motives. ”Just because you realized you’re
expendable, doesn’t make us partners,” Swagger tells him.

”It doesn’t mean we don’t need to be,” Johnson says, then he holsters his gun and walks
away.

Memphis is surprised at work when Julie Swagger’s brother-in-law Jim drops by. After he
leaves, Memphis calls Julie to warn her he sold Swagger out, promising his info won’t go any-
where at the FBI. When Julie hangs up she storms into the kitchen and confronts Jim, holding a
knife to his throat like she knows how to use it. She warns him that if he ever puts her daughter
at risk again, she’ll bury him in his own backyard. She suggests he leave on a ”business trip”
and not to come back until things are over. Julie assures him that if his wife Anne knew what he
did, she’d help Julie dig the hole.
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Johnson calls his friend Justin Singer who, we’re are relieved to see, is not dead. Instead,
Johnson got him a one-year assignment in Afghanistan. It isn’t exactly a gift, but it’s better than
death. Then Johnson calls his wife and gives her a coded message. She drops everything, grabs
a packed go bag, and walks out of her house with the teapot on.

Memphis learns from Kasper that someone named Grigory Krukov is behind things, which
scares Kasper enough to leave town. He’s a high-ranking member of the FSB. His diplomatic
cover is as a senior member of the Russian Ministry of Trade, which is connected to Anhur
Dynamics, as is Payne, according to his bank statements. Swagger calls Memphis and asks her
to join him in Virginia. Memphis asks Renlow for a favor – she needs him to suspend her, and
trust her.

The receptionist at Anhur hands off Swagger’s package to a driver who takes it to Scott’s
mansion, Swagger follows the car there. From a lookout outside Scott’s mansion, Swagger calls
Anhur Dynamics and asks for Scott, giving identifying himself as Bob Lee Swagger. Swagger
watches inside the house through a scope as Scott looks inside the package: the red bullet Scott
used to kill the Ukrainian president. Scott answers Swagger’s phone call. ”When you set bait,
it’s important to clear your own smell,” Swagger tells him, ”otherwise even a starving animal will
know it’s a trap.”

Just who’s hunting who now?

19



Shooter Episode Guide

20



Shooter Episode Guide

Red on Red

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Tuesday January 3, 2017
Writer: Matthew Newman
Director: Kevin Bray
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: David Marciano (Howard Utey), Desmond Harrington (Lon Scott),
Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Delaina Mitchell (Anne Murphy), Sean
Cameron Michael (Grigory Krukov), José Zúñiga (Author in Parking
Lot), Tom Sizemore (Hugh Meachum), Celestino Cornielle (Tito), Anto-
nio Leon (Carlos Abramson), Matt Shallenberger (John Wheeler), Ce-
leste Cook (Paparzzi), Dan Gruenberg (Gun Vendor), Angelique Kenney
(FBI Task Force), E.R. Ruiz (Vet)

Summary: Bob Lee and Nadine plot to secure evidence that could expose the
conspiracy; Isaac searches for an exit strategy; Payne tries to flee; and
Julie and Mary are in danger.

Swagger sets up surveillance outside Lon
Scott’s house to learn his security sched-
ule. Agent Nadine Memphis meets him
there, following GPS coordinates. She
tells Swagger about the thumb drive Jack
Payne has that could exonerate Swagger
and suggests he doesn’t need to kill ev-
eryone, as he’s apparently planning. He
agrees to try it her way, but if it fails, he
says, they’re back to Plan A.

Agent John Renlow tells Memphis that
an Anhur Dynamics private jet flew to
Virginia from near Seattle shortly after
Payne was taken away. Also, diplomatic
clearance was recently issued for flight

out of Russia to an Anhur private airfield 30 minutes away from Scott’s house. Memphis and
Swagger follow Scott to the airfield. A private jet lands and Hugh Meachum gets out and shakes
hands with Grigory Krukov, the FSB officer. Swagger gets close enough to eavesdrop and hears
them discussing what to do about Payne, who is still demanding $10 million in diamonds for the
files. Scott tells Krukov to pay Payne what he’s asking.

Everyone starts scheming. Swagger plans to turn the conspirators against each other like
he did in Afghanistan, red-on-red. Isaac Johnson finds Meachum at a restaurant and asks for
money to disappear. Meachum agrees, if Johnson finds Payne and the Annex B thumb drive.
Later, Johnson tracks down Payne to his old Leavenworth cellmate, and holds a gun on him,
demanding the thumb drive. But Johnson’s threats are empty; Payne’s no good to him dead.

At Krukov’s hotel, Memphis and Swagger bust into his room and take out three guards –
one gets a fork in the chest from the room service tray – but miss one, who holds a gun on
Memphis. Swagger puts his gun down and offers to clean up Krukov’s entire operation by killing
Payne, Meachum and Lon Scott. Memphis promises she’s suspended and isn’t wearing a wire,
they empty their pockets. Krukov tells Memphis to call her boss and ask for his file. If she gets it,
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Krukov’ll know they’re lying to him. When she calls, Renlow can tell something is off and rejects
her request, reminding her she’s suspended. Krukov is satisfied. Swagger asks for Payne’s $10
million. Krukov agrees, in exchange for his co-conspirators’ heads and the file. Swagger tells him
to set up a meet at the airport, where he can get clear shots. He reminds Krukov that if he doesn’t
leave the money, Krukov is dead, too.

Swagger puts Memphis through target practice because his plan requires her to make a shot
from 600 yards. Thanks to a good teacher, she’s ready to go when they set up outside Scott’s
house at night. Swagger rigs the guardhouse’s fuses to dim, leading to a chain reaction that gives
him a window to strike. Memphis lines up to take her shot at a propane tank, like she practiced,
and nails it. It goes up in a giant fireball. She watches through her scope as the lights flicker
in the house and the guards scramble. Inside, Swagger sneaks up on Scott in the dark. Then
he puts his gun away and plays Scott a recording of Krukov agreeing to pay Swagger for killing
Scott. (Memphis wasn’t wearing a wire, the recorder was in a key chain.) Scott is unimpressed
and egotistical, bragging to Swagger that he’s the better shooter. Swagger explains the difference
between shooting in a warzone. ”I’m the sniper; you’re just a marksman. You shoot pumpkins.
Come to the meet and watch a real sniper work. You’ll see the difference,” Swagger says.

After getting a call from her husband saying it’s almost over, Julie packs up with Mary and
leaves to meet Swagger at the remote ranger station. For her own safety, she doesn’t tell her sister
Anne where she’s going. The reporter Simon Porter snoops around and sees a ladder over the
wall in back. He calls Lon Scott to report that Julie is gone. At Scott’s direction, Porter returns
later with a man claiming to be an attorney with an offer for a book deal for Julie. Anne lets them
in and they clone her phone.

Scott tells Meachum about Swagger’s visit and his plan to shoot the Russians at the meet. He
knows it might be a set up, but Scott is too eager for the chance to take Swagger out himself.
Meachum is worried that killing the Russians means their deal would fall apart, but Scott figures
they can just make a new deal. Meanwhile, Krukov meets secretly with Johnson, and asks him
to kill Swagger after Swagger kills the others. Johnson agrees in exchange for the diamonds.

At the airfield, everyone shows up expecting Swagger to shoot – but they all think he has
different targets. Memphis sets up from a distance to provide cover. Swagger reminds her to
keep Payne alive until they get the thumb drive. Swagger sets up with the Black King as Krukov,
Meachum, Scott and Payne meet. Someone gives Payne his bag of diamonds. Then Swagger
notices Johnson set up on a long gun from in the back seat of a car. Swagger has to move
locations. Memphis starts shooting. Scott pulls out his Black King but can’t find Swagger, so
he hops in his car. Payne drives off, followed by Scott and Meachum in another car. Krukov is
left standing on the tarmac, wondering what happened. Johnson demands the tracker on the
diamonds and leaves. All of the major players are unscathed, but some of Scott’s men are down.

Payne goes back to his cellmate and picks up the thumb drive he was holding for him. But
Swagger climbs out from Payne’s trunk and accosts him. He stomps Payne a few times, crushes
the tracker, and takes the diamonds and thumb drive. Meachum and Johnson show up a short
time later and are not pleased with Payne, but what else is new?

Swagger meets up with Memphis later. She realizes he had planned to kill everyone but
stopped when he saw Johnson. She’s angry that Swagger lied to her about his intensions and
put her in the position of having to kill people at the airfield.

At the ranger cabin, Julie hears a noise and tells Mary to hide under the bed. Julie grabs a
gun and goes to investigate. Mary hears shots and sees strange men come in. We hear screams.
Swagger calls and is concerned when he can’t reach his family. He finally has what he needs to
clear his name, but has he lost the upper hand?
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Ballistic Advantage

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Tuesday January 10, 2017
Writer: T.J. Brady, Rasheed Newson
Director: Christoph Schrewe
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Desmond Harrington (Lon Scott), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Sean
Cameron Michael (Grigory Krukov), Laura Howard (Young Female As-
sistant), Doug Milliron (Anhur Guard), Lawrence Stachowiak (Krukov
Body Man)

Summary: Bob Lee negotiates an exchange in order to save his family; Nadine
juggles her allegiances to Bob Lee and the FBI; and Isaac strikes a
deal for his freedom.

Swagger calls Isaac Johnson and de-
mands a meeting. Johnson is with Jack
Payne and Lon Scott – who are appar-
ently over the betrayal and extortion that
came between them. A van carrying Julie
and Mary pulls up. Johnson goes to meet
Swagger and Memphis, who keeps a gun
on Johnson just in case. Scott wants the
Annex B files in exchange for Swagger’s
family. Johnson says he wants to atone
and agrees to help Swagger.

Back at Scott’s mansion, he and
Krukov share a polite evil chuckle over

the fact that they both made deals with Swagger to let him kill the other. Neither is mourn-
ing Meachum after Krukov dispensed with him. With Payne guarding the Swagger ladies, they
turn their attention to Johnson, who returns from negotiating with Bob Lee Swagger. Swagger
sets up on the long gun outside Scott’s mansion and watches the windows for Johnson’s signal
that they have a deal. As much as he wants to take out the men who have ruined his life, he
resists, not wanting to put his family in more danger.

Johnson, Swagger, and Memphis meet in an empty FBI front building. Memphis traces the
number as Swagger calls Payne and talks to Julie and Mary. The trace leads to a warehouse
that Anhur Dynamics owns. Johnson thinks Swagger is jeopardizing the deal by involving the
FBI, but Swagger reminds Johnson that he doesn’t get a say in the matter. If everything goes the
way Swagger intends, he gets his family, Memphis gets the evidence, and Johnson can take the
diamonds and disappear. ”One way or another, this ends in blood,” Swagger says.

Payne reports to Scott that Swagger ”took the bait” and was on the phone long enough to run
a trace. Scott reminds Payne to lead Swagger to the right room. Scott packs up his Black King.
He agrees to Krukov’s request to send some of his men along. Scott doesn’t really care about the
Annex B files, he’s blind to everything but the idea of proving he’s a better shooter than Swagger.

Swagger asks Johnson to requisition equipment from the FBI, including a thermal scope and
.50 caliber gun. Outside the Anhur warehouse, Memphis uses the thermal scope to ID guards as
Swagger and Johnson make their way into the building and up to the top floor, where Memphis
sees heat signatures of 10 guards, but not Swagger’s family. As Swagger and Johnson take
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out the guards, Scott sets up on his Black King from the building across the street. He gets
impatient and shoots one of the guards through the window, tipping off his position to Swagger
and Johnson, who realize they’ve been set up. Swagger is stuck behind a partition, but uses one
of the dead guards as a decoy to draw Scott’s fire. After Scott shoots the guard, he has no shot
while Swagger runs for the exit.

After the failed trap, Krukov tells Scott his obsession with Swagger is clouding his judgment.
Krukov calls Payne to vent about Scott, but Payne knows he’s lucky to be alive and isn’t in the
mood to cross Scott again.

Memphis, Johnson, and Swagger regroup back at the FBI front building. Swagger furiously
makes bullets as they argue over what to do next. Memphis wants to call in the FBI but Swagger
and Johnson agree that would mean Swagger never sees his family again. Swagger says has
another plan.

Swagger walks up to Scott’s mansion unarmed and announces himself. The guards put him
in zip-ties and march him in. Once inside, Swagger kicks out a guard’s knee, grabs another’s
gun with his hands behind his back, and shoots the guards in their Kevlar vests, knocking them
down. He cuts the zip-tie on a decorative sword. He tells a scared secretary he’ll be in Scott’s
office. When Scott joins Swagger there, he takes the opportunity to brag about his skill again.
He gives Swagger a phone and lets him see video feed of Mary and Julie. Finally, Swagger makes
Scott an offer he can’t resist: once Julie and Mary are safe, Swagger will stay put and let Scott
take shots at him.

After everyone confers, they head for the golf course and hostage exchange. Swagger waits
near a fairway for Payne and his family, with Johnson providing cover from a rooftop on the .50
caliber long gun and Memphis trying to act as spotter. But Swagger knows Scott could be set up
from a mile away and she’d never see him. Memphis notices a van pull up alongside an SUV out
front, and goes to get a look. Doors open and close but she can’t see what’s happening. Then
Payne drives the van onto the golf course and texts Swagger to come out.

Only Julie is inside the van; Mary was switched to the SUV. Payne has rigged a shotgun,
hanger, and lots of duct tape to his hand, and he puts the hanger noose around Julie’s neck – if
he’s shot and falls over, his dead weight will either shoot her or strangle her.

Swagger demands to know where Mary is as Scott lines up to take a shot at Swagger from
thousands of yards away. Swagger and Payne hear a shot whiz by them. Scott realizes his rifle
has been fiddled with (flashback to Scott’s office and Swagger messing with his Black King before
Scott arrived). As they all stand out in the open, Julie pleads with Swagger to leave and find Mary,
but he urges her to trust him as another shot zings past. Swagger waits for a third shot – instead,
there’s an explosion.

Flashback to Swagger in Scott’s study, not only messing with the Black King, but replacing
Scott’s ammunition with a bullet he made. Scott’s gun explodes in his face when he pulls the
trigger, taking half his head off. Lon Scott is no longer a threat. But Payne still has Julie. Swagger
waits for Johnson, then watches as Payne’s arm is shredded from the .50 caliber shot, severing
the hand taped to the shotgun. Swagger grabs the shotgun rigged around Julie’s neck and frees
her as Payne falls to the ground gripping his stump. Julie grabs the shotgun from her husband
and aims it at Payne, demanding to know where her daughter is. Payne doesn’t take her seriously,
laughing that she’s just a housewife. ”I’m a Swagger,” she says. Then she shoots him.

Johnson joins the Swaggers on the golf course. Julie is furious to see the man who framed
her husband, but he assures her he’s trying to make things right. Memphis calls. She followed
the SUV that drove off carrying Krukov and Mary, but she’s gone as far as she can. Krukov took
Mary inside the Russian Embassy.
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Primer Contact

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Tuesday January 17, 2017
Writer: John Hlavin
Director: Simon Cellan Jones
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Eddie McClintock (Jack
Payne), Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Beverly D’Angelo (National Security Adviser), David Andrews (Sam Vin-
cent), Michelle Arthur (Ambassador’s Guest), Leslie Dianne (Russian
Embassy Staff Employee), Gene Farber (Vasily), Alex Feldman (Em-
bassy Guard), Lara Harris (Professor), Angelique Kenney (FBI Task
Force), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Sean Cameron Michael (Grig-
ory Krukov), Costa Ronin (Guest Star), Nick Rush (Russian Embassy
Guard)

Summary: Bob Lee, Julie, Nadine and Isaac work together to breach the Russian
embassy, save Mary, shut down the conspiracy and prove Bob Lee
innocent.

The group executes their plan to rescue
Mary, which begins with Julie making
a scene at a cocktail party attended by
the Russian ambassador. As Julie pub-
licly accuses the ambassador of holding
her daughter, Johnson uses his badge to
get in and ”drag” her away before the
Russians do. The Russian ambassador
leaves the party to demand answers from
Krukov. Meanwhile, Krukov gets a visit
from the National Security Adviser, who
bluntly tells him to release Mary Swagger.
She knows about Annex B but is more

worried about the bad press from the Russians kidnapping a child. The Russian ambassador
returns after chewing out Krukov over the phone and strolls into the embassy followed by his
security detail, which includes Swagger. But Swagger is stopped by building security and told to
wait.

Inside, the ambassador orders Krukov to move Mary. Krukov promises he’s handling things
and it will all be over soon, then he’ll wrap everything up by killing the Swaggers. The ambassador
is not happy Krukov has involved a child. After Krukov leaves, the ambassador notices security
hassling Swagger for not having ID. He barks at them for stopping his man, but as soon as
Swagger’s through, he drops the act, having recognized Swagger. He checks that Swagger hasn’t
hurt his regular security guard (he’s waking up on the floor of a car) and says he had nothing
to do with taking Mary. He gives Swagger the key card to the safe room where Mary is and asks
Swagger not to kill anybody.

Swagger navigates the hallways to the safe room, narrowly avoiding Krukov. He knocks out
the guard, then opens the door and scoops up his daughter. He puts something on her cot as he
carries her out of the room. He commends her for being a great ”mini-Marine” and tells her their
mission is to get out of the embassy. When he has to take out a security guard, he distracts her
by asking her to stand lookout. He rigs a fire in the kitchen and picks up Mary and runs for the
exit as people stream out of the building.
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Swagger meets up with Julie and reunites her with Mary, but he has to say good-bye one more
time. He gives Julie the diamonds and the key to a prepaid motel room. She doesn’t want to leave,
but he knows Krukov won’t stop coming for them. He promises he’ll be back by midnight, after
he knows they’re truly safe. Then Swagger calls Johnson to relay his location to Krukov, and tells
Johnson he can still have the diamonds. Johnson tells Krukov to kill Swagger, then jumps in his
car to go help Swagger. But Agent John Renlow and Memphis stop him in the lot. Johnson had
a deal with Swagger, not them.

Back at the embassy, the ambassador tells Krukov he’s being called back home. But Krukov
isn’t done yet. He mentions GPS trackers so small someone can eat it without even knowing and
we flash back to Mary eating a cookie in the safe room.

Out in the woods, Swagger sets up on a hill and prepares to hunt. Krukov and his men show
up in the woods and Swagger picks them off like flies, but he can’t get them all and a dozen still
come after him. Swagger switches check points and sets up on the Black King. The Russians use
a smoke bomb to try to cloud their positions, but Swagger still manages to hit a few. Memphis,
Johnson and Renlow arrive and hear the reports of fire and shots. Johnson pleads with Memphis
to let him help Swagger and finally she frees him, promising him: ”If you try to run, I’ll leave you
on that mountain.”

Julie and Mary reach the motel Swagger rented for them, which is off a highway next to the
forest. Krukov tracks them there and starts shouting from outside, demanding the Annex B file.
Julie tells Mary to hide in the bathtub just before Krukov blasts a hole through the front door.

In the forest, Johnson takes out one Russian before another one shoots him in the arm, then
hits Memphis. Swagger is pinned behind a tree and announces he’s coming out and gives up his
gun. He turns to face a Russian from about 15 feet away, then whips a knife from his back and
flings it into the Russian’s throat before he can fire. He races to help Memphis. Her vest takes the
bullet; she’s okay. Swagger picks up a gun and holds it on Johnson as he limps away. Johnson
turns and tells Swagger he’s truly sorry for everything. Swagger takes out the bag of diamonds
and tosses them to Johnson, telling Johnson he never wants to see him again.

Julie calls Swagger from the motel, where Krukov is blasting holes through walls. Swagger
races to his original check point and sets up on the Black King. He looks through the scope to
the motel below, a mile away. He tells Memphis to shoot at Krukov’s car to draw him out. When
Krukov turns to inspect the blast, he steps perfectly into Swagger’s sights, and the man who
tried to set up the world’s best sniper gets a deadly reminder of his skill. Krukov falls to the
pavement, dead from distance.

Down at the motel, Swagger is reunited with his family again. He promises Julie it’s finally
over, but their moment is short-lived as Memphis has to take Swagger into custody. She’s not
happy about it, but he’s still the number-one suspect in the assassination of the Ukrainian
president.

Later, Memphis, Swagger and his lawyer, Sam Vincent, are taken to the CIA headquarters to
talk to the NSA director Gregson, who is sitting next to a tactical rifle. She has cleared out the
ground floor of the building for the occasion and wants one thing: the Annex B files. Memphis
suggests she ask Hugh Meachum for it, but Gregson says he’s recently retired, which is a nice
euphemism for ”killed by Russians.” She promises Swagger his life back if he turns over the file.
He notes that she advises the president on which leaders to meet with, which means she put
him in Seattle on a stage next to the Ukrainian president. She asks Swagger about the rifle next
to her, which he recognizes as one used in the assassination. She loads a bullet in the chamber
and turns it to face him, demanding the Annex B file. She pulls the trigger, but nothing happens.
Gregson explains that someone shaved the firing pin down so it couldn’t fire, and therefore it
couldn’t be the murder weapon. She tells Swagger he’s exonerated and asks for Annex B again.
He suggests she check with the Russian ambassador and see if he found anything in the room
where they were keeping his daughter. (Flashback to Swagger placing the thumb drive on the
cot.)

After conferring with Gregson privately, Vincent tells Swagger and Memphis that the story will
be that Lon Scott and Grigory Krukov cooked up a war from which they’d both profit, and Scott
took the shot and framed Swagger. They found evidence in Scott’s house. They’ll say that they had
a falling out so Scott killed Krukov at the motel then killed himself. The Russian ambassador will
back the entire story. No one knows where Isaac Johnson is. Memphis asks Swagger if he knew
the rifle Gregson had wouldn’t fire. We flash back to him in his shed working on the weapon,
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but he leaves her question unanswered. Bob Lee Swagger finally rejoins his girls, just in time for
lasagna night.

Gregson sits down with Johnson in a conference room. He’s angry that he nearly got killed.
She reminds him he volunteered and says that Krukov and Meachum were the tip of the iceberg.
The real problem is about to reveal itself, she says, handing him a phone. But he says he’s done.
”Don’t send anyone after me,” he says.

”I won’t have to,” she says.
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The Hunting Party

Season 2
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Tuesday July 18, 2017
Writer: John Hlavin
Director: Yuval Adler
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Josh Stewart (Solotov),
Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Recurring Role: Beverly D’Angelo (National Security Adviser)
Guest Stars: Forest Baker (Russian Mobster), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey),

Porchea Carroll (Campbell’s Girlfriend), D’Arcy Fellona (Susie
Cartwright), Eddie J. Fernandez (Mexican 1), Gina Gallego (Estella),
Tara George (Ali’s Wife), Claudia Graf (German Nurse), Tommie Earl
Jenkins (Navy Commander), Anna Khaja (Gabina), Lexy Kolker (Mary
Swagger), John W. Lawson (Amputee Veteran), Eduardo Lezcano (Ball
Guest), Valiant Michael (Mobster), Afsheen Olyaie (Armed Guard),
Craig Reed (Prosthetic Ball Guest), Patrick Sabongui (Yusuf Ali),
Akrosia Samson (Adrienne)

Summary: Bob Lee Swagger and wife Julie join his former Marine unit in Ger-
many and narrowly escape a deadly terrorist attack. FBI Agent Nadine
Memphis, meanwhile, takes a job in Washington with Patricia Greg-
son.

The episode begins in Frankfurt, Ger-
many, where Bob Lee lauds his friend
Kevin ”Doc” Campbell at a Silver Star cer-
emony in a fancy hotel ballroom. Sud-
denly, the ceremony is interrupted by at-
tackers dressed as policemen, who spray
the room with bullets. Bob Lee dives over
Julie to protect her, then kicks into ac-
tion, tackling one attacker and neutral-
izing him. The attackers are all wearing
bomb vests. His friend Rodriguez takes a
bullet in the arm but the attackers are
soon overpowered. Swagger tracks the
last one to the lobby and shoots him, but
with civilians nearby, Doc Campbell ap-

proaches the fallen man to disarm the vest. Something catches Swagger’s eye and, in an instant,
Campbell is swallowed up as the bomb explodes.

3 Days Earlier — In Frankfurt, a man picks up a woman at a bar, telling her he’ll be in town for
a few weeks then back a lot since he just got the territory. The next morning, he wakes up at her
place — which has a perfect line of sight to the banquet hall. In Texas, the Swaggers say good-bye
to Mary and leave on their trip. Memphis, now a senior special agent with the FBI, is stationed in
Washington, D.C. but is frustrated to be behind a desk in the Office of Personnel Management.
But she seems to have a good casual thing going with a senator’s aide, whom she meets when
their schedules allow (don’t call it a ”nooner”). She gets a call from former NSA director Patricia
Gregson, who then tracks Nadine down with a vague job offer. In Bangkok, Johnson has settled

31



Shooter Episode Guide

in nicely, with a training routine and regular noodle vendor. But on his way home one day, he
thinks he’s being followed.

The night before the ceremony, Swagger’s unit and their wives and girlfriends cut loose in a
bar, swapping old war stories. When someone asks Bob Lee if he has seen Johnson, Swagger lies
and says no. Across the street, the mystery man runs surveillance on the group.

The next day, the mystery man coordinates the attackers then sets up on a long gun from the
woman’s apartment. After the attack begins, the man waits for someone to be flushed into the
lobby, and into his sights. When his hook-up returns unexpectedly to her apartment, the man
coolly shoots her in the head then turns his attention back to the hotel. From the hotel lobby,
Bob Lee sees the bullet milliseconds before the vest donates and kills Campbell.

Julie is understandably freaked out after the attack and just wants to get home to Mary, but
the airports are closed as a security measure. She and Bob Lee agree he should stay to accom-
pany Campbell’s body back to the States. Bob Lee surveys the scene in the lobby, suspicious that
he saw the window glass broken by a bullet before the bomb went off. He snapped a photo of
nearby apartment buildings and sees one that had the curtains open. He and Dobs go to check
it out. He sees tiny holes around a window and paint chips and concludes the shooter was there
and hung a screen to take his shot. Then they find the dead woman in the bathroom, poorly
staged to look like a suicide.

Julie is a wreck and desperate to leave the city, and reaches out to Memphis in D.C. for help,
but Memphis is persona non grata and her boss shuts her down. A short time later, Memphis gets
a call from Gregson, who somehow knows she’s trying to get Julie out of Frankfurt. She asks
Memphis to meet and arrives with instruction that will let Julie leave Germany on a military
plane. Memphis is angry that she didn’t do anything wrong and is still paying a political price
for helping Swagger. Gregson encourages her to accept that she’s going nowhere at the FBI and
come work for her.

In Bangkok, Johnson sees the news of the shooting in Frankfurt and that Bob Lee was in-
volved and wakes his wife up in the middle of the night, announcing it’s time to go. ”They’re
cleaning up, it’s not safe for us anymore,” he says. The next day, they come under fire on a busy
market street and although he’s able to take out their attackers, his wife is hit badly in the leg.
She insists she’ll be OK and says they need to keep moving.

Back in Germany in the destroyed banquet hall, they find a seating chart on one of the
attackers and learn that they were specifically targeting Swagger and his unit. Rodriguez is in
the hospital recovering from his arm wound when is told he’s being transferred. His ambulance
driver is the mystery man. The man pulls over and injects Rodriguez with something before he
can fight back, killing him. Swagger and Dobs arrive at the hospital too late. Rodriguez’s body is
found in the ambulance a short time later. Hospital surveillance shows the mystery man wheeling
him out, but he’s careful never to let the camera see his face. ”This wasn’t terrorism — it was
murder. We’re being hunted,” Bob Lee says.
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Remember the Alamo

Season 2
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Tuesday July 25, 2017
Writer: Will Staples
Director: Yuval Adler
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Josh Stewart (Solotov),
Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Rob Brown (Donny Fenn), Jerry Ferrara (Kirk Zehnder), Todd Lowe
(Colin Dobbs), Mehdi Merali (Waheed), Jaina Lee Ortiz (Angela Tio),
Patrick Sabongui (Yusuf Ali), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Gina Gal-
lego (Estella), Terrell Carter (Guest Star), Emiliano Torres (Guest Star),
Michelle Krusiec (Lin Johnson), Anna Khaja (Gabina), Chet Grissom
(Customs Agent), Anthony Skordi (Maltese Consul), Iyad Hajjaj (Afghan
Villager), Aylam Orian (German Agent), Luca Oriel (Rodrigo), Akrosia
Samson (Adrienne)

Summary: Bob Lee investigates the terrorist attack that may have targeted his
Marine unit. Memphis helps on the ground in Germany. Flashbacks
to Afghanistan help shed light on who might be after them.

Helmand Province, Afghanistan, 2012
— Swagger and his unit head into a town
on a tip and come upon a massive stash
of heroin. After capturing the village in a
firefight, they prepare the take the body
of the local mullah with them over the ob-
jection of his wife and son. They are de-
bating what to do with the drugs when
they get word of hostiles approaching.
Swagger sets up on overwatch while Colin
Dobbs offers cigarettes to the men they
found guarding the heroin. He skips the
one who fought back, Waheed Zakeera,

but drops his matchbook and the Waheed grabs it. Later, Waheed is angry with the Americans
and asks them why they’re going to destroy the drugs, saying: ”We work for you!”

Present time — Angela Tio helps Dobbs and Swagger follow up on the attackers. They were
Turkish but had passports from Malta. Those are easily bought, so Swagger is looking for an-
swers. After learning the Maltese Consul is leaving the country, he wants a chance to talk to
him first. He and Dobbs stage an abduction, in which they fake shooting the ambassador’s aide
to learn who bought the passports. He gives them the name ”Golden Crescent.” Before they can
leave, they’re interrupted by armed men – and Nadine Memphis. She’s there on special assign-
ment to bring Swagger home. He tells her about the Golden Crescent and asks for time to run it
down. She gives them until her flight leaves at midnight.

In the ballroom crime scene, the mystery sniper poses as a German investigator and learns
two Marines are MIA. Later, Memphis finds the man going through Swagger’s things in his hotel
room. She’s suspicious, but mentions the Golden Crescent to him. He explains they’re a crime
syndicate and he gives her a cell phone number to trace. When he leaves the room he makes a
call, warning someone to clear out a warehouse immediately. So when Tio, Dobbs, and Swagger
arrive there a short while later, it’s completely empty. They find evidence that the bomb vests
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were made there, and also a matchbook from the Black Wolf bar in Austin, TX. Dobbs recognizes
it immediately as the one he dropped in Helmand.

Julie is back home with Mary and the nanny Estella in Texas, but she’s still not recovered
from the overseas attack. She’s anxious and badly bruised from diving to the ballroom floor. To
make up for biting Mary’s head off over nothing, he takes her out for breakfast for lunch, in
their PJs. The quality mother-daughter time seems to help, but Julie is very aware that they’re
exposed without Bob Lee around.

Isaac makes plans to get his wounded wife attention. He stops by his gym to pick up their
passports and money, while she waits in the car outside. Inside, Johnson is jumped by an
assassin. He’s on the wrong end of a chokehold but manages to get the man’s gun and kill him
to escape. He races back to the car, but is crushed to find his wife has been murdered in the
short time he was gone.

Memphis traces the number the sniper gave her to Lashkargah Bank in Frankfurt, but she
calls Swagger with the info before the man she believes was local law enforcement. Meanwhile
the sniper heads to the bank to meet with the man who hired him – the man from Helmand,
Waheed. The shooter doesn’t seem terribly concerned with pleasing the man who hired him.

Helmand Province, Afghanistan, 2012 — In flashback, we learn that Waheed’s mother had told
Swagger’s unit whom the drugs belong to: Hugh Meachum, with the CIA. Swagger and Johnson
decided to burn the pile just the same and take Waheed’s mother with them for questioning.

Present time — Swagger, Dobbs, and Tio bust into the bank under cover of darkness and find
bodies everywhere. Swagger finds Waheed, barely alive and strapped to a chair with a bomb vest
on. Swagger recognizes him and then has seconds to dive for cover before Waheed explodes.

Helmand Province, Afghanistan, 2012 — Swagger is picking off the advancing enemy as fast
as he can but finally there are too many and they pack up for exfiltration. Back at base, Johnson
and Swagger try to make sense of what they just stepped in. Johnson knows the intel to hit the
town came from Meachum, who apparently was cleaning house. ”We burned $100 million of CIA
dope. You don’t think there’s going to be some blowback?” Johnson says.

Present time — After losing his wife, Johnson decides it’s time to stop running and return to
the States. He’s stopped by Customs at the Canadian border. There’s an Interpol notice on him
saying he’s a threat to national security. Johnson isn’t in the mood to explain himself and instead
looks into the security camera and says only: ”Patricia Gregson.”

On the U.S./Mexico border, the sniper uses a coyote to cross onto U.S. soil, then kills his
transport. The fight that started on foreign ground is coming home.
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Don’t Mess with Texas

Season 2
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Tuesday August 1, 2017
Writer: T.J. Brady, Rasheed Newson
Director: Jaime Reynoso
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Josh Stewart (Solotov),
Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Carmen Argenziano (Charles Broadwell), Jesse Bradford (Harris
Downey), Todd Lowe (Colin Dobbs), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Gina
Gallego (Estella), John Marshall Jones (Guest Star), Emiliano Torres
(Edgar Rodriguez), Tony Amendola (Guest Star), Matt Bushell (Gar
Winston), Harry Hamlin (Guest Star), Beverly D’Angelo (National Secu-
rity Advisor Gregson), Jeremy Andorfer-Lopez (Scotty), Danielle Bur-
gio (Waitress), Efka Kvaraciejus (Vigo), Rene Mousseux (Hitman), Luca
Oriel (Rodrigo), Vladimir Tevlovski (Elbek)

Summary: Bob Lee finds Isaac in Texas after an attempt on his life; Nadine learns
how much influence Patricia Gregson has; Julie fights to stay strong
for her family.

Spain, 3 Months Ago — Solotov is relax-
ing at home cooking dinner when he sees
an assassin approaching out of the cor-
ner of his eye. His chef’s knife becomes
a weapon of defense. One of his attack-
ers says that Solotov has to go because
the Marines saw his face and a reporter
is asking questions. Solotov dispatches
with his attackers and leaves dinner on
the stove as he bugs out.

Present time — Isaac Johnson gets the
visit from Gregson that he demanded, but
she’s no longer interested in his services.

He’s looking for revenge, she’s looking for a clean break. Johnson heads to Texas and reaches out
to Swagger, who isn’t exactly happy to see the man who set him up for murder and put his family
in danger. Johnson wants to work together to find whomever is hunting them, but Swagger isn’t
feeling so trusting and tells him no. Johnson is driving away from the meet when a car forces
him off the road. The driver gets out and draws on Johnson, but before he can fire, Swagger
charges down the road in his truck and runs the man over.

Memphis does research on the Golden Crescent and finds that a Post reporter named Jef-
frey Denning wrote about them and the heroin trade. She goes to see Denning’s editor, Charles
Broadwell, to try to learn more about the Golden Crescent and an international terrorist ring
with ties to the U.S. government. She drops Gregson’s name and Broadwell tells her Denning is
on sabbatical.

In a flashback to Afghanistan, Johnson has been told to keep the mullah’s wife in custody,
but he doesn’t know why. He’s summoned to Kabul for a meeting that turns out to be with
Gregson, then-Deputy Director of the Defense Intelligence Agency. It’s their first meeting. She
knows about Hugh Meachum’s CIA drug trade and wants Johnson to help stop him. She won’t
take no for an answer. With Johnson off base, Swagger is in charge. A group of American tough
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guys that Swagger suspects are CIA stop at the base claiming car trouble. He thinks they’re after
the mullah’s wife so he hides her.

Solotov requests a meeting with his boss Addison Hayes, but goes wearing a bomb vest, just
in case. Hayes gives him two weeks to deal with Swagger and company. Swagger and Colin Dobbs
have the man who tried to run over Johnson and start working him over for answers, but he’s
not talking. They find a Maltese passport on him with visits in the last week to Brazil, Egypt,
and Thailand. When Johnson hears Thailand, his patience evaporates. He realizes the man must
be the one who killed his wife, and shoots him without hesitation. Swagger is angry he killed
their only lead, and sends a text from the man’s phone to meet with whomever he’s working for.
Solotov reads the text, then calls someone to meet with Swagger at the diner, telling him to be
sure Swagger brings him out front. He’ll be waiting.

Johnson and Swagger sit down at a table while Dobbs stands watch. A man arrives to meet
them and tries to get them to go outside, but Swagger’s sniper sense tingles. The man takes a
waitress hostage and the diner erupts in panic. Swagger does the math, then quickly pulls out
his gun and shoots the man in the shoulder, saving the woman.

Memphis comes home to find her boyfriend Harris Downey standing in his underwear while
police tear her place apart. Having made her point, Gregson arrives and ends the search. She’s
trying to intimidate Memphis and scold her for using her name with Broadwell, but Memphis
isn’t impressed. Gregson knows Swagger is being hunted and it goes back to the Afghani heroin,
but she’s not interested in the press knowing that. Memphis forgets her boss’ words a short time
later when Denning texts and Memphis says she still wants to meet.

After the shooting at the diner, Johnson makes himself scarce while Swagger talks to the
sheriff. The attacker is wheeled out on a stretcher to an ambulance. Solotov slips into the crowd
that is gathered and tosses a firecracker as a distraction. He climbs into the back of the ambu-
lance and injects his own man with something, killing him, without anyone knowing he was ever
there.

Swagger and Dobbs head back to Swagger’s house, where he starts grabbing weapons. He
wants to stand watch, but Dobbs is ready to head home. Julie is also ready for answers. Dobbs
hits the road, but pulls over when he sees he’s being followed. He pretends to fix his tire, waiting
to see what the person’s intentions are. When they get out with a gun, Dobbs opens fire, killing
the attacker. Dobbs is looking around to see if there are any more people after him when he is
hit in the chest and goes down.

Back in Afghanistan, the CIA guys aren’t happy when they discover Swagger is hiding the
mullah’s wife. The two groups of men stare each other down until guns are drawn, but Swagger
doesn’t back down and the men leave. When Johnson returns from Kabul, he lies to Swagger
about his trip, downplaying it like it was nothing. Swagger doesn’t tell him about the CIA visit.

At the Swagger ranch, Bob Lee finishes telling Julie what’s going on. She’s angry and dis-
traught that he doesn’t have more information or a plan to stop what’s happening. They’re in-
terrupted by a late night visit from Sheriff Brown. He breaks the news that Dobbs was killed. He
says it looks like a robbery, but Swagger knows otherwise. In flashback, we see the shooter: it’s
Solotov.
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The Dark End of the Street

Season 2
Episode Number: 14
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Tuesday August 8, 2017
Writer: Kate Barnow
Director: David Straiton
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Josh Stewart (Solotov),
Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Rob Brown (Donny Fenn), Jerry Ferrara (Kirk Zehnder), Troy Garity
(Jeffrey Denning), John Marshall Jones (Sheriff Brown), Todd Lowe
(Colin Dobbs), Patrick Sabongui (Yusuf Ali), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swag-
ger), Gina Gallego (Estella), Terrell Carter (Kevin Campbell), Emiliano
Torres (Edgar Rodriguez), Tony Amendola (Priest), Dave Florek (Guest
Star), Anna Khaja (Gabina), E. Ambriz DeColosio (Guest Star), Aurelio
De Anda (Mexican Prisoner), Greg Fitzpatrick (Main UN Escort)

Summary: Bob Lee and Isaac learn the world’s greatest assassin is in the U.S.
Flashbacks to a mission in Afghanistan reveal his identity: Solotov.
Nadine comes to Texas with suspicions of a conspiracy.

In a flashback to Afghanistan flashback,
the Marines have been ordered to ac-
company a UN escort to transport the
mullah’s wife, Gabina, off base. They’re
joined by a man introduced as Dr. Wydra
with the UN – it’s Solotov. They drive
through the desert without incident un-
til they reach a suspicious truck stopped
in the road and what appears to be an in-
jured man. Solotov stays in the car with
Gabina with his finger covertly on a det-
onator while Johnson gets out to inspect.
Johnson realizes it’s an ambush seconds

before Solotov detonates the blast.
At the Swagger ranch, Julie is anxious. She sends Mary off to school, concerned for her safety.

On his security feed, Swagger sees that Johnson is outside. He lies to Julie and sneaks out to
the barn to talk to him. When Julie comes to check on him moments later, she is livid to see who
he’s with and that her husband lied to her.

In Afghanistan, the convoy comes under heavy fire and is surrounded by men coming down
from the hills to attack. Solotov hunkers down with Gabina in the transport, pretending to protect
her, then he quickly stabs her in the neck. He opens the door, claiming she was shot, and pulls
her to the ground, where he makes a show of helping her as he surreptitiously squeezes the life
out of her gaping wound. After the fire fight, Donnie is suspicious of Solotov and doesn’t buy
his story that Gabina was hit by bullet, saying there was no incoming fire at the time. He grabs
Solotov’s UN badge with his picture on it and won’t give it back. Everyone is frustrated, and Kirk
Zehnder complains that they never should have burned the heroin.

Back in Texas, Solotov is hiding comfortably in a mobile home, while he whips up a pressure
cooker bomb. At her house, Julie goes through the guns in Bob Lee’s safe and Estella the nanny
worries about her. She thinks Julie might be suffering from PTSD and suggests she talk to
someone. Julie insists she’s fine, but she, too, looks ready to explode. When she gets buzzed by
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a delivery driver she asks them to leave the package at the door. We can’t help but wonder if the
package is Solotov’s bomb.

Memphis goes to meet with the reporter Jeffrey Denning in a parking garage. She confirms
that rogue CIA agent Hugh Meachum was running a heroin ring in Afghanistan, and asks Den-
ning to keep Swagger’s name out of the story in return for the info. Denning insists the story
is bigger than Meachum, and the operation is still running, even a year after Meachum’s death.
Denning tells her about a rare earth mining company called Gravity Metals and shows her pic-
tures of Waheed Zakeer, who exploded in Frankfurt last week after a visit from Solotov. Denning
suggests it’s odd that he was transferred there by his company from the desert of Afghanistan
two months ago. She suggests Memphis find out why.

Reluctant partners Johnson and Swagger stop by the sheriff’s station looking into Dobbs’
murder. The Sheriff Brown isn’t inclined to pursue it himself, but sends them to the cartel that
runs the area. Johnson and Swagger pull up to the cartel house in a neighborhood. Swagger sets
up on overwatch while Johnson goes in to talk, asking where the cartel stashes assassins when
they come to town. Despite Swagger’s directive not to pull his gun and the fact he’s outnumbered,
Johnson gets impatient and draws his weapon. From afar, Swagger can see the situation is
about to go sideways. He shoots a gun out of one man’s hand and shoots another in the hand.
The gangsters tell him about the man they brought across the border who killed their people.
Johnson gets directions to the trailer park.

Memphis heads to Gravity Metals where an office punk named Toby gives her a lot of attitude
and no information. Suffice to say, it does not seem like Gravity Metals is really in the mining
business. When Memphis returns later with Denning and a warrant, the place is completely
cleaned out. Denning seems to believe Memphis is trying to help and shows her a picture of his
source. Memphis is stunned and suggests Denning lay low for awhile while she talks to someone.

Johnson and Swagger set up on a hill over Solotov’s trailer in the mobile home park. Swagger
wants to take their time and plan an approach before rushing arguably the best shooter in the
world, but Johnson has no such patience. He runs up to the trailer firing, with no regard for his
own safety. He blasts away, standing out in the open with only vengeance on his mind.

At home, Julie brings the box that was delivered inside. In the park, Solotov sneaks out a hole
in the floor of the trailer and crawls away. Julie opens the box – but it’s just full of paper towels.
Swagger yells at Johnson to get away from the trailer right before it explodes. Swagger checks
on Johnson then runs into the trailer, and right into Solotov. The two men fight and Swagger
breaks Solotov’s wrist, but he manages to get away to his car and drive off wildly through the
trailer park. Suffering from the effects of being knocked out by the explosion and filled with rage,
Johnson stumbles after the car firing wildly, ignoring Swagger’s shouts to cease fire. Finally,
worried about the civilians around them, Swagger shoots Johnson in the chest.

In Afghanistan flashback, over a late night drink, Johnson admits to Swagger that he believes
Donnie was right that Solotov killed the mullah’s wife. And Solotov the ”UN doctor” has now dis-
appeared. Johnson is struggling with how to write up his report, knowing it’s political dynamite.
But Swagger sees things more clearly, believing the truth matters.

Julie stops by the church late at night, where the priest tries to get her to open up. She admits
she feels on edge all the time and is struggling. Meanwhile, Johnson wakes up in the back of
Swagger’s car, aching from where Swagger shot him in his chest plate. Swagger accuses him of
being completely out of control.

Solotov races away from the trailer park, nearly blinded by pain from what Swagger did to his
wrist. He stops at a seedy motel. In his room, he goes about fixing his wrist by slamming it in
a dresser drawer to get the bones back into place, taking swigs of vodka to numb the pain. He
makes a call to someone, saying he’ll be staying a little longer.

Swagger brings Johnson home with him and finds Julie sitting down with Memphis in his
living room. Memphis catches them up to speed, telling them that Denning’s source is Kirk
Zehnder – who supposedly dead. They know that Zehnder had mental health issues but his initial
information to Denning seemed to check out. He supposedly sent Denning corroboration in a file
by courier, but the courier never showed. A week later, Zehnder committed suicide. Memphis tells
Johnson and Swagger about the man she found going through Swagger’s hotel room. She shows
them a sketch. Johnson recognizes him as the UN doctor and Swagger recognizes him as the
man who attacked him in the trailer: Solotov. Memphis learned Zehnder has a storage facility
under a false name and wants to look into it. Swagger suggests Alexi Prosovich, the Russian
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mafioso who protected him in prison, might have info. They wonder how much Patricia Gregson
is involved, but for the moment, seem to think someone else is calling the shots.
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The Man Called Noon

Season 2
Episode Number: 15
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Tuesday August 15, 2017
Writer: Jennifer Cacicio, John Hlavin
Director: Lukas Ettlin
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Josh Stewart (Solotov),
Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Rob Brown (Donny Fenn), Jerry Ferrara (Kirk Zehnder), Ravil Isyanov
(Alexander Rosovich), Todd Lowe (Colin Dobbs), Patrick Sabongui
(Yusuf Ali), Dave Florek (Guest Star), Brendan McCarthy (Bo Winnick),
Nick Gracer (Peter Petravich), Gina Gallego (Estella), Abraham Justice
(Radio Taliban)

Summary: Bob Lee works to piece together Solotov’s motive for targeting their
unit. Nadine uncovers a surprise witness to the event that set every-
thing off. Solotov’s hunt has him hiding in plain sight.

Afghanistan flashback — On the base
after the disastrous transport, Zehnder is
fired up that Johnson isn’t going to look
into Donnie’s suspicions about Solotov’s
involvement in the mullah’s wife’s death.
He wonders who ordered them to hit the
mullah and who Johnson told about the
wife’s transport. He grabs the tossed copy
of Donnie’s report. The other members of
the unit are resigned to moving on from
the whole affair.

Present time — Far away up on a hill,
Solotov does recon. He meets with two lo-

cal fighters and tells them to broadcast his name on the radio for the Marines to hear. They do,
but still end up dead. Johnson reports on the legend of Solotov, a Chechen whose nickname is
”the ghost.” His kill count is over 400, but nobody has heard from him since 2009. The Rus-
sians wanted him so badly they bombed an entire town of civilians to get him, but he got away.
Johnson won’t let Swagger leave the base as long as he’s Solotov’s target.

Memphis breaks into Kirk Zehnder’s storage locker and is looking around when she’s at-
tacked. She gets tossed around but fights back, incapacitating her attacker. She’s shocked when
she finally sees his face: it’s Zehnder. When he wakes up, he explains that he’s been hiding out
for awhile, pretending to be dead to stay safe. Memphis promises to protect him in exchange for
whatever he was going to give to Denning. To prove she’s on his side, she calls Swagger, who’s
with Johnson and Yusuf Ali in Seattle to talk to Alexi Rosovich, who is out of prison and in a
nursing home. Zehnder is anxious and insists they keep moving.

Inside the Seattle care facility, Swagger, Johnson, and Ali find it’s a front for a bustling casino
with roulette wheels and beautiful women. Rosovich denies he’s dying, saying a little poison
could never hurt him. They show him the Golden Crescent diagram and he takes them to meet a
fellow Russian gangster, saying he’ll have answers. But once at the bar, Johnson, Swagger, and
Ali are stunned spectators as Rosovich lays into his rival for running an online child pornography
operation and shoots him through the gut. With that business taken care of, Rosovich explains
that he used Swagger for back-up because his target was untouchable by Russians. But he
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makes good on his offer of help to Swagger, taking the key to the dead man’s safe and showing
the men a kilo of heroin with the Golden Crescent mark on it.

On the road with Memphis, Zehnder tells her about a group called Atlas that’s supposedly
running everything behind the scenes. As Zehnder babbles, he works on taking his cuffs off in
her backseat. When Memphis takes out her phone to call Bob Lee, he grabs her phone and tosses
it out the window, saying he’s ready to take her to his evidence now.

Rosovich gives the Marines a history lesson on Solotov, saying he went to work for some dark
organization named Atlas after the war. But no one knows what the members look like, secrecy is
their first priority. Johnson thinks that explains why Solotov went after Donnie – because Donnie
took Solotov’s UN badge with his picture on it. Ali tells them about Zehnder keeping Donnie’s
report. The pieces start to fall into place. Swagger was always bothered that Solotov let his name
be broadcast on the radio back in Afghanistan, but he realizes Solotov was faking a sniper versus
sniper thing when Donnie was the real target. Now they’re being targeted because Denning was
on the story and had Zehnder’s copy of the report. Swagger tries Memphis but her phone is laying
by a Texas road somewhere.

Earlier in Texas, Bob Lee tried to convince Julie to leave town with Mary, but she was dead
set against it. Julie heads to the firing range, where some sleazeball hits on her. She shuts him
down and he calls her names. When she takes offense, another man comes to her defense. He
introduces himself as Travis and explains that his arm is in a cast because his young daughter
accidentally shut it the car door, so he’s learning to do everything left-handed: it’s Solotov. He
chats up Julie, appealing to her as a parent. He walks her to her car and says he’s in town selling
farm equipment. When he asks for a recommendation of a good church, she tells him about St.
Francis. He asks her to email him the info and gets her to take out her phone.

On the road, Memphis and Zehnder are bonding over shared conspiracy theories when Mem-
phis notices a car following them in her rearview. Meanwhile, Swagger returns home from Seattle
to find Julie in a good mood after chatting about life with Soltov. Back in his hotel room, Solotov
listens as Julie quotes something he said about marriage to Bob Lee. He has turned her phone
into a listening device. Then Memphis calls Swagger and tells him about their tail. Swagger
formulates a plan for her to lead the tail to a refinery by his house. Solotov hears everything.

When day breaks, Swagger, Johnson and Ali are all in place as Memphis leads the car into
Swagger’s sights at the empty refinery. He stops the car with a bullet to the tire and Johnson and
Ali rush the driver. But when they reach it, they see it was rigged and no one as at the wheel.
Johnson cries ambush and they turn and start shooting as the local guns Solotov hired come
out blazing. Memphis leaves Zehnder in her car but he gets anxious after the firefight breaks
out and takes it and drives off. After a relatively easy fight with inexperienced gang members,
Swagger, Johnson, Ali, and Memphis try to make sense of things. Memphis mentions Zehnder’s
allegation that Atlas shares a banker with the cartel. Swagger worries that the fact Solotov left
underlings to handle them means he was really after Zehnder.

Zehnder goes back to his storage facility and retrieves Solotov’s fake UN ID from its hiding
place in his microwave. When he walks back out, he calls Swagger. But he doesn’t get far before
he takes a bullet in the chest. Solotov walks up on Zehnder and finishes him then picks up the
phone. He explains to Swagger on the other end this will be over when everyone who has seen
his face is gone. Solotov says: ”I’m not tying up loose ends, Swagger. I am burning the rope.”

42



Shooter Episode Guide

Across the Rio Grande

Season 2
Episode Number: 16
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Tuesday August 22, 2017
Writer: Matthew Newman
Director: David Straiton
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Josh Stewart (Solotov),
Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Tony Amendola (Priest), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Troy Gar-
ity (Jeffrey Denning), John Marshall Jones (Sheriff Brown), Patrick
Sabongui (Yusuf Ali), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Gina Gallego (Es-
tella), Brendan McCarthy (Bo Winnick), Carlease Burke (Guest Star),
Carlos Leal (Guest Star), Darin Cooper (Crawley), Eddie J. Fernandez
(Day Laborer Driver), Ted Hollis (Coffee Shop Patron)

Summary: Bob Lee tracks Solotov’s money, pitting himself against a Mexican car-
tel. Nadine helps a journalist investigate a cover-up involving Bob Lee’s
unit. Julie makes her frustration heard with a gun.

Swagger is brought to the local sher-
iff’s station for questioning about the four
dead Las Fantasmas cartel members at
the refinery. Sheriff Brown isn’t terribly
concerned about dead gang members,
but suggests Swagger watch out for retal-
iation. He mentions that no matter what
they do, the cartel’s trucks of drugs leave
Mexico and return full of cash every day.
Swagger takes this intel back to Isaac
Johnson and Yusuf Ali and suggests they
follow the cartel’s money back to their
banker, which they know is connected to

Atlas and, therefore, Solotov.
Ali buys drugs off a Las Fantasmas member and he and Johnson watch as a courier picks

up the cash. They follow it through various handoffs and locations until it ends up in a truck
yard. Swagger sneaks into a semi truck and finds palettes of money. He hides as the truck hits
the road. After the semi is out in the middle of nowhere, Swagger orders the couriers to pull over
and lets them go. Ali is tempted by the massive piles of cash and takes a couple stacks. Swagger
and Johnson rig the rest of the cash and wait for the man in charge to show up. When he does,
the Marines order him to call his boss. Swagger gets on the phone and asks if he’s Solotov’s
banker. Swagger lists all the cash warehouse locations and threatens to blow them up to get the
Fantasmas coming after the banker. When banker doesn’t answer Swagger, takes it as a yes.
They release the hired hands but take their boss across the border.

Nadine meets with the reporter Jeffrey Denning and tells him that Kirk Zehnder wasn’t dead,
but is now. Denning has heard of Atlas, but can’t prove the group is real. Nadine thinks they’re
being watched. ”Atlas exists, and they’re coming,” she says. She calls her ex-boyfriend Harris
Barnes, who works for the head of the Senate Intelligence Committee. He reluctantly meets with
her and Denning to try to scare them off chasing what he says is a ”ghost story” that people trot
out when they need budget money. When Harris leaves, Nadine calls in the Marshals.

Back at the ranch, Solotov watches and listens to Julie, Mary and the ranch manager Estella
as they load into the car and head to church for a food drive. The priest, who has a steer head
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tattoo on his arm, checks in on Julie, who says she’s doing better. Later, Solotov shows up to
the church food drive as Travis and chats up the Swagger ladies. He gets a call that something
is wrong.

In Mexico, Ali, Johnson, and Swagger scope out the banker’s compound to plan their assault.
With their hostage driving, Ali and Johnson ride in the truck up to the gate. They come out
shooting with Ali providing cover from the hills. Inside the house, the banker races to finish a
transaction on his computer. When Swagger busts in, he orders the banker to bankrupt Solotov
to get his attention.

Back at the firing range, Bo Winnick, the annoying man who harassed Julie last time, is
there and gets in her face again. When he steps in front of her to take her lane, she goes into a
controlled rage. With her gun still in her hand, she raises it behind his head – and fires. Right
past his ear. On purpose. The blast bursts Bo’s eardrum and she walks away calmly as he yells
in pain.

Denning packs up his things where he’s been staying, but Memphis notices telltale shadows
of feet on the other side of the front door. She and Denning hide in the closet. The attackers come
in and are steps away when they get radioed that the Marshals are pulling up. Denning wants
to wait for the Marshals, but given that Memphis’ call to them brought killers, she knows they’re
on their own now. Later, Memphis visits Barnes to warn him that she’s being followed and he
should be careful. She and Denning find an airbnb for the night.

Expecting Solotov to show up soon, Swagger heads for the hills to set up on overwatch, while
Johnson stays in the compound with the banker. Outside the compound, Swagger radios Ali
but gets only silence. Then Solotov responds. Ali is badly wounded in a truck pulling up to
the compound. Solotov jumps out and as Swagger races down the hillside to the truck with Ali
trapped inside, it explodes. Swagger goes in the house and finds that Solotov has already killed
the help. Solotov rigs the AC in the basement to gas the house. Outside, tanks and Federales
pull up. Solotov reaches Johnson and the banker, but Johnson uses him as a shield, and Solotov
doesn’t want to lose his money. When Swagger busts in, Solotov jumps out the window and
escapes. Swagger orders the banker to open his safe and finds a ledger. With the Federales
closing in on them in the office, Johnson grows impatient and shoots the banker.

Later, Julie visits her priest to tell him about the guy at the range. Solotov enjoys listening to
her story through her tapped phone.

After they escape, Swagger is angry that yet again Johnson seems to be making things per-
sonal and killing when it isn’t strategic. He thinks they could have gotten more info from the
banker, but Johnson is satisfied that at least Solotov can’t get his money from him. They ride
in angry silence back to the border, but come around a curve and run directly into a Federale
road black with no escape. They’re outgunned and know that opening fire would mean death.
Swagger cuts open his seat and stuffs their phones and passports and the ledger. Then Swagger
and Johnson slowly get out and surrender.
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Someplace Like Bolivia

Season 2
Episode Number: 17
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Tuesday August 29, 2017
Writer: John Hlavin
Director: Chloe Domont
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Josh Stewart (Solotov),
Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Troy Garity (Jeffrey Denning), John Marshall Jones (Sheriff Brown),
Jaina Lee Ortiz (Angela Tio), Nestor Serrano (Guest Star), Gina Gal-
lego (Estella), Anthony Bless (Diego), Brendan McCarthy (Bo Winnick),
Dave Florek (Dr. Wydra), Aurelio De Anda (Mexican Prisoner), Justin
Dray (Willie), Marco Morales (Prison Guard Passenger), Freddie Poole
(Mexican Federale)

Summary: Bob Lee and Isaac must team up to escape a Mexican prison before
Solotov finds them. As Nadine digs deeper into Atlas, the cover-up
points back to Bob Lee’s unit. Julie has problems with the law.

After being stopped by the Federales at
gunpoint, Swagger and Johnson are al-
most relieved to be subject to a shake-
down and not handed over to the cartel.
Instead, they’re taken to a prison where
Acevedo, the warden, wants money, but
doesn’t yet know who they are. Once in
lockup, Johnson is spoiling for a fight and
decks the first inmate who gives him at-
titude. Swagger is angry, pointing out he
just gave up any tactical advantage they
might have had in people not knowing
they could defend themselves. The close

quarters leads the men to relive the events of last year, when Johnson set-up Swagger.
After a trip to his banker’s house in Mexico, Solotov turns his attention to trying to access

his money. Unfortunately, the man he used to access it through is dead and a dozen calls to
international accounts gets him nowhere without the banker’s ledger, which Swagger has.

Julie heads to the firing range, but the manager tells her that he can’t allow her to shoot after
she fired her weapon near Bo Winnick’s head. Julie is frustrated, but turns to leave. Solotov as
”Travis” just happens to be in the parking lot. She invites him to Mary’s first communion at the
church on Sunday, saying that Bob Lee will be there.

In prison, Swagger is disturbed to hear Johnson’s obvious lack of respect for human life.
Johnson says he stopped caring when they killed his wife. Swagger insists nothing makes killing
arbitrarily acceptable, then proves it by stopping a shiv attempt on Johnson by another inmate,
while leaving the attacker wounded but alive. Johnson takes the opportunity to try to clear his
conscience a little, telling Swagger he didn’t agree with the call to send someone to kill him in
prison last year. Johnson claims he feels bad every day about killing Donnie Fenn’s 70-year-old
mother, but insists Jack Payne would have tortured her if he hadn’t. He knows it was wrong and
isn’t looking for redemption.

When Jeffrey Denning shares Zehnder’s discharge papers with Memphis, she notices some-
thing off. The papers include his psych evaluation, which wouldn’t have been released for privacy
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reasons. There’s a signature of the person who released the papers, but it’s redacted. She sus-
pects someone, possibly Johnson, was trying to discredit Zehnder by faking the eval. They head
to visit Angela Tio, hoping for help.

Swagger and Johnson are plotting their escape when the guards come for Swagger. Acevedo
has seen the alerts for them in connection with the death of the banker, Carlos Cruz. He’s after
the contents of the banker’s safe, which Swagger stuffed in the truck seat when they were pulled
over. Acevedo offers to let Swagger go if he turns it over, but Swagger plays dumb. When he
returns to the yard he tells Johnson that he’s in the Federales system, which they both know
means Solotov will be coming soon.

They start a fight and try to sneak out in the chaos, but run into the gangster that Johnson
punched, who isn’t inclined to help them leave. The warden is out of patience when neither
Marine is willing to give him the ledger, so he locks them in small upright wooden boxes (think:
standing coffin) in the hot Mexico sun. With nowhere to go, Swagger asks Johnson again why he
set him up last year. Johnson thought he was doing important work with Gregson and wanted
to know what it was like to be in charge. He claims he saw setting up Swagger as a mission and
took his emotions out of it, but they both know that’s a lie. Swagger passes out briefly in the heat
and when he comes to, Johnson is gone. Acevedo tells him Johnson agreed to his deal but won’t
give him what he wants until he sees Swagger go free. Swagger briefly fights back as an excuse
to get slammed to the warden’s desk and swipe something. He slips it to Johnson as they pass
on his way out, saying he’ll see him soon.

Julie is shopping by herself in a hardware store when a man runs into her cart then makes
it clear he’s a friend of Bo Winnick. Another man shows up and soon Mary sees Bo himself, with
his bandaged ear from her gunshot. The men try to intimidate her. Winnick has learned about
Bob Lee and thinks he’s good for a payout, but Julie isn’t in the mood for a shakedown and
threatens to sic Bob Lee on him instead, warning him to stay away.

In the back of a Federale car, Swagger understands the driver and his friend as they discuss
where to kill him. Luckily, he has loosened the screen separating him from the front cab and
easily kicks it out onto them, getting a gun. He pulls over and learns the location of the car
impound lot and that Acevedo plans to kill Johnson, too.

Tio reluctantly agrees to access Zehnder’s records for Memphis and Denning, to confirm that
someone altered them. Tio goes inside the record room, but takes too long to come back. When
Memphis follows her trail, she discovers that Tio, and the box of records, are in the wind. They
stop by her barracks, which has been cleaned out except for a book with a photo of her with a
man inside. Denning thinks it looks like the man is in hospital scrubs, but Memphis recognizes
them as something else.

In his box at the prison, Johnson works on the screws with a coin Swagger slipped to him.
Acevedo comes for him, wanting to know where the ledger is. He tells him it’s in Swagger’s truck.
The guards throw him back in a box, but it’s a different one and he’s back to square one with
the screws. Meanwhile, after hearing through Julie’s tapped phone that Swagger is in Mexico,
Solotov finds Johnson in the Federale database and shows up at the prison, posing as an ATF
agent ready to bend the rules. He bribes Acevedo, who takes him to the wooden boxes, but
Johnson’s box is empty. Acevedo has outlived his usefulness, so Solotov steps behind him and
shoots him in the head. After Solotov walks away, Johnson emerges from another box where he
was hiding and helps himself to Acevedo’s gun as he goes.

Tio comes home in Columbus to find Memphis and Denning waiting for her. Her brother gets
out of prison in nearby Mansfield in four months, on a reduced sentence. Someone paid off
the house right around the time she heard the name Hugh Meachum. She agrees to tell them
everything, but worries who else might be after her.

After retrieving the ledger from the truck at the impound lot, Swagger buries it and the safe
contents in the desert and heads for home. Meanwhile, Johnson makes his way to freedom
outside the prison, but he has a long way to go. Swagger returns back to Texas in a harried
and disheveled state and only has long enough to tell Julie that Ali is dead and he doesn’t know
where Johnson is before Sheriff Brown shows up. But he’s not there for Bob Lee — Bo Winnick
filed a complaint, the sheriff is there for Julie.
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That’ll Be the Day

Season 2
Episode Number: 18
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Tuesday September 5, 2017
Writer: Scott Gold
Director: Jaime Reynoso
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson),

Cynthia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Josh Stewart (Solotov),
Shantel VanSanten (Julie Swagger)

Guest Stars: Tony Amendola (Priest), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Troy Garity
(Jeffrey Denning), Amin Joseph (Martin Jacobs), Jaina Lee Ortiz (An-
gela Tio), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Gina Gallego (Estella), Dave Flo-
rek (Dr. Wydra), Brendan McCarthy (Bo Winnick), Corin Nemec (Guest
Star), Harry Hamlin (Addison Hayes), Beverly D’Angelo (National Secu-
rity Advisor Gregson), Sasha Golberg (Russian Soldier #2), Katie John-
son (Sarah Beckett), Ted Larkin (Militia Man #2), Dimiter D. Marinov
(Russian Officer)

Summary: Bob Lee tries to draw Solotov into the open, but realizes the Chechen
holds the upper hand. Flashbacks reveal the origins of Solotov, while
Isaac is courted by his creator in the present.

Chechen-Russian Conflict, 2005 —
Surrounded by carnage in the midst of
war, Solotov protects dozens of people
hunkered down in a warehouse. He takes
out every attacker he sees, but he’s no
match for the sarin gas. He collapses.
Moments later, Addison Hayes makes his
way through the gas clouds, in a suit,
naturally, and gets help dragging an un-
conscious Solotov away from the gas. He
injects him with adrenaline Pulp Fiction-
style and Solotov sputters back to life.
”Welcome back, welcome home,” Hayes

says.

Present time — At the Swagger ranch, Bob Lee tries to understand why Julie would blow out
Bo Winnick’s ear. She tells him she hasn’t felt right since before Frankfurt. He listens to her,
validating her stress and assuring her he’s on her side. But he wants her to leave town so he
can deal with Solotov. She refuses, especially since Sheriff Brown has said she can’t leave the
county, and Mary’s First Communion is tomorrow.

In Columbus, Ohio, Tio tells Jeffrey Denning and Memphis that everything Kirk Zehnder was
claiming was true. The CIA was selling heroin in Afghanistan and Atlas sent in someone posing
as a UN doctor (she doesn’t say who) to kill the mulah’s wife because she knew too much. Tio
is only still alive because she took their money. When Zehnder started talking, they ordered her
to discredit him so Denning wouldn’t have a reliable source for his story. Memphis makes plans
with her office to transport Tio to safety at a regional office in Dayton, although Tio is terrified
and sure Atlas can get her anywhere, anytime.

Swagger picks up a satellite phone he got from the banker and pushes redial. Hayes answers.
When Swagger says he wants to talk to Solotov, Hayes tells Swagger to hang onto the phone
and Solotov will call because he wants his money. Julie finds Bob Lee packing up to go out on
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overwatch in the dark. He’s bothered that she didn’t tell him she was having problems, but she
points out he kept information from her, too, about the threat when they got back from Frankfurt.

At the border, Isaac Johnson swims across the Rio Grande and into Texas. Militia men find
him walking through the tunnel. He puts his hands up and informs them he’s American and
armed. The good ol’ boys throw some racists threats his way and Johnson can tell he’s not safe.
When one is close enough, Johnson grabs his knife and stabs him in the foot. Johnson is relieved
when actual law enforcement shows up and arrests him. In jail, Johnson gets a visit from a guard
who tells him that Patricia Gregson denied knowing him and he’s being extradited to Mexico for
killing a man – and it’s all on video.

Hayes finds Gregson, wanting to be reassured that everything went as planned at the border.
They have clearly known and been working together for years, even if they aren’t friendly.

Swagger is on overwatch outside his house when Solotov finally calls. He’s set up a few hun-
dreds yards away. Solotov asks if his boss hesitated before selling him out, Swagger says no, but
Solotov still won’t give him Hayes’ name, saying he’s more dangerous than Swagger knows. Solo-
tov claims that he let Swagger live in Afghanistan because he felt kinship with him after watching
him for weeks, but Swagger thinks he just missed. The two snipers analyze each other’s positions
in the hills, deducing where they might have set up. Solotov makes clear that he’s nearby and
can take everything that matters to Swagger.

A car comes for Johnson, but they’re clearly not Mexican Federales. It’s Hayes. ”I’m sorry Ms.
Gregson was so unaccommodating, but I do think I’m much more suited to help you than she
is,” he says. Hayes explains things to Johnson in a scene that mirrors his talk with Solotov in
Bucharest, Romania in 2005. Both men are without family or resources and Hayes told both
they had to set aside their emotions to work for ”the invisible hand that maintains order in a
chaotic world.” Hayes says now that Solotov forgot that invisibility is essential to their success.
He claims Solotov killed Johnson’s wife, Lin. Back in 2005, Solotov saw he didn’t have much
choice but to work for Hayes, and Johnson sees the same as Hayes orders him to kill Solotov.
Later, as Johnson selects his weapon from the Atlas armory, another member cautions Johnson
that once he’s in, there’s no getting out – that was Solotov’s mistake.

Julie goes to Bo Winnick’s house and gives him one of Bob Lee’s guns as a peace offering. She
says her family has been through hell and going to jail would break her and Mary. Bo scoffs at
her gesture and says she’s lucky it isn’t loaded. Prepping for his own fight, Solotov listens as Bo
rages at her and all Swaggers.

Swagger studies Solotov’s tracks outside his house and notices markings different from a
typical long gun set-up. He researches in guns and ammo magazines and finds a kind of tripod
that would make the marks he found – the kind of thing a man with a broken arm would use
to fire from distance! On his way to Mary’s communion later, Swagger drops by the firing range
to find out if he’s sold any equipment that could be used to prop up a long gun, like something
someone might use if they had an injured hand. The range owner asks if Swagger’s inquiries have
anything to do with Julie’s friend with the broken arm. Swagger’s ears perk up and he races out
after hearing the man’s build generally matches Solotov.

At the church, Julie is recording Mary’s First Communion when Bob Lee calls. Solotov is
sitting in the back of the church. Swagger races there, calling Julie frantically, but she’s not
answering. Meanwhile, Johnson does recon outside. Swagger pulls up outside the church and
grabs a handgun, which he wraps in his blazer jacket. He sits behind Solotov in the church and
threatens to kill him right there. Then Solotov reveals the bomb vest under his jacket and says
there’s another at the front of the church and he’s holding a dead man’s switch, so if Swagger
shoots him, the bomb detonates and they all die.

On the road in a neighborhood, Memphis and Denning are forced to slow down when a home-
less woman’s cart of stuff is overturned in the road. Memphis notices it seems too clean and they
speed off, trying to avoid a set-up. But Tio gets anxious and jumps out of the car. She races to a
nearby bus and gets on, bumping into a woman in a suit. The woman keeps walking to a car and
reveals the syringe in her hand. Memphis catches up to Tio on the bus but she’s already con-
vulsing with blood frothing out of her mouth. With her dying breath, she tells Memphis: ”Hayes
is Atlas.”

In the church, Solotov explains that he wants all of Atlas’ money, not just his own. Swagger
calls it revenge; he calls it justice. In the front of the church, as angry as Julie is that Bob Lee is
late, she notices something off between her husband and the man she knows as Travis. Swagger
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gives Solotov his gun and offers to leave with him if he doesn’t detonate the bombs. Solotov agrees
and they leave together out the front door. They’re not clear of the church when Johnson steps
out and yells at Swagger to get down. Swagger shouts ”no” and dives in front of Johnson’s bullet
to prevent Solotov’s bomb inside the church from detonating. Johnson’s bullet hits Swagger in
the back and he goes down. Solotov fires back. Solotov helps Swagger into his SUV and tells him
to tell Johnson not to fire. Johnson watches as Solotov drives off with Swagger.

In Washington, D.C, a supremely pissed off Memphis barges into her ex Harris Barnes’ office,
but she’s not there to see him, she’s there for his boss: Senator Addison Hayes.

Back at her house, Julie packs up frantically but notices the barn door is open. She takes a
gun out of the safe and goes to inspect. She finds Johnson inside. She holds her weapon on him
as he explains what happened outside at the church. When she explains how she knows Solotov
and that she invited him, Johnson asks if he ever got close to her phone. Johnson smashes it,
realizing it’s why Solotov has always gotten ahead of them. Johnson points out that, because
Swagger is injured, they’re on the clock. He asks if she can handle a gun and she assures him
she can.

In the back of his truck, Solotov pries the bullet out of Swagger’s side and closes him up with
a staple gun. Swagger is in excruciating pain and incapacitated, but alive. ”When I have what I
need, Swagger, then you can die,” Solotov says. ”Until then, we are bound together.”
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Backroads

Season 3
Episode Number: 19
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Thursday June 21, 2018
Writer: T.J. Brady, Rasheed Newson
Director: Jaime Reynoso
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: Josh Stewart (Solotov), John Marshall Jones (Sheriff Brown), Derek
Phillips (Earl Swagger), Tait Blum (Young Bob Lee), Michael Dempsey
(Veterinarian), Wilbur Fitzgerald (James Boyd), Chris Greene (Young
Sheriff Brown), Grant Harvey (Jimmy Poole), Lindsay Pulsipher (June
Swagger), Matt Shallenberger (John Wheeler), Kristin Slaysman (Edie
Poole), Harry Hamlin (Senator Addison Hayes), Eddie Aguirre (Officer
Bayless), Aaron D. Alexander (Bodyguard), Al Coronel (Sheriff Testa),
Chris Wu (Fisher County Officer)

Summary: Bob Lee Swagger is kidnapped by Solotov. Julie and Isaac team up to
save him. Nadine confronts Hayes about Atlas. New information about
Bob Lee’s father Earl Swagger sets off a new mission.

Bob Lee Swagger is badly wounded and
being held by the Chechen sniper T. Solo-
tov, who only needs Swagger alive long
enough to tell him where he hid the bank
ledger for Atlas, Solotov’s former em-
ployer. Meanwhile, Isaac Johnson, who
recently agreed to start working for At-
las, and Julie Swagger, who is just try-
ing to save her husband, are on their tail.
In Washington, D.C., FBI Agent Nadine
Memphis confronts Sen. Addison Hayes
for his role in Atlas. In the desperate race
to save Swagger, memories of the past

and hints of the future indicate that there is more to Atlas than we know.

West Texas, 1988 — Late at night, Sheriff Earl Swagger pulls up next to a barn and windmill
and calls out for a man named Jimmy Poole, who has escaped from prison. Earl tries to convince
Jimmy to drop his weapon, but he opens fire. Earl is hit before Jimmy falls. Earl makes it to his
car to radio in for help. But before he can give his position, he’s felled with a shot to the heart.

Present time — Bob Lee Swagger wakes up in Solotov’s car and promptly jumps out of the mov-
ing vehicle. He’s badly wounded and handcuffed, but he stumbles over uneven ground, ripping
the staples from his side until he collapses. Solotov finds him easily. Swagger explains that with
his staples out he figures he has 20 minutes until he bleeds out, and they’re nowhere near a
hospital so Solotov isn’t getting the ledger. Solotov knocks him out and takes him to a nearby
veterinarian. As he fades in and out of consciousness, Bob Lee remembers the day his father
died. They went hunting and his dad stressed the importance of not racking a bullet until he had
the shot, making him repeat ”if it ain’t loaded, it ain’t lethal.” They were interrupted when now-
Sheriff Brown told them about Jimmy’s escape. Swagger wakes up on the veterinarian’s table.
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The vet distracts Solotov and tries to run, giving Swagger a chance to put a horseshoe under the
car tire. The vet doesn’t get far before Solotov cuts him down. To convince Swagger to give him
the ledger, Solotov sets up on sheriff’s deputies and prepares to take aim. Swagger finally agrees,
to ensure no one else gets hurt.

In his office, Nadine Memphis confronts Sen. Hayes about running Atlas, which he flatly de-
nies before leveling veiled threats. Later, Memphis meets up with Hayes’ aide and her ex Harris
Downey, who confirms Hayes called Patricia Gregson, the deputy director of the Defense Intel-
ligence Agency, after she left. Memphis takes Harris to see Jeffrey Denning but they find him
hanging in his apartment. Harris finally believes his boss is what Memphis says he is.

Isaac Johnson and Julie Swagger toss Solotov’s hotel room and find GPS coordinates, which
led them to an empty house and an ambush. They take out the handful of Atlas guns waiting for
them. Later, Johnson gets a call from Hayes, telling him where Solotov is headed.

Swagger remembers his parents fighting the day his dad died, with his mom not wanting
his dad to go after the escaped con on his day off. But Earl insisted he had to because it was
Jimmy. Out on the road, Solotov and Swagger encounter a roadblock. Solotov speeds up to blast
through it, betting that the deputies won’t fire with Swagger in the car beside him. Swagger tries
to stop Solotov, but he opens fire and they speed around. Fading in and out, Swagger remembers
his father talking to Jimmy’s wife, who relays a message that it’s a big misunderstanding and
Jimmy wants to talk to him by the windmill. Out on the road, Solotov’s car sputters to a stop.
Swagger intervenes to keep Solotov from killing a man in a pick-up who stops. When they reach
the campground where the ledger is buried, Solotov again warns Swagger that if he doesn’t get
the ledger, Julie and Mary die. As they walk the few miles to the buried book, Solotov claims that
he and Swagger have a common aim of wanting to destroy Atlas. When Swagger says he doesn’t
care about Atlas, Solotov brings up Earl Swagger’s death, and the fact he wasn’t alone when he
died. We flash back to what turns out to be another of Bob Lee’s memories from that day — from
the back of his dad’s patrol car, where he stowed away to be near his dad. Bob Lee saw his father
murdered.

Memphis confronts Hayes at a hotel where he’s waiting for his mistress. Harris watches as
Memphis taunts his boss with the news that the ledger is missing and he’s broke. Hayes remains
calm, but does manage to fire Harris. As he waits for his car later, Hayes tells a mysterious man
the mission is still a go.

Solotov tells Bob Lee that the Swaggers and Atlas have been mixed up since the beginning,
and it wasn’t luck that Johnson framed him. Johnson and Julie arrive at the campsite parking
lot as Swagger and Solotov reach the ledger. Swagger warns Solotov that it’s booby trapped, but
Solotov doesn’t buy it and starts digging. He finds the ledger buried with a gun. He takes both
out and raises the gun to shoot Swagger. But Swagger is ready. He breaks out of his zip tie
and charges Solotov, who squeezes the trigger, only to find it wasn’t loaded. Swagger goes for
Solotov’s broken wrist and the two fight for their lives until Swagger finally gets the upper hand
by cracking Solotov’s head on a rock. With Solotov beaten, Swagger picks up Solotov’s gun and
says of his own, ”if it ain’t loaded, it ain’t lethal.” Then he pulls the trigger on Solotov’s, which
most certainly is, and finally finishes off the Chechen sniper. As he fades out in the desert sun,
Swagger remembers Sheriff Brown being there after his father was killed. He got Bob Lee out of
the car and told him that no good could ever come of anyone knowing he was there that night.
Julie and Johnson wake Swagger. Johnson takes the ledger, promising he’s going to go finish
things.

More than a week later, Hayes is surprised but pleased to find Johnson waiting for him in his
hotel room after making his way across the country undetected. Hayes likes that Johnson told
Swagger his family is safe as long as he forgets about the ledger. ”It actually serves my purpose
to let him think we have a deal,” Hayes says, as he pours himself a Scotch. When Johnson asks
about his plans for Memphis, Hayes says he’s having her and Gregson investigated. He reaches
for the ledger but Johnson holds onto it. Then Hayes starts to get woozy. Memphis walks out.
Hayes starts sputtering. Memphis explains to Hayes that he’s having a heart attack. He falls to
the floor, telling them ”this changes nothing.” As Hayes dies, Johnson announces to Memphis:
”This is who I am now. Are you sure you want to go down this road?” Memphis says she used to
believe in the rule of law, but she sees that laws won’t stop Atlas. ”I quit the FBI this morning,”
she says. ”Time to start my new job.”

In a small basement apartment filled with computer screens, ”The Jackal” sits down and sees
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the news about Hayes’ death. He opens a locked case and makes a secure call, giving a code and
asking how to proceed. He answers: ”Yes, but I’ll still need the card.”
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Red Meat

Season 3
Episode Number: 20
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Thursday June 28, 2018
Writer: John Hlavin
Director: David Straiton
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: David Andrews (Sam Vincent), John Marshall Jones (Sheriff Brown),
Eric Ladin (Red Bama Junior), Sandy Martin (Adele Poole), Conor
O’Farrell (Rick Culp), Grant Harvey (Jimmy Poole), Lexy Kolker (Mary
Swagger), Sydney Wease (Suzy Poole), Beverly D’Angelo (National Secu-
rity Advisor Gregson), Elena Dizon (Bama Assistant), Chiquita Fuller
(Female Prison Guard), Katie Johnson (Sarah Beckett), Rhomeyn
Johnson (Bank Guard), Corey Mendell Parker (Capitol Policeman Bill),
Derek Phillips (Earl Swagger (voice)), Dale Godboldo (Guest Star),
Brian Letscher (Guest Star), Billy Lush (Guest Star), Delaina Mitchell
(Anne Murphy), Matt Shallenberger (John Wheeler)

Summary: Bob Lee visits a local prison for answers about his dad’s murder. Julie
takes a job helping the family lawyer. Nadine and Isaac grab Harris
Downey, who knows more about Atlas than he realizes.

Bob Lee Swagger is trying to heal and
move on, but the fact that Solotov knew
details about his father’s murder doesn’t
sit right with him. He starts digging with
the help of Sheriff Justin Brown and
quickly runs into people who would like
Earl Swagger to remain buried in the
past.

Swagger visits the Wilson peniten-
tiary, where Jimmy Poole escaped from
30 years ago. The warden Rick Culp is
evasive and Swagger is suspicious when
he sees provisions from the Bama Cattle

company everywhere; he remembers hearing they were hiring undocumented labor and cut a deal
with the Feds. The warden abruptly wraps things up, then calls Bama Cattle to report Swagger
was poking around. Next, Swagger meets Sheriff Brown at the now-closed bank that Jimmy Poole
robbed the day he escaped. Poole’s case file only leads to more questions, like where did he get
the gun he used, and why did he shoot a security guard on his way out when he already had
the cash? Even stranger, he left the money in his stolen car then walked down the street and
ate a cheeseburger as the sheriff’s deputies closed in. Brown suggests Jimmy was waiting for a
gunfight, but left when Earl didn’t show up. But Swagger thinks he was waiting for a ride.

Nadine Memphis and Isaac Johnson pressure Harris Downey into using his security clearance
to get access to Hayes’ office safe. While he’s cleaning out the top secret files, the police arrive
and arrest him. But it turns out Team Swagger staged the arrest to sneak the files past Atlas.
Going through the contents of the safe later, they find a kill list with all of their names on it, plus
Solotov, Martin Jacobs, and Carlita Cruise with the Department of Agriculture. Johnson and
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Memphis visit Cruise’s apartment and find it empty. Memphis finds her ”go bag” under the sink
and accidentally sets off the flash bangs at the bottom of it. Memphis is dazed but OK. They’ve
found another member of Atlas. Meanwhile, ”the Jackal” visits Hayes’ office on the trail of the
files.

Swagger pays a visit to the Poole farm. Jimmy’s mother Adele and nephew Johnny aren’t
Swagger family fans. Bob Lee wants to know why Jimmy would run if he only had two weeks left
on his sentence. His mother says he had a job lined up at Bama Cattle. They tell Swagger that
Jimmy’s wife, Edie, ran off after he was killed. On his way out, Johnny’s teenage daughter Suzy
tells Swagger her aunt sends her a birthday card every year. He notices the bruises on her arms.
On his way home, Swagger stops to fill up his car and hears gunshots coming from inside the
station. He investigates and sees second gunman covering the entrance. He goes around back
and has a clean shot at the first robber, and hits him in the hand. He tackles the second robber,
demanding to know why the man was waiting for him. When Sheriff Brown arrives later, he tells
Swagger the men worked for Bama Cattle. Swagger thinks the hold-up was a set-up for him.

The next day, Swagger barges into the office of Red Bama Jr. at Bama Cattle and confronts
him about the hold-up. Red plays dumb. Swagger isn’t having it. ”When I hunt, I like to look at
my prey up close, to see what I’m dealing with,” he says. After Swagger’s visit, Greg starts doing
lines of cocaine and freaking out. He wants to gas up the jet and leave, but his henchman Bert
lets him know is dad is on the way and gave strict orders for them to proceed as if everything is
normal. Greg is clearly afraid of his dad.

When he comes home, Swagger finds Sheriff Brown waiting for him. Red Bama filed a re-
straining order against him. When Swagger says he won’t quit ’til he knows the truth, Brown
brings him back to his office and plays him a tape of his dad’s radio from the night of the mur-
der. The final shot doesn’t sound right to the sniper’s ear. The shot report comes over a full
second later, which means it couldn’t have been Jimmy, who was only 20 feet away. There was
a second shooter. Swagger visits his lawyer Sam Vincent, with Brown and Julie backing him up
in his request to exhume his dad’s body. As they stand over the gravesite later, Bert observes
from afar. Before the excavator starts digging, Swagger realizes they’re in the wrong place — his
dad was buried next to veterans. They Earl’s headstone was moved, but they find the right spot
and dig. After examining the body, the coroner reports he found three bullets and a patch with
an eagle and stars and stripes on top of the body. The bullet he found in the chest wound was a
rifle round. ”My dad was killed by a sniper,” Swagger says.
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Sins of the Father

Season 3
Episode Number: 21
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Thursday July 5, 2018
Writer: Amanda Segel
Director: Amanda Marsalis
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: Adam J. Harrington (Guest Star), Eric Ladin (Red Bama Jr.), Conor
O’Farrell (Rick Culp), Derek Phillips (Earl Swagger), Felisha Terrell
(Carlita), Tom Wright (Jason Colby), Brian Letscher (Guest Star), Matt
Shallenberger (John Wheeler), Julian Graham (Jason / Host), Floyd
Anthony Johns Jr. (Man in Leather Jacket), George Lako (Marine),
Matthew Law (Young Colby), Jason Nguyen (V.C.), Michael Ocampo
(Young Gutierrez), Lindsay Pulsipher (June Swagger), Michael Segovia
(O’Shea), Noah Staggs (Skeet Operator), Kayli Tran (Hue)

Summary: Bob Lee investigates the local slaughterhouse as part of his investiga-
tion into his father’s death. Isaac and Nadine must form an uneasy
alliance with an Atlas agent.

Bob Lee Swagger continues digging into
his father’s past while babysitting Har-
ris Downey so that Nadine Memphis and
Isaac Johnson can keep shaking the At-
las tree. Swagger tries to turn up the
heat on Bama Cattle, but only manages
to poke the bear. Red Bama Jr. gets a
thoroughly emasculating visit from his fa-
ther, Red Bama Sr., who chastises him for
going after Swagger and missing. It turns
out Sr. is Undersecretary for the Depart-
ment of Agriculture for the past three ad-
ministrations, and it can’t be a coinci-

dence that’s where the missing Carlita Cruise worked.
After Memphis and Johnson deliver Harris to Swagger in Texas for safekeeping, they visit

another address for Carlita Cruise in Baltimore, Maryland. She’s waiting for them. She tries to
convince them she wants to help, noting the only way off an Atlas kill list is to kill Atlas. She
explains that half the agents in Atlas don’t even know who they work for, so to get anywhere up
the Atlas chain they need access to a cleaner who has more direct contact with the bosses. She
proposes using herself as bait.

In Texas, Swagger drags Harris along to rattle Rick Culp, the guard who was on duty the day
Jimmy Poole escaped, now the warden. Culp stumbles out of a bar early in the morning and after
a brief confrontation, they follow him to directly to Bama Cattle, where he tries to shakedown
Red Bama Jr. for more money. Senior ends the negotiation with a knife to Culp’s neck. He’s
concerned about staying on schedule. Driving away, Harris is bothered that Swagger knew what
might happen to Culp and didn’t intervene, but Swagger says Culp made his choice 30 years ago.
They follow the Bamas to their country club. Swagger strolls up and asks about Atlas and why
Sr. paid Culp to let Jimmy Poole walk out of prison. Sr. insults and taunts Swagger, but gives up
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nothing, other than a sly suggestion that Earl Swagger may have had a relationship with Edie
Poole, Jimmy’s wife. Sr. does a double take when Swagger introduces Harris, but Swagger gets
nowhere before they’re thrown out.

Johnson and Memphis stake out Carlita as she does an Atlas drop. They follow her as she
is followed by an agent, then exchange gunfire with him while Carlita doubles back to get the
cleaner following them all. She grabs his secure phone and demands to know where Rousseau
is. When the cleaner won’t talk, she shoots him and disappears. Johnson and Memphis head
back to Carlita’s safe house and are barely surprised when she’s not there. But they find she left
them her passcode generator to go with the secure phone as a lovely parting gift.

In a series of flashbacks from Earl Swagger’s files, we see that after a particularly heroic
mission, a man named Rousseau recruited Earl for something he promised would lead to a
better life. In the Intelligence Program training, Rousseau reveals that Earl Swagger is there
for his leadership abilities, the way men follow him without question. For part of that training,
Earl and his men, including one named Colby, were held in bamboo cages in the blistering sun
without water to test their resolve. Earl passed and is eventually welcomed to ”the family.” Colby
quit, but his name is the only one in Earl Swagger’s file, so Harris and Bob Lee pay him a visit.
(While walking up to Colby’s house, Harris suggests they try a ”Simon & Simon” approach — a
winking reference to the 1980s detective show that starred Gerald McRaney.)

Colby recognizes Bob Lee immediately and tells him that after they got back, Earl came to
him asking about the men running the unit. He was killed two weeks later. They’re interrupted
when an SUV pulls up and Bama Cattle men pour out shooting. Colby and Swagger fire back
but Colby is hit. He tells Downey to grab his shadow box of medals, and points them to a trap
door exit before he dies. Outside, Swagger barks at Downey to run for the car, but Downey gets
brave along the way and tackles one of the gunmen. They grapple for his gun while Swagger goes
hand to hand with Bert Sallinger, with Swagger finally finishing him. Downey manages to get the
gun and fires, killing the man and ending up covered in blood. Swagger points out the men were
coming for Downey, too; he must know more than he thinks.

Red Bama Jr. joins his father in his office, gloating that it’s not so easy to kill Bob Lee Swagger.
His father does not appreciate his tone, and grabs his son by the neck, telling him Sallinger
is dead because of his mistake. ”Don’t you go peacocking around me again or I’ll feed you to
Swagger myself,” his dad snarls. Meanwhile, back at the Swagger ranch, Bob Lee notices a
Phoenix program patch in Colby’s shadow box. It matches the one buried with his dad. Then
Downey remembers that Sen. Addison Hayes used to meet with a bunch of old Phoenix guys
once a month. They realize that Phoenix became Atlas, and Earl Swagger was one of the founding
fathers.
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The Importance of Service

Season 3
Episode Number: 22
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Thursday July 12, 2018
Writer: Jennifer Cacicio
Director: Christopher Schrewe
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: David Andrews (Sam Vincent), Nelson Lee (Adam Lee), Derek Phillips
(Earl Swagger), Tait Blum (Young Bob Lee), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swag-
ger), Billy Lush (Johnny Poole), Matt Shallenberger (John Wheeler),
Kristin Slaysman (Edie Poole), Sydney Wease (Suzy Poole), Tom Crisp
(Perimeter Guard), Christina King (Old Woman), Ted Larkin (Frank),
Tierre Turner (Homeless Guy), Troy Tomerlin Jr. (Bus Driver)

Summary: Armed with new details, Bob Lee hunts for the men responsible for
Earl’s murder. Julie follows a lead of her own. When Harris gets
grabbed, Bob Lee joins Nadine and Isaac on a rescue mission.

Bob Lee Swagger approaches Red Bama
Sr. again with questions about Phoenix
and Atlas. Bama suggests that Earl
Swagger was having an affair with Edie
Poole and the Pooles killed Earl for it.
Bama offers to leave Swagger alone if he
turns over Harris Downey. Instead, Swag-
ger puts Downey on a bus to Dallas, but
Bama doesn’t give up that easily.

When the secure Atlas phone rings,
Nadine Memphis and Isaac Johnson split
up to cover the possible locations of the
next target, an arms broker named Lee.

Memphis grabs Lee before Atlas can get to him and leaves him in a hotel room with Johnson to
go collect Downey from Dallas. Memphis is outside the bus station on the phone with Downey as
he gets off the bus, but she never makes it to him – he’s snatched up. When Johnson hears the
news, he hangs Lee off the hotel balcony. Upside-down Lee names the places he’s set up explo-
sives for Atlas, including a place in Missouri called Five Mile. This means something to Johnson,
but he doesn’t think very highly of Lee’s occupation. He drops Lee to the ground below.

When Swagger rolls up, Johnny Poole thinks he has come to cause trouble for their opioid
operation. While Swagger is distracted, another Poole knocks him out with a stun gun and he
wakes up tied to a chair with Johnny throwing darts at him. Johnny’s daughter, Suzy, tries to
intervene, and gets hit in the head for her trouble. Swagger is more annoyed than worried about
his situation. He quickly cuts himself free and tackles the bigger Poole to the ground, twisting
his arm and demanding answers. The man insists that if a Poole had shot Earl, they never would
have kept quiet about it. Swagger is about to leave when he hears them yelling at Suzy, so he
doubles back to throw the Poole men around and let them know he’ll be watching if anything
happens to her. When he reaches his car, there’s a note saying ”Daley’s feed and saddlery.”
Swagger remembers his dad taking him there to see Edie.

At Red Bama Sr.’s farm house, Downey is offered a job in exchange for an item that Hayes
had in his safe. Bama Sr. says it belonged to him and shows Downey a picture of something
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he calls the ”god box,” a small white thing that looks like a thick keycard. It was made by a
German mathematician and can decrypt something. Downey tells him truthfully that he’s never
seen anything like it.

Johnson, Memphis, and Bob Lee Swagger make plans to rescue Downey. Johnson initially
holds back, but then confesses that he’s been to the Five Mile location where Lee sent explo-
sives. It’s owned by the Department of Agriculture, meaning Red Bama Sr., and Johnson went
to a meeting a few years ago with CIA Agent Hugh Meachum. It’s where they decided to set up
Swagger.

The next day, Swagger sneaks up to the remote property. He takes out one guard and watches
as Bama has Downey taken away to a mineshaft entrance. In the dark tunnel, Downey babbles
for his life and then remembers Swagger’s self-defense lesson and fights back. When the wounded
guard returns to Bama with a bleeding face, Bama orders him to blow the mine. Swagger hears
the order over the radio and finds Downey in the dark. Above ground, Memphis tries to tackle a
gunman – instead of shooting him – and is losing when Johnson arrives and shoots him. Before
Johnson can lecture her on needing to be more ruthless, she recovers her gun just in time to
kill the man sneaking up on Johnson. The ground starts rumbling with the explosion and the
mine entrance shed is blown to smithereens. A few moments later, Swagger and Downey come
sputtering out of another exit — smoky but unscathed.

Julie Swagger, who is feeling shut out by Bob Lee, reveals that she paid Edie Poole a visit. Edie
told her it was all true. It started as pen pals while Earl was in Vietnam and developed after Earl
arrested Jimmy a decade later. Julie gives Bob Lee a stack of Earl’s letters that Edie gave her. In
the Swagger’s panic room, Johnson and Memphis take stock of what Bama Sr. was looking for.
They realize that if they don’t have the ”god box” keycard from the safe, then Patricia Gregson
must.
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A Call to Arms

Season 3
Episode Number: 23
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Thursday July 19, 2018
Writer: Matt Bosack
Director: David Straiton
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: David Andrews (Sam Vincent), Derek Phillips (Earl Swagger), Fel-
isha Terrell (Carlita), Tait Blum (Young Bob Lee), Miguel Perez (Ra-
mon Gutierrez), Lindsay Pulsipher (June Swagger), Matt Shallenberger
(John Wheeler), Beverly D’Angelo (National Security Advisor Gregson),
Jay Hieron (Hulking Agent), David Andrew Nash (Campus Cop), Justin
Gant (Scarred Agent), DJ Jenkins (Red Bama’s Bodyguard), Dana
Schick (DC Elite), Eric Watson (Bookworm)

Summary: Bob Lee visits a friend of Earl’s to ask about a rogue operation in
Vietnam. He then joins his team to crash an event in D.C., where they
cross paths with an operative on a mission of his own.

Red Bama Sr. gets in his car outside his
house, but instead of his driver behind
the wheel he finds Atlas operative Jack
Long, who is impatient over the delay in
the return of the decryption card. Long
lets Bama know he’s on the clock.

Still looking for Phoenix/Atlas an-
swers, Swagger remembers his dad men-
tioning a man in his squad named Ra-
mon Gutierrez. Swagger tracks him down
through the VA and pays him a visit at
a rundown apartment building. Gutier-
rez remembers Earl Swagger as the nicest

man he ever met, which doesn’t sound like the Earl that Bob Lee knew. And when Gutierrez tells
the wrong story about how he hurt his leg — Earl told Bob Lee the real Gutierrez accidentally
shot himself — Bob Lee knows it’s a set up. Another operative busts in and tries to take on
Swagger but it doesn’t go well. Swagger throws them both around the apartment.

Nadine Memphis and Isaac Johnson decide the way to get to Red Bama Sr., and Atlas, is
to get the thing he wants. They grab Patricia Gregson from her office and explain they want to
draw out the other Atlas members by dangling the decryption card, and she’s going to get it for
them. Later, Gregson approaches Bama with an offer: the card — and Memphis and Johnson on
a platter — in exchange for a seat at the Atlas table.

Armed with an address in D.C. that he got from interrogating the fake Gutierrez, Swagger
goes home and packs a bag. Julie struggles to understand his fixation on his father’s death all
these years later and asks him to think about the family he has now. Swagger remembers his
dad shut him out the same way he’s shutting out Julie now.

In D.C., after the Atlas front Gutierrez gave Swagger proves to be a bust, Memphis makes
a pitch that they, along with Harris Downey, work together. Even if their reasons are different,
they all want Atlas. They know not to trust Gregson, but Swagger and Johnson meet her at
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a high-tech storage facility. She leads them through many layers of security and retrieves the
card where she hid it after swiping it from Hayes’ safe. Then the guns come. Swagger shoves
Gregson to temporary safety inside the bulletproof double doors on the way out and takes out
one gunman, while Johnson dispatches another. A third man comes at Gregson from outside
and she’s trapped inside the doors, unarmed. Finally, both doors open at the same time and
Swagger shoots through to save Gregson.

Unfazed by the Atlas attempt on her life, Gregson calls Bama to keep the meet at Hayes’
memorial. At a university the next day, Harris and Gregson go inside to meet Bama with Swag-
ger, Memphis and Johnson staking out the outside. The place is lousy with security. Gregson
approaches Bama inside and once she shows him the decryption card, he tells her he’ll round
up the other Atlas members and meet her in a room. Swagger spots Jack Long brushing into
Bama and follows him into the basement, but is cut off by another operative in the kitchen. They
grapple back and forth amid pots and pans and Swagger takes him out, then gets just a second
to catch his breath before another man comes at him.

Outside the ballroom on the ground floor, Memphis prepares to take on two approaching Atlas
operatives, but she doesn’t have to. Carlita Cruise jumps out and takes out both men, saying
she still hasn’t managed to get clear of Atlas. They find Harris, who tells them Gregson went to
meet with Atlas. Johnson goes to the room, but it’s empty. Meanwhile, Gregson goes down a dark
hallway, utterly exposed. Jack Long finds her. ”Tell Red he has me to thank when he realizes how
screwed Atlas is,” she says. Long shoots her then looks for the card. It’s not there.

The group finds Gregson’s body and can see they’re too late. They regroup at the bunker.
Since Harris was the last to see her alive, he tries to recreate their interaction and remembers
her straightening his jacket. He finds the decryption card in his pocket. Gregson figured out how
to sacrifice for something bigger than herself after all.

Later, as Swagger prepares to head home, Johnson tells him he understands if he never
forgives him, but he still needs to work out whatever he’s fixated on now so it doesn’t eat him
alive. Bob Lee calls Julie and leaves her a message, promising to stop shutting her out. Swagger
is on his way out of D.C. when his phone rings. It’s the real Ramon Gutierrez. ”Patricia Gregson
said you wanted to talk to me,” he says.
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Lines Crossed

Season 3
Episode Number: 24
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Thursday July 26, 2018
Writer: T.J. Brady, Rasheed Newson
Director: Jessica Lowrey
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: David Andrews (Sam Vincent), Eric Ladin (Red Bama Jr.), Derek
Phillips (Earl Swagger), Tony Plana (Guitierez), Felisha Terrell (Car-
lita), Elizabeth Blackmore (Katherine Mansfield), Chastity Dotson (Re-
becca), Delaina Mitchell (Anna Wallingford), Matt Shallenberger (John
Wheeler), Kevin Derr (Atlas Agent #2), Nelson Grande (Security Guard
#2), Kevin Hall (Atlas Agent #3), Doug Long (Male Titan Employee),
Michael Ocampo (Young Gutierrez), Kila Packett (Security Guard #1),
Eddie Perez (Cop), Antonio Lewis Todd (Atlas Agent #1)

Summary: Bob Lee and Isaac are put through the wringer by a member of Earl’s
Vietnam unit. Julie stands up to the Bama family. Nadine sneaks into
a high tech security facility.

Carlita Cruise and Nadine Memphis prep
Harris Downey for an ostensible dinner
date with an old college friend of his, Re-
becca. She works at Titan Incorporated,
the company name on the decryption
card and happens to be a dead ringer for
Memphis. Harris makes small talk in the
restaurant then brings out the card. Re-
becca is alarmed he has it. Atlas operative
Jack Long watches from across the street
as another operative makes a move in the
restaurant with a syringe for Harris and
Rebecca. Cruise comes from nowhere to

fend off the attacker and hustle the couple out.
Gutierrez explains that Atlas killed Earl Swagger because he was going to expose them and

how they made money. As Phoenix, they got orders from a shadow faction inside the Pentagon
represented by a woman named Katherine Mayfield. Earl taught her how to plan more effective
missions in Vietnam, knowledge that she put to use for the next 40 years for Atlas. One night,
with Earl’s input, their unit targeted a man who was supposedly a Viet Cong general, but once
inside his house, Gutierrez could tell the man wasn’t military and hesitated. So Earl shot the
man and then a woman who ran. As Gutierrez wrestled with guilt, Earl warned him that collat-
eral damage was part of the deal and he’d better keep his mouth shut. Instead of being complicit,
Gutierrez shot himself in the leg on purpose and Earl signed the paperwork to say it happened
during the mission. Gutierrez went home. Years later, he learned the ”general” was actually a
drug smuggler who wouldn’t share his routes and the woman was a prostitute. Gutierrez sug-
gests they talk to Mayfield, who retired abruptly from the Pentagon years ago. She’s committed
to a mental institution, likely for protection.

Julie receives a summons for Bob Lee to be interviewed about the disappearance of former
prison warden Rick Culp, the man on duty when Jimmy Poole walked away years ago. She starts
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digging and discovers that Red Bama Sr. is footing the bill – which is ironic, given that he killed
Culp. Julie visits the Bama ranch, and realizes that by pointing questions at Swagger, Bama
has set the Culps up as likely suspects if anything happens to him. She also finds out that
three months after Earl died, Red got a sweetheart deal for 2,000 acres of government land and
within a year was appointed undersecretary of the Agricultural Department. Later, Julie gets an
unwelcome visit from both Bamas at Sam Vincent’s office about the wrongful death suit Sam is
filing. Senior threatens to make Julie sorry if she proceeds.

Back at the bunker, Rebecca explains that the card decrypts a government communications
network, but you have to access Titan’s internal system to know which one. She rejects Memphis’
offer of protection and leaves – but not before Carlita swipes her Titan access card. Later we see
that leaving was a bad call: Jack Long is waiting for her at her house. Later, Memphis poses
as Rebecca and goes into the Titan offices and up to the secure seventh floor. She uses the
decryption card to get into the computer and is able to access evacuation routes for the president
and other high level officials. She takes pictures as Harris and Carlita wait outside. But when
she’s ready to leave, she finds the door is locked.

In the Titan offices, Jack Long gets by security as police pull up outside. Swagger and Johnson
arrive just in time. They realize the police outside are really Atlas, so Swagger calls in a bomb
threat to 911. An alarm overrides security and Memphis is able to leave the locked room. Swagger
rushes in posing as Homeland Security. Long makes it to the computer room and sees what
Memphis was looking at. From the parking lot, Carlita sees Long leave the building and knows
the Atlas playbook of sending agents in followed by an extraction team. Inside, Memphis sneaks
across a cubical farm as an agent searches for her.

Outside, Johnson and Cruise take out Atlas operatives posing as police while Memphis con-
tinues to try to escape. As she passes through the kitchen she grabs a knife, going for his knee.
Swagger tries to find her inside and they end up on opposite sides of a cube farm. Swagger is
about to take out the Atlas agent tracking Memphis when a squad of real police arrive. But Mem-
phis see an Atlas operative approaching her, with nowhere to run, so she throws up her hands
and surrenders to the real police. Back at the bunker, Team Swagger tries to come up with a way
to rescue Memphis, knowing that Atlas will be all over her. Inside the jail, two guards come for
her and knock her out. They carry her out of the jail and throw her in the back of a waiting SUV.
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Swing Vote

Season 3
Episode Number: 25
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Thursday August 2, 2018
Writer: Scott Gold, Tim Walsh
Director: Christoph Schrewe
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: David Andrews (Sam Vincent), Kurt Fuller (Guest Star), Mallory
Jansen (Margo), Eric Ladin (Red Bama Jr.), Matt Shallenberger (John
Wheeler), Felisha Terrell (Carlita), Dee Wallace (Katherine Mayfield),
Bonnie Bailey-Reed (Clerk), Ken Barefield (Guard #1), Staci Lynn
Fletcher (Supervising Guard), Curtis Lyons (Atlas Agent with Radio),
Brandon Marino (Metro Police Officer), Brandon McKinnie (Guard #2),
Jeni Jones (Patient), Damon O’Daniel (Upscale Politician)

Summary: Bob Lee and Isaac meet with a former high level operative as they close
in on solving Earl’s death. Nadine is sent on a dangerous mission by a
DOJ operative.

Memphis wakes up in the back of an
SUV and is brought to an empty airplane
hangar by Margo, from the Department
of Justice. She knows just enough about
the exploits of Team Swagger to think
they’re criminals. She points out Mem-
phis doesn’t have Patricia Gregson (Bev-
erly D’Angelo) to protect her anymore.
She wants something.

Memphis rejoins the team in the
bunker and explains that the card ac-
cessed top secret evacuation routes for
every VIP in D.C., more than 2,000 peo-

ple. From his sniper training, Bob Lee Swagger (Ryan Phillippe) sees the implications, someone
could drop a bomb then pick people off as they run. But they have no way of knowing when or
how an attack will come. Later, Memphis privately tells Swagger about Margo, and that she could
easily build a case against them. ”We’ve been off the reservation so long we forget what this might
look like through a legal lens,” Memphis says.

Red Bama Sr. (Gerald McRaney) meets with a fellow Atlas member, Andrew Gold, wanting to
delay their plans. But Gold points out the confirmation is already on the calendar. Then Bama
tells him that Earl Swagger’s evidence might be in play, too. But for now, the decryption card is
the priority.

Swagger and Isaac Johnson (Omar Epps) visit former Atlas mission planner Katherine May-
field at Armstrong Psychiatric, where she has been lying low with Atlas’ tacit permission. Their
visit upends that. As soon as they pass security, the front desk guard sends a secure message
about their visit to Bama. A short time later, Jack Long comes through security with a forged ID
badge and plastic gun made using a 3D printer. Mayfield tells them Hayes was going to pick a
chief justice of the Supreme Court that would serve Atlas and be the swing vote for decades to
come. They’re trying to convince her to come with them when Long arrives and shoots Mayfield.
Swagger and Johnson run for it and narrowly escape.
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At Margo’s urging, Memphis sneaks into Gregson’s house to find the burn drive where Gregson
kept all her gathered dirt on Atlas. She gets it, but Bama Sr. sees Carlita Cruise waiting nearby
on the surveillance footage from the house. He calls Gold and asks for a small army to go after
Cruise at the bunker.

In Texas, Julie gets a call to come get Sam Vincent (David Andrews) at the courthouse, where
he’s raving to see a judge that’s been dead 15 years. Once he calms down and is lucid he explains
that he has a tumor and is dying. He also mentions that Bama Jr. came to see him and he has it
all on tape. Then he starts talking about dying on his terms, which Julie does not like the sound
of.

Back at the bunker, they figure Atlas is planning to attack D.C. then take out the senators
opposed to their Supreme Court pick as they flee the city. But before they can make another
move, they see Bama Sr. and his small army arrive. The attack team rigs the door with explosives
as Bama gives them a chance to turn over the card without a fight. Cruise answers by detonating
a land mine near Bama. Bama launches the attack and detonates an explosion that takes the
bunker apart. Inside, Swagger stays to dig through the rubble for the decryption card and the
rest try to find a way out. Johnson grabs a sledgehammer and starts bashing the cinder block to
create an exit while Cruise and Memphis fight off the onslaught. Swagger finally finds the card
and makes his way through the labyrinth of tunnels in the bunker as Johnson and company
make it through the cinder block. They all escape.

Memphis and Swagger meet up with Margo from DOJ while Cruise and Johnson sit on over-
watch. Margo tells them that Gregson was helping her boss in the DOJ investigate Atlas but it
was completely off-book. After Gregson died, her boss disappeared. Margo is the one who en-
crypted Gregson’s Atlas dirt files that Memphis just recovered. She pulls up the files and shows
them names. The first one is Andrew Gold, the man that Bama Sr. was colluding with earlier.
He’s chief of staff to the President. As they talk, Jack Long listens in on surveillance.

In his office late at night, Sam records notes to himself. He’s interrupted by Red Bama Jr.
strolling in with a baseball bat. Earlier, Junior tried to buy Sam off as his dad had directed, but
Sam laughed it off. Junior starts trashing the place. The recorder stays on as Junior shouts that
he wants Earl’s evidence, then he starts beating on Sam. Julie arrives just in time and grabs a
nearby lamp to go after Junior. He fights back and throws her onto the desk then the floor. She
fights him off and he runs. Julie rushes to check on Sam, who is bloodied and battered. She
calls an ambulance.
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The Red Badge

Season 3
Episode Number: 26
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Thursday August 9, 2018
Writer: John Hlavin
Director: Chloe Domont
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: David Andrews (Sam Vincent), Raymond J. Barry (August Russo), Kurt
Fuller (Mr. Gold), John Marshall Jones (Sheriff Brown), Eric Ladin (Red
Bama Jr.), Michael O’Neill (Ray Brooks), Derek Phillips (Earl Swag-
ger), Felisha Terrell (Carlita), Elizabeth Blackmore (Katherine Mans-
field), Chad Michael Collins (Young Ray Brooks), Matt Shallenberger
(John Wheeler), Stefan Brysha (Big Friend #1), Shirley Jordan (Sen-
ator Daitch), Christopher Tardieu (Orderly), Samuel Evan Horowitz
(Big Friend #2), Kade Wise (Stu Oliver), PeiPei Alena Yuan (Vietnamese
Woman)

Summary: Nadine and Isaac’s team take a run at one of the heads of Atlas; An
attempt on Sam’s life leads the Swaggers to shocking information left
behind by Earl, which may have led to his death.

Bob Lee Swagger returns to Texas, furi-
ous after Red Bama Jr. put Sam Vincent
in the hospital. Swagger heads to Bama
Cattle with a plan. He sets up on his long
gun and gets Junior in his scope, but
instead of firing he takes out his phone
and makes a call saying someone is about
to die. Then he strong-arms his way in-
side, takes out Junior’s protection and
starts wailing on him. He gets Junior to
spill that Earl had evidence against Atlas.
Bama Sr. busts in armed and Swagger
stands down. Sheriff Brown arrives just

in time, responding to the anonymous call. Bama Sr. tries to have Swagger arrested, but Brown
points out that would come with questions about what happened to Sam.

Back in Washington, D.C. Team Swagger decides to go after Andrew Gold, the President’s
Chief of Staff. After a press conference, Harris Downey approaches Gold and mentions a white
nationalist group that Downey alleges Gold supports. Gold recognizes the intel from ”Gregson’s
famous gossip files” but laughs it off and tells him he sucks at blackmailing. Carlita Cruise
decides she’s on the wrong side and sets up a covert meeting with Jack Long, offering him the
decryption card if he gets her off the Atlas kill list. She’s only on it because they’re worried she
saw something when she ran protection for Red Bama at the Department of Agriculture, but she
says she didn’t. She wants 48 hours to get the card.

In the hospital, Julie and Bob Lee notice the recorder in Sam’s stuff and hear the audio of
Junior attacking Sam and asking about his evidence. Later, Sam confirms that Earl made a
video confession, but he has no idea where it is. Swagger is talking to Sheriff Brown later when
Julie notices a suspicious orderly injecting something into Sam’s arm. She questions him and
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he attacks her then runs. Swagger chases after him but the operative escapes outside. Later,
we learn that while the poison didn’t reach his bloodstream, Bob Lee’s surrogate father has still
taken a turn for the worse.

Bama Sr. takes Junior to the Atlas campus, a ranch disguised as a nuclear waste facility.
Head Atlas honcho August Russo, is there and is not thrilled about Junior’s tangles with the
Swaggers. He reminds Senior that the Swaggers have always been trouble, including when they
tried to frame Bob Lee for assassinating the Ukrainian president. Later, Senior tells his son that
he was invited to join Atlas as the 11th member after he personally took out Earl Swagger. He
warns his son that if he’s in, he can’t protect him, but the young pup is just thrilled to be given
a chance. Later, Russo puts Bama Sr.’s words to the test, when he tells him Junior has to for
telling Bob Lee about Earl’s evidence. He thinks Red should have known when he brought Junior
to campus that things would go this way. Russo offers to have someone else handle it. But Red
Bama Sr. has never minded getting his hands dirty. He brings his son a special malt to toast his
acceptance into Atlas. As Junior drinks deeply he earnestly thanks his father for always believing
in him. His father hugs him tightly and tells him he’s proud of him. Later, Senior buries his son
— hands dirty once again.

Swagger reviews his dad’s old notes with Sheriff Brown and notices one in which he under-
lined a name three times, for a routine traffic accident. Earl always made Bob Lee repeat things
three times to remember them. He thinks it’s a clue. Swagger and Brown travel to the Depart-
ment of Records warehouse to check it out. They find the evidence box for the accident file—with
a VHS labeled ”Phoenix” inside. Then the building lights go out. Knowing they’re about to be
under Atlas assault, Brown and Swagger split up and creep through the dark cavernous space.
Swagger takes out the assailants and the men get out while they can.

In flashbacks, we see the contents of Earl Swagger’s recorded video testimony, which he
made for his wife and son and to set the record straight. He feels guilty for ever having been
part of Phoenix, which became Atlas. He recounts an operation Katherine Mayfield sent him on,
supposedly to attack a weapon supply line. A new major named Raymond Brooks, with special
forces, arrived to lead it, and the mission never felt right. Once in Cambodia, they stopped a
truck and interrogated the villagers driving it. Earl was angry to find it contained not guns, but
drugs. But he was angrier still when Brooks shot two of the people in cold blood. He decked
Brooks across the temple, digging a gash that would leave a scar, and left him in the jungle.
We see that Ray Brooks still bears the mark... when he’s introduced by Andrew Gold as the
President’s nominee for Chief Justice of the Supreme Court. Earl saw it coming in his affidavit
decades before, in which he traced Brooks’ journey on the bench up to Attorney General of Utah
then Federal Court. He says it reeks of Atlas. ”Whatever it is they’re planning, it won’t end til
someone stops them,” he says.
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Alpha Dog

Season 3
Episode Number: 27
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Thursday August 16, 2018
Writer: David Daitch
Director: Hanelle M. Culpepper
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: Mallory Jansen (Margo James), Stefan Brysha (Big Friend #1), Josh
Fried (Chip), Samuel Evan Horowitz (Big Friend #2), Jesse Luken
(Pete), Dalton Rondell (Alpha One), Owen Szabo (Alpha), Torrey Vogel
(Tripp)

Summary: Bob Lee’s search for Bama Jr. leads him to a fringe group, but causes
a rift in his marriage. Isaac and Nadine use information left behind by
Earl to meet with the President’s Chief of Staff.

Back in Texas, Bob Lee Swagger beats
the tar out of Red Bama Jr.’s associates
looking for leads while ignoring calls from
the rest of the group in Washington, D.C.
A group of Bama Jr.’s loser pals direct
Swagger to a white pride march in D.C.
Swagger goes home to pack up, but Julie
is so angry at him bailing on Sam’s fu-
neral that she demands he explain him-
self in front of their daughter. Swag-
ger doesn’t and leaves, prompting Julie
to later do some serious soul-searching
about her marriage. Meanwhile, Andrew

Gold meets with Red Bama Sr. to thank him for sacrificing his son for the cause – and deliver
the news that August Russo has tapped Bama to take over the operation. They want to take
Swagger out. Bama reveals he has people in Texas feeding Swagger just enough information to
draw Swagger to him, without Swagger knowing he’s being led.

When Swagger arrives in D.C., he won’t listen to cautions that walking into the Gold-funded
white power Alpha Boys might not be a good plan. Nadine Memphis is most concerned with
stopping the attack and confirmation of Ray Brooks, and they think that while Earl’s tape would
be unfairly discredited if they went public, it might work against Brooks in private. Isaac Johnson
wants to take a second run at Gold, who he believes is responsible for his wife’s death. Carlita
Cruise, who is plotting to steal the decryption card and betray them, tries to warn Memphis off
the Gold meet seemingly out of concern, with no luck.

Swagger goes to the troll headquarters and gets an earful of racist garbage but no Junior
(because he’s dead). They tell him it’s fight night and whoever wins gets to fight Junior. Swagger
sneaks into a storage closet and finds dozens of tiki torches rigged with explosives. He stays to
no-rules fight a guy who isn’t the Navy SEAL he claims to be but still packs a punch. Swagger
comes out on top, but is battered in the process. It makes him easier for the Aryans to grab and
hold for Bama Sr.

Jack Long sneaks into Cruise’s hotel room to relay news that Russo says she can come off
the kill list and back to work in exchange for the decryption card. It seems they have a familiar
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history, but Long says that won’t stop him if she doesn’t bring the card next time. At the office
space they’re using as headquarters, Cruise brings Harris Downey a shot and gets him chatting.
Whatever she laced it with works quickly and he takes a nap, giving her the opening to steal the
decryption card. When Long comes back to her hotel, she hands it over and goes with him to see
Russo.

Memphis and Johnson meet Gold on a Metro platform and play him the Earl video, threat-
ening to go public. He’s not intimidated and gives the signal to take them out, but they evade
the fire of the operative nearby. Johnson gets a head start chasing after Gold and Memphis
follows, worried that Johnson might kill him as payback for his wife’s murder. Her fears prove
well-founded when Johnson slits Gold’s throat just as Memphis reaches them. Memphis thinks
the city will go on lockdown but Johnson is confident Atlas will clean it up. Sure enough, Jack
Long takes care of it, staging Gold’s body in his car and setting it on fire.

Back at their new office building headquarters, Memphis gets Swagger’s text photo of the
tiki torches full of explosives. She worries because she can’t find Cruise or Downey and can’t
reach Swagger. She calls Margo at the DOJ and asks for a tactical team at the Alpha Society to
follow up on the explosives. Margo knows about Gold’s death, which is being spun as a suicide.
Meanwhile, Red Bama Sr. shows up at the Alpha Society and relishes being able to beat on a
bound Swagger. He relays the news that his son is dead, a ”casualty of war.” ”When my own
flesh and blood put my country at risk, I didn’t hesitate,” he says. Swagger is stunned. Bama
continues working Swagger over, yanking his shoulder out of its socket as he’s tied to a chair.
Swagger asks if Bama killed his father, but Bama denies it. Downstairs, Isaac Johnson draws a
crowd when he walks in and asks to join the Aryan group. He’s quickly followed by Memphis and
a tactical team. They head upstairs and find Swagger alive and Bama Sr. gone.

Later, with Swagger at the hospital, Margo reports that they didn’t find the explosives so
she can’t get anywhere with an investigation. Memphis and Johnson decide to go after Brooks
directly. Swagger calls Julie to say he probably won’t make it home in time for Sam’s funeral.
She’s not surprised. But she is done. She tells him not to bother coming home until he’s ready
to stay, leaving him bruised, reeling, and alone in D.C.
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Orientation Day

Season 3
Episode Number: 28
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Thursday August 23, 2018
Writer: Jennifer Cacicio, Desta Tedros Reff
Director: David Straiton
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: Raymond J. Barry (August Russo), Michael O’Neill (Ray Brooks), Fe-
lisha Terrell (Carlita), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), Delaina Mitchell
(Anna Wallingford), Matt Shallenberger (John Wheeler), Eddie McClin-
tock (Jack Payne), Jerry T. Adams (Look-Alike Recruit), David Bianchi
(Security Guard Shemky), Paul Black (Male Recruit), Hannah Rose
May (Driscoll), Hunter Jones (Recruit)

Summary: Bob Lee and Isaac ambush the Atlas training facility. Nadine and Har-
ris scheme their way into a face-to-face with a critical player in Atlas’
plot to retain power. Julie’s paranoia grows.

At cubicle farm HQ, after finding Car-
lita and the decryption card missing, and
Harris in the closet with a nasty seda-
tive hangover, they notice a military grade
GPS tracker beeping. Carlita is wearing it
as she rides with Jack Long on the way
to the Atlas campus. Once there, Carlita
sits down with August Russo for a de-
brief. She relays that Swagger hasn’t for-
given Johnson and she thinks they can
turn them against each other—and she
made sure they’d come looking or her.

Swagger and Johnson follow the
tracker to outside the Atlas compound and approach on foot. They walk through a deserted
town that looks ripe for an ambush and soon run into one. But something about their approach
doesn’t seem right to Swagger. He takes out an assailant and discovers his gun is firing blanks;
Carlita lead them into an Atlas training ground.

In flashback to Carlita’s Atlas recruitment by Jack Payne, we see him telling her she could
be one of them if she ”submits.” On a 2008 training mission on the Atlas campus, Carlita meets
analytical Jack Long, who argues the purpose of their training is to identify true believers. Then
he trips an arrow and gets spiked through the leg. Carlita helps him to treatment, earning an
earful from Payne for diverting from the mission. Back in the compound, Russo lectures Carlita
again about keeping emotion out of missions, then electrocutes her. On the other side of the
glass, Payne tests Jack Long by forcing him to watch Carlita in pain. Then he forces Long to
electrocute Carlita himself, as part of the mission. Long doesn’t hesitate.

After surviving the first ambush, Swagger and Johnson have nowhere to run when a Humvee
intercepts them. They’re shot with tranquilizer darts and wake up in psy-ops rubber rooms. All of
Johnson’s misdeeds and kills are plastered on his walls and Swagger is forced to listen to audio
from his home back in Texas. Russo joins Swagger and offers to tell him who killed his father if
Swagger kills Johnson. He reminds Swagger that Johnson is the source of all his misery, dating
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back to when he buried the report with the Marines in Afghanistan. He gives Swagger a gun and
Swagger appears to contemplate it, then turns on Russo and fires. But it’s not loaded. Swagger
follows up with a crack across Russo’s face, then throws a chair at the man who comes in the
door. Swagger uses a table to break through the wall. Russo is counting on Swagger’s heroism to
sink him as he goes after Johnson. In another locked room, Long comes for Carlita and tells her
to run. She invites him to come with her, but he won’t give up the mission even, she knows, if it
eventually means killing her.

Downey and Memphis buy all the tickets to a fundraiser to have time alone with Ray Brooks.
He tells them he thought he was doing the right thing in Vietnam and regrets crossing the line
and has been trying to make up for it ever since. He doesn’t believe he’s an Atlas pawn and
refuses to withdraw as a nominee. They threaten to release Earl Swagger’s video if he doesn’t.

Back in Texas after Sam’s wake, Julie finishes Mary’s bedtime story but is alarmed when her
teddy bear interferes with the baby monitor. Julie finds the listening device inside then sweeps
the house and finds four others. The next day she and her sister Anne make a show for the
recorders, saying they’re off to Yosemite. Instead they’re going off the grid.

Swagger finds Carlita, who has located the only live ammunition in the compound. She reveals
that she set explosives there a long time ago as a contingency. Carlita and Swagger bust in on
Russo trying to get in Johnson’s head. Left alone with Carlita, Russo scoffs at her. But she does
not appreciate being put on his kill list after a decade of service. He’s still doubting her when she
raises her gun and shoots him through the head. In the basement, Swagger and Johnson find
file cabinets and a server. Swagger grabs his dad’s file and finds a mini cassette recorder with
audio from the night his father was killed. It reveals the shooter was Ray Brooks. They race to
get out before a giant series of explosions tears the compound apart. Swagger takes a minute to
tell Johnson he’s ready to put things in the past. Carlita emerges from the ashes and joins them.
Elsewhere, Jack Long stays focused on the mission, prepping a school bus.

At cubicle HQ, Harris digs up a court case involving Anhur Dynamics, Lon Scott’s Atlas-front
company. They’re claiming a national security exemption from discovery and if they lose, all of
Atlas’ dirty laundry will become public, which is why they need Ray Brooks on the court. Swagger
returns in time for a Brooks’ press conference on TV, in which he claims he’s been blackmailed
but is innocent. When Swagger shares what he’s just learned about Brooks, Memphis asks what
he’s going to do. Swagger replies: ”I’m going to kill him.”
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Family Fire

Season 3
Episode Number: 29
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Thursday August 30, 2018
Writer: Eric Anderson, Matt Bosack
Director: Ami Canaan Mann
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: Marlene Forte (Sister Beatrice), Mallory Jansen (Margo), Michael
O’Neill (Ray Brooks), Michael Hogan (Damon Perotta), Lexy Kolker
(Mary Swagger), Delaina Mitchell (Anna Wallingford), Matt Shallen-
berger (John Wheeler), Eric Scot Anderson (Motel Room Atlas Agent),
Tom Beyer (Gas Station Attendant), Dominic Daniel (FBI Agent),
Guy Fernandez (Brooks’ Bodyguard), Parissa Koo (Event Coordina-
tor), Hannah Rose May (Driscoll), Trenton Rostedt (Hotel Guard), Owen
Saxon (Delgado)

Summary: Bob Lee uses Harris to help him get payback for Earl’s death. Nadine
and Isaac try to convert Atlas recruits to their cause. Julie experiments
with putting life with Bob Lee in the rearview.

Swagger approaches Red Bama Sr. who
urges him not put his family at risk.
Bama follows the veiled threat with the
news that Swagger’s family is in Albu-
querque, cautioning him to stand down.
Swagger races to call Julie and is dis-
turbed to learn that Bama was telling the
truth. He warns Julie that Atlas is track-
ing her. He knows she’s on her own until
he can get to her.

Back at cubicle HQ, Nadine Memphis
and Isaac Johnson have limited intel fol-
lowing the explosion of the Atlas campus,

so they make a pitch to the three Atlas operatives they captured. Two demand payouts to switch
sides, one, Parada, just wants his freedom. After Margo with DOJ tells them the smoldering com-
pound isn’t proof of the planned attack — she wants a body and a smoking gun — they go back
to the recruits and let Parada go, betting he’s a true believer because he couldn’t be bought and
will run straight to Atlas.

Swagger drags Harris Downey to Brooks’ hotel where Harris chats up the staff to learn that
Brooks has been holed up in the presidential suite for three days. Swagger swipes a keycard to
gain access and takes out Brooks’ security guy. With no clear plan, Swagger grabs Brooks and
drives out into the woods. Harris is alarmed when Swagger takes a shovel out of the car. He calls
Nadine, who warns him Atlas is likely tracking Brooks.

In Albuquerque, Julie, her sister Anne, and Mary head to the pool to try to pretend everything
is normal. When Mary forgets her towel Julie heads back to the room to get it, interrupting the
Atlas agent who’s rifling through their things. He hides in the closet but she sees him and fakes
a call to Bob Lee as she grabs her gun and backs out the door. She collects Anne and Mary at
the pool and hustles them into the car.
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Trailing Parada, Memphis peels off to go help Swagger while Johnson follows him to Bama Sr.
They’re discussing the fact Team Swagger knows about the bomb when they’re interrupted by
news about Brooks. Bama sends Parada after him. Out in the woods, Swagger confronts Brooks,
who claims Earl Swagger was no better than he was and was running black ops before he ever
came along. But Bob Lee realizes the real difference between them, and the reason Brooks is
alive and Earl Swagger isn’t: Brooks is a murder. Earl wasn’t. And neither is Bob Lee. Harris
finds them and they head for higher ground as Parada and the kill squad arrive and close in,
with Swagger using Brooks as a shield. Swagger is low on ammunition, so Harris gets a bolt of
bravery and draws fire as Swagger tries to pick off the attackers. But Parada finds Harris and
trains his gun on him. Swagger walks out with his weapon at Brooks’ head, as Brooks yells at
Parada to take the shot. Swagger is outgunned with no options, but is saved when Memphis and
Margo appear with an FBI team and order Parada to stand down. He does at first, but then goes
for his weapon, and earns a hail of bullets that take him to the ground. Swagger turns his gun
over to Memphis, telling Brooks the FBI will soon be connecting Parada’s gun to him. Brooks
grabs a gun off an FBI agent and put it to his chin, proclaiming: ”This is how a patriot dies!”
Then he shoots himself.

Johnson follows Bama Sr. after his meet with Parada and sees him get into an SUV and Jack
Long get out the other side. Johnson decides to follow Long and ends up at the warehouse. He
send Memphis a message with the location then breaks in. He’s snooping around when Long
finds him and knocks him out. He douses Johnson in gasoline and lights it, walking away as the
building burns with Isaac in it. Red Bama Sr. breaks protocol to call Long and tell him Brooks
is dead and check in on their operation. Johnson wakes up and manages to stagger out of the
warehouse before the fire reaches him, but he doesn’t leave empty-handed: he lifted a medallion
off Long.

Out in the woods, Swagger is feeling relieved he didn’t kill Brooks and is ready to rejoin and
protect his family. But his relief doesn’t last long as the FBI takes him and Harris into custody,
over the objections of Margo and Memphis. With Brooks out of the picture, Atlas’ decades-long
plot is thrown into chaos, but they aren’t ready to give up yet.
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Patron Saint

Season 3
Episode Number: 30
Season Episode: 12

Originally aired: Thursday September 6, 2018
Writer: David Daitch, Katie Johnson, Matthew Newman
Director: Millicent Shelton
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: Marlene Forte (Sister Beatrice), Mallory Jansen (Margo), Benito Mar-
tinez (President Alvarez), Don Franklin (Agent Biller), Delaina Mitchell
(Anna Wallingford), Susan Slome (Mrs. Carter), Matt Shallenberger
(John Wheeler), Rhea Perlman (Supreme Court Justice Gibson), Mar-
cia Lynn Anthony (Mom’s Friend), Josh Archer (Supreme Court Police-
man), Hope Brown (Agent in Charge), Brett A. Jones (ND Suit), Sadie
Lapidus (Little Girl), Annie Lee (Young Mom), Dan Mast (Capitol Cop),
Nick Smoke (Anthony), Bryan Keith (Suited Man), Angel Manuel (FBI
Agent), Chris Naylor (Suit)

Summary: As Bob Lee finds himself torn between justice and family, Atlas pivots
to a new game plan. Isaac and Nadine investigate an overlooked Jack
Long thread. Harris meets with a powerful ally.

Red Bama Sr. casually drops by the Oval
Office to talk frankly about next steps fol-
lowing Brooks’ death. But Alvarez doesn’t
feel like dealing. He says Brooks killing
himself saved him the embarrassment
of not being confirmed. Alvarez plans to
pick his own nominee without input from
Atlas. Bama tries to intimidate him by
saying he won’t get anything done with-
out Atlas’ help and that many presidents
before him have thought they could func-
tion without Atlas and been wrong.

Nadine Memphis gets a call from Isaac
Johnson, who is wounded and wobbly after being attacked by Jack Long. Memphis stitches up
the gash on his head. They take the medallion Johnson lifted off Long to a crime lab, where
Memphis steps away to get a soda and two men with guns approach her. Harris is at a bar
waiting for a friend with possible information on Atlas when he sees two unfriendly looking men
coming up to him. He makes a break for it and hides in a nearby parking garage but they grab
him. Both Memphis and Harris are relieved when they’re brought to see the president in the Oval
Office. He knows an attack is imminent and asks for their help. He wants them to get Swagger
to help, but knew Swagger would fend off any Secret Service agents he sent after him. Memphis
agrees and starts by telling the president to take all evacuation plans offline.

After asking her sister to take Mary to stay with Edie Poole, Julie arrives in D.C. and goes to
Bob Lee’s hotel room. He has wine and roses, but she’s in another place entirely. She says she’s
done being scared and alone and not feeling connected to him. She thinks he’s always waiting
for something to happen so he can run off and be a hero. He ignores a call from Johnson and
tries to make excuses, but has to admit he likes the thrill. She wants him to stop trying to save
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the world and come home. He hears her and they are finally reconnecting and making plans for
a long-overdue honeymoon when Memphis and Johnson arrives and ask him to save the world
again. They found explosive traces on the medallion from an area school, St. Agatha. Julie sees
what her husband will choose and says good-bye, saying that Mary needs at least one parent.

Johnson and Swagger pay a visit to St. Agatha school looking for Jack Long. They’re describing
him to the nun when he returns to his room in the basement. When they say he might be
strange and keep to himself she recognizes the longtime handyman, who comes and goes as he
pleases and has worked there for years. She leads them down the basement as Long is getting
ready, arming up and dressing as Secret Service. He sees them coming and makes a run for it
through the school’s cafeteria, rigging a door with a grenade. In the time it takes for them to
safely detonate it, Long gets away. But Swagger thinks it’s odd that the nun said Long could fix
anything but still took the buses to a mechanic. They head to the garage. They find bomb making
materials and evidence Long was in a massive rush. Earlier, Long used forged documents to get
into a Homeland Security office, where he tapped into the computer and tried to run the Titan
decryption card, but got nowhere. This means the plans to send high value targets scrambling
and pick them off with the stolen evacuation routes won’t work. On to plan B. Swagger and
Johnson realize the attack is today. Meanwhile, a bus load of students boards for their field trip
to the Supreme Court.

Team Swagger works through Long’s next move. With Atlas needing votes in the Anhur Dy-
namics Supreme Court case that will expose them, they could still win the case with a 4-3 vote.
They realize Long must be going after a sitting Supreme Court justice. Meanwhile, outside the
Court, Long gets near enough a bomb dog to put baby food on its snout so it can’t smell the
explosives when it checks the loaded bus. Team Swagger arrives shortly after the bus has passed
inspection. With no buses marked St. Agatha, they scratch off paint until Memphis finds the St.
Agatha logo painted over. When a police officer interrupts them, they don’t have time to explain
and knock him out. Swagger calls in a bomb over the cop’s radio and they start shouting for
an evacuation. Swagger finds the re-stapled seats and the bricks of explosives inside. As Harris
tries to warn people away outside Swagger tries to defuse the bomb and discovers quickly that
he can’t. As the detonator powers up he and Johnson race for cover outside. At the last second,
Memphis throws herself over a girl who is too close to the bus as it goes up it a giant fireball.
With his ears ringing and the bus smoldering, Swagger races off to protect the justice that Long
is going after. Johnson finds Memphis on the ground, where she is dazed and bleeding profusely
from shrapnel in her neck.

In the White House everyone is heading to their evacuation points and Red Bama Sr. is in-
formed by security that he’s been taken off the list to evacuate with the president. In the Court,
Secret Service agents are securing justices when Long calmly joins a group leading an evacua-
tion, putting him right next to his target, Justice Gibson.
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Red Light

Season 3
Episode Number: 31
Season Episode: 13

Originally aired: Thursday September 13, 2018
Writer: Katie Johnson, David Daitch, Desta Tedros Reff
Director: David Straiton
Show Stars: Ryan Phillippe (Bob Lee Swagger), Omar Epps (Isaac Johnson), Cyn-

thia Addai-Robinson (Nadine Memphis), Shantel VanSanten (Julie
Swagger), Jesse Bradford (Harris Downey), Gerald McRaney (Red
Bama Sr.)

Guest Stars: Juan Javier Cardenas (Prosada), Castulo Guerra (Ramiro Dominguez),
John Marshall Jones (Sheriff Brown), Lexy Kolker (Mary Swagger), De-
laina Mitchell (Anna Wallingford), Matt Shallenberger (John Wheeler),
Larry Sullivan (Dr. Mitchell), Rhea Perlman (Supreme Court Justice
Gibson), Gee Alexander (Officer De Rosa), Chad Bennett (Secret Ser-
vice Agent #3), Matty Castano (Secret Service Agent #1), Robert DuBois
(Supreme Court Guard), Brennan Feonix (Naval Corpsman), Miguel-
Andres Garcia (Shooter #2), Jim Garrity (Mark Celpo), Chad Guerrero
(Colombian Shooter #5), Bryan Keith (Gibson’s Driver), Scott Lang
(Deputy Stunty), Austin Priester (Secret Service Agent #2), Caitlin
Emma O’Connor (Nadine’s Assistant), Jose Vasquez (Shooter #1),
Elena Dizon (Jane)

Summary: Bob Lee struggles to juggle the competing interests of ending Atlas and
saving his familial relationships. Isaac, Nadine and Harris all have new
roles in D.C.

After the explosion at the Supreme Court,
Johnson goes to the hospital with Mem-
phis. Harris Downey helps Swagger get
access to the court building, where they
find Justice Gibson’s driver, bound and
gagged in the bathroom. Gibson is evac-
uated to Arlington by Jack Long with a
gaggle of other dignitaries. Swagger steals
a cop car and hightails it to Arlington.
When he arrives, he fights his way into
the house, where Gibson is ushered down
to a locked bunker in the basement. Long
retrieves an explosive belt from his car.

He attacks a security guard inside, then fires on Swagger, but misses as he advances. Long
creeps down to the basement and hacks into the bunker door control, but one dignitary whacks
him with a fire extinguisher, giving Swagger enough time to close the ground to Long. Gibson and
the dignitaries run upstairs as Swagger and Long grapple at the bunker entrance, with Swagger
getting a piece of his ear. With Long off balance, Swagger gives him a final shove into the now-
empty bunker and slams the door shut just in time for Long’s explosives, and Long, to detonate
safely behind the blast doors.

With Atlas’ final mission over, Team Swagger moves on
At the hospital Memphis is stable and lucky; the bullet grazed her carotid artery. Johnson

waits at her bedside for her to wake up, then tells her he wants to help shape things by taking
over Atlas, good guy-style. The last time Memphis and Johnson saw eye to eye on methods was
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when they conspired to kill Atlas figurehead Sen. Addison Hayes, but they again find common
ground for the greater good. Swagger drops by the hospital and declines their job offer, saying
he’s going to focus on saving his marriage instead of saving the world. Meanwhile, Harris Downey
has started a new job as the president’s deputy chief of staff. One of his first acts is to hand Red
Bama Sr. resignation papers. Bama blusters and threatens, but Downey points out Bama’s fresh
out of Atlas allies.

Bob Lee comes home to find Julie in the middle of moving out. He assures her it’s all over, but
she’s not sure how to trust him. Still, Julie and Mary accompany Bob Lee as he says a graveside
good-bye to both his father and Sam Vincent, the two men who raised him. The Swaggers are
heading to their car with Sheriff Brown when Red Bama Sr. pulls up. He tells Swagger he’s selling
the cattle company and leaving, but he wants to make sure he won’t have to spend his life waiting
for one of Bob Lee’s bullets. Swagger tells him to leave Texas, then turns to rejoin his family but
finds they’ve left without him. Back at the house, Julie is halfway out the door. Bob Lee tries to
talk to her. He swears he’s done, but she thinks he’s itching to go after Bama. She wants a break,
but not necessarily a divorce. He suggests he’ll leave so she and Mary can stay in the house. He
insists he be the one to talk to Mary, so she doesn’t think anything is her mom’s fault.

In D.C., Johnson and Memphis set up the new incarnation of Atlas, which they’re calling
Prometheus. She’ll handle politics; he’ll handle the missions. They’re surprised to find a gift box
waiting for them containing the hard drive from the Atlas campus. It looks like Carlita Cruise
made it out alive.

At Bama Cattle, Red finishes signing the paperwork to sell his company then transitions
seamlessly to talking to an assassin about a contract on Swagger. Bama insists on no witnesses.
Swagger is getting ice cream with Mary and trying to explain the separation when Sheriff Brown
calls to warn him a helicopter just landed near his house, where Julie is. Swagger leaves Mary
with her aunt, then grabs a rifle from a parked car, leaving cash, and races home as a team of
six assassins closes in on his house.

Inside the house, Julie sees a laser light on her chest and drops just before the windows and
walls explode in a hail of gunfire. She crawls to the gun safe and gets her weapons as Bob Lee
pulls up down the road and the assassins approach. He gets in position and takes out one from
distance, closing in. Julie hits one from inside as he passes by the window and Bob Lee gets
another as he reaches his house perimeter. Julie hits another as he enters the front door, but
she takes a bullet in the shoulder. The man she hit at the door has a bulletproof vest on and
stands up and looms over her. He is reaching for his gun when Julie pulls out a handgun and
shoots him in a private part not covered by the vest. Bob Lee races across his front yard to his
house as a series of explosions detonate inside, chasing Julie down the hallway until she safely
dives into the tub. Bob Lee finds her there, rattled, but alive. They’re both full of apologies and
tears, grateful to be safe and together. They’re making their way toward the door when we see
Red Bama, set up on a hillside looking through the lens of a long gun. He’s targeting Bob Lee, but
when Bob Lee turns to grab his father’s gun in the rubble, Julie is left standing in the crosshairs.
Bama’s bullet cuts her down instantly and Bob Lee’s world comes crashing down around him as
he screams and cradles his wife’s body.

Three months later — After Julie’s funeral, Mary is still staying with her aunt and no one has
seen Bob Lee. Harris pays Memphis a visit at Prometheus headquarters with a new haircut and
a top-secret file on a Nazi who’s helping ISIS. The President wants Prometheus to deal with him
so it won’t have U.S. fingerprints on it. Memphis keeps it to herself.

Out in the snowy wilds of Savage Lake, Canada, Bama is in hiding at a remote cabin when
he gets a call from Swagger, ready to make good on his promise. Swagger reminds Bama that he
warned him he’d come if anything happened to his family. The time has come. Swagger lines up
on the Black King and takes his shot, ending things with Bama, once and for all. He walks away
from the snowy hilltop, about as isolated, but free, as a man can be.
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Josh Archer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0312 (Supreme Court Policeman)

Carmen Argenziano . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0203 (Charles Broadwell)

Yancey Arias. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0102 (John Dominguez)

Michelle Arthur . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0110 (Ambassador’s Guest)

René Ashton. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Female Reporter)

Yousuf Azami. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0104 (Mullah Abdul)

B
Bonnie Bailey-Reed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0307 (Clerk)
Betsy Baker . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Store Owner)
Forest Baker. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0201 (Russian Mobster)
Ken Barefield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0307 (Guard #1)
Raymond J. Barry. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0308 (August Russo); 0310 (August Russo)
Alexander Bateman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0101 (FBI Task Force); 0102 (FBI Task Force); 0103
(FBI Task Force); 0104 (FBI Task Force)

Chad Bennett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0313 (Secret Service Agent #3)

Tom Beyer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0311 (Gas Station Attendant)

David Bianchi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0310 (Security Guard Shemky)

Kevin Bielinski . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Russian Bodyguard)

Paul Black . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0310 (Male Recruit)

Elizabeth Blackmore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0306 (Katherine Mansfield); 0308 (Katherine Mans-

field)
Anthony Bless . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0207 (Diego)
Tatjana Bluchel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Russian Bathhouse Girl)
Tait Blum.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3

0301 (Young Bob Lee); 0304 (Young Bob Lee); 0305
(Young Bob Lee)

Jesse Bradford . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0201 (Harris Downey); 0203 (Harris Downey); 0206

(Harris Downey); 0208 (Harris Downey)
Hope Brown .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0312 (Agent in Charge)
Rob Brown.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .5

0101 (Donny Fenn); 0104 (Donny Fenn); 0202 (Donny
Fenn); 0204 (Donny Fenn); 0205 (Donny Fenn)

Stefan Brysha . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0308 (Big Friend #1); 0309 (Big Friend #1)

Danielle Burgio. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0203 (Waitress)

Carlease Burke. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0206 (Guest Star)

Matt Bushell. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0203 (Gar Winston)

C
Tony Cane-Honeysett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Russian Gangster)
Jose Pablo Cantillo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Justin Singer)
Juan Javier Cardenas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0313 (Prosada)
Porchea Carroll. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0201 (Campbell’s Girlfriend)
Terrell Carter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0202 (Guest Star); 0204 (Kevin Campbell)
Mickey Cassidy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (PMC Heavy Rifle)
Matty Castano. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0313 (Secret Service Agent #1)
Natalia Castellanos . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (TV Personality #2)
Jay Charan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Doctor)
Carin Chea . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
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0102 (Press #1)
David Chisum .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0102 (Jim Wallingford); 0104 (Jim Wallingford); 0107
(Jim Wallingford)

Chad Michael Collins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0308 (Young Ray Brooks)

Tim Connolly . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (PMC Hulking)

Brendan Connor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Marine #2)

Celeste Cook. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0108 (Paparzzi)

Darin Cooper . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0206 (Crawley)

Celestino Cornielle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Tito)

Al Coronel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0301 (Sheriff Testa)

Tom Crisp . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0304 (Perimeter Guard)

D
Beverly D’Angelo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

0110 (National Security Adviser); 0201 (National
Security Adviser); 0203 (National Security Ad-
visor Gregson); 0208 (National Security Advi-
sor Gregson); 0302 (National Security Advi-
sor Gregson); 0305 (National Security Advisor
Gregson)

Dominic Daniel. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0311 (FBI Agent)

E. Ambriz DeColosio . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0204 (Guest Star)

Tim DeZarn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Clerk)

Michael Dempsey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0301 (Veterinarian)

Kevin Derr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0306 (Atlas Agent #2)

Leslie Dianne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0110 (Russian Embassy Staff Employee)

Elena Dizon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0302 (Bama Assistant); 0313 (Jane)

Chastity Dotson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0306 (Rebecca)

Justin Dray. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0207 (Willie)

Robert DuBois. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0313 (Supreme Court Guard)

F
Gene Farber . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Vasily)
Alex Feldman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0110 (Embassy Guard)
D’Arcy Fellona. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0201 (Susie Cartwright)
Brennan Feonix . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0313 (Naval Corpsman)
Eddie J. Fernandez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0201 (Mexican 1); 0206 (Day Laborer Driver)
Guy Fernandez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0311 (Brooks’ Bodyguard)
Jerry Ferrara . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0202 (Kirk Zehnder); 0204 (Kirk Zehnder); 0205
(Kirk Zehnder)

Essam Ferris . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Peeker)

William Fichtner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Sgt. Major Rathford O’Brien)

Wilbur Fitzgerald. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0301 (James Boyd)

Greg Fitzpatrick . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0204 (Main UN Escort)

Staci Lynn Fletcher . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0307 (Supervising Guard)

Dave Florek. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4
0204 (Guest Star); 0205 (Guest Star); 0207 (Dr.

Wydra); 0208 (Dr. Wydra)
Marlene Forte . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0311 (Sister Beatrice); 0312 (Sister Beatrice)
Don Franklin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0312 (Agent Biller)
Josh Fried . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0309 (Chip)
Chiquita Fuller . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0302 (Female Prison Guard)
Kurt Fuller. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0307 (Guest Star); 0308 (Mr. Gold)

G
Gina Gallego. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .8

0201 (Estella); 0202 (Estella); 0203 (Estella); 0204
(Estella); 0205 (Estella); 0206 (Estella); 0207
(Estella); 0208 (Estella)

Justin Gant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0305 (Scarred Agent)

Leif Gantvoort . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Cal Nix)

Miguel-Andres Garcia. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0313 (Shooter #2)

Troy Garity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0204 (Jeffrey Denning); 0206 (Jeffrey Denning); 0207

(Jeffrey Denning); 0208 (Jeffrey Denning)
Jim Garrity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0313 (Mark Celpo)
Jason Gedrick. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0102 (Officer Timmons); 0103 (Officer Timmons)
Eddie George . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0103 (Guest Star); 0104 (Guest Star)
Tara George . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0201 (Ali’s Wife)
Dale Godboldo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0302 (Guest Star)
Braxton Goe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Inmate)
Sasha Golberg. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0208 (Russian Soldier #2)
David Goldman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (TV News Personality)
Nick Gracer. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0205 (Peter Petravich)
Allan Graf. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Trooper McQuarrie)
Claudia Graf. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0201 (German Nurse)
Julian Graham.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0303 (Jason / Host)
Nelson Grande . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0306 (Security Guard #2)
Chris Greene . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0301 (Young Sheriff Brown)
Chet Grissom.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0202 (Customs Agent)
Dan Gruenberg. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Gun Vendor)
Castulo Guerra. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0313 (Ramiro Dominguez)

82
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Chad Guerrero . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0106 (Cautious PMC); 0313 (Colombian Shooter

#5)

H
Ondrej Habinak . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Dimitri Voydian)
Mustafa Haidari . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (Afghan Village Gunman #1)
Iyad Hajjaj . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0202 (Afghan Villager)
Kevin Hall . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0306 (Atlas Agent #3)
Harry Hamlin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3

0203 (Guest Star); 0208 (Addison Hayes); 0301 (Sen-
ator Addison Hayes)

Jessica Harbeck. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0102 (Secret Service Driver)

Adam J. Harrington. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0303 (Guest Star)

Desmond Harrington . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
0107 (Guest Star); 0108 (Lon Scott); 0109 (Lon Scott)

Lara Harris . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0110 (Professor)

Grant Harvey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0301 (Jimmy Poole); 0302 (Jimmy Poole)

Boualem Hassaine . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Kandak)

Jay Hieron. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0305 (Hulking Agent)

Michael Hogan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0311 (Damon Perotta)

Ted Hollis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0206 (Coffee Shop Patron)

Samuel Evan Horowitz. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0308 (Big Friend #2); 0309 (Big Friend #2)

Daniel D. Houy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Militiaman)

Laura Howard . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Young Female Assistant)

Stephen Hunter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Henry)

I
Brian Ibsen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0102 (Agent Bosack); 0103 (Agent Bozack)
Ravil Isyanov . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0102 (Alexander Rosovich); 0205 (Alexander Roso-
vich)

J
David Jacox . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Wolf Hunter #1)
Mallory Jansen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4

0307 (Margo); 0309 (Margo James); 0311 (Margo);
0312 (Margo)

Robert Javinett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Dead Russian)

DJ Jenkins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0305 (Red Bama’s Bodyguard)

Tommie Earl Jenkins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0201 (Navy Commander)

Floyd Anthony Johns Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0303 (Man in Leather Jacket)

Katie Johnson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3
0103 (Police Dispatcher); 0208 (Sarah Beckett); 0302

(Sarah Beckett)

Rhomeyn Johnson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0302 (Bank Guard)

Brett A. Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0312 (ND Suit)

Hunter Jones. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0310 (Recruit)

Jeni Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0307 (Patient)

John Marshall Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
0203 (Guest Star); 0204 (Sheriff Brown); 0206 (Sher-

iff Brown); 0207 (Sheriff Brown); 0301 (Sher-
iff Brown); 0302 (Sheriff Brown); 0308 (Sheriff
Brown); 0313 (Sheriff Brown)

Shirley Jordan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0308 (Senator Daitch)

Amin Joseph . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0208 (Martin Jacobs)

Abraham Justice . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0205 (Radio Taliban)

K
Ash Kadian . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Afghani Soldier)
Tony Katsaras . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Russian Gangster)
Bryan Keith. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0312 (Suited Man); 0313 (Gibson’s Driver)
Angelique Kenney . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

0101 (FBI Task Force); 0102 (FBI Task Force); 0103
(FBI Task Force); 0104 (FBI Task Force); 0105
(FBI Task Force); 0106 (FBI Task Force); 0107
(FBI Task Force); 0108 (FBI Task Force); 0110
(FBI Task Force)

Anna Khaja. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3
0201 (Gabina); 0202 (Gabina); 0204 (Gabina)

Catherine Haena Kim.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0107 (Claire Hopkins)

Jun Kim .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Mikey)

Brian Kimmet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (FBI Tech)

Christina King. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0304 (Old Woman)

Lexy Kolker . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
0101 (Mary Swagger); 0102 (Mary Swagger); 0103

(Mary Swagger); 0104 (Mary Swagger); 0106
(Mary Swagger); 0108 (Mary Swagger); 0109
(Mary Swagger); 0110 (Mary Swagger); 0201
(Mary Swagger); 0202 (Mary Swagger); 0203
(Mary Swagger); 0204 (Mary Swagger); 0206
(Mary Swagger); 0208 (Mary Swagger); 0302
(Mary Swagger); 0304 (Mary Swagger); 0310
(Mary Swagger); 0311 (Mary Swagger); 0313
(Mary Swagger)

Parissa Koo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0311 (Event Coordinator)

Eric Allan Kramer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0107 (Guest Star)

Michelle Krusiec. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3
0104 (Lin Johnson); 0107 (Lin Johnson); 0202 (Lin

Johnson)
Efka Kvaraciejus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0203 (Vigo)

L
Eric Ladin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0302 (Red Bama Junior); 0303 (Red Bama Jr.);
0306 (Red Bama Jr.); 0307 (Red Bama Jr.);
0308 (Red Bama Jr.)
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George Lako . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0303 (Marine)

Teddy Lane Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Guest Star)

Scott Lang . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0313 (Deputy Stunty)

Sadie Lapidus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0312 (Little Girl)

Ted Larkin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0208 (Militia Man #2); 0304 (Frank)

Matthew Law .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0303 (Young Colby)

John W. Lawson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0201 (Amputee Veteran)

Carlos Leal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0206 (Guest Star)

Annie Lee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0312 (Young Mom)

Lance Lee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Inmate)

Nelson Lee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0304 (Adam Lee)

Antonio Leon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Carlos Abramson)

Jack Leopardo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Russian Mobster)

Brian Letscher . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0302 (Guest Star); 0303 (Guest Star)

Eduardo Lezcano. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0201 (Ball Guest)

Doug Long . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0306 (Male Titan Employee)

Todd Lowe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0202 (Colin Dobbs); 0203 (Colin Dobbs); 0204 (Colin

Dobbs); 0205 (Colin Dobbs)
Jesse Luken . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0309 (Pete)
Billy Lush. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0302 (Guest Star); 0304 (Johnny Poole)
Diandra Lyle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Agent Davis)
Curtis Lyons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0307 (Atlas Agent with Radio)

M
Daniel Mandehr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Officer Stein)
Angel Manuel. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0312 (FBI Agent)
David Marciano . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

0101 (John Renlow); 0102 (John Renlow); 0103
(John Renlow); 0105 (Howard Utey); 0107 (Howard
Utey); 0108 (Howard Utey)

Brandon Marino. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0307 (Metro Police Officer)

Dimiter D. Marinov . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0208 (Russian Officer)

Ricardo Ricky Martin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Homeland Security Agent)

Sandy Martin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0302 (Adele Poole)

Benito Martinez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0312 (President Alvarez)

Dan Mast . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0312 (Capitol Cop)

Malcolm Matthews . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Russian Mobster)

Hannah Rose May. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0310 (Driscoll); 0311 (Driscoll)

Brendan McCarthy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4

0205 (Bo Winnick); 0206 (Bo Winnick); 0207 (Bo
Winnick); 0208 (Bo Winnick)

Eddie McClintock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0310 (Jack Payne)

Eddie McGee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Vet)

Brandon McKinnie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0307 (Guard #2)

Mehdi Merali . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0202 (Waheed)

Sean Cameron Michael . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0102 (Grigory Krukov); 0108 (Grigory Krukov); 0109

(Grigory Krukov); 0110 (Grigory Krukov)
Valiant Michael. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0201 (Mobster)
Izabella Miko . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0107 (Karlina Ordenko)
Doug Milliron. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0109 (Anhur Guard)
Delaina Mitchell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

0102 (Anna Wallingford); 0104 (Anna Wallingford);
0107 (Anna Wallingford); 0108 (Anne Murphy);
0302 (Anne Murphy); 0306 (Anna Wallingford);
0310 (Anna Wallingford); 0311 (Anna Walling-
ford); 0312 (Anna Wallingford); 0313 (Anna
Wallingford)

Roman Mitichyan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Taliban)

Robert Moloney. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Wolf Hunter #2)

Alexander Moonie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Pizza Man)

Marco Morales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0207 (Prison Guard Passenger)

Rene Mousseux . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0203 (Hitman)

Bayardo De Murguia. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0102 (David Tiejo)

N
David Andrew Nash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0305 (Campus Cop)
Chris Naylor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0312 (Suit)
Aleh Neliubin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Hitman)
Corin Nemec. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0208 (Guest Star)
Jason Nguyen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0303 (V.C.)
Rob Norton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (FBI Agent #1)
Chido Nwokocha . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (FBI Agent #2)

O
Caitlin Emma O’Connor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0313 (Nadine’s Assistant)
Damon O’Daniel. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0307 (Upscale Politician)
Conor O’Farrell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0302 (Rick Culp); 0303 (Rick Culp)
Michael O’Neill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0308 (Ray Brooks); 0310 (Ray Brooks); 0311 (Ray
Brooks)

Michael Ocampo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0303 (Young Gutierrez); 0306 (Young Gutierrez)

Brian Oerly . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
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0102 (Pavlo)
Afsheen Olyaie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0106 (FBI Agent); 0107 (FBI Agent); 0201 (Armed
Guard)

Aylam Orian. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0202 (German Agent)

Luca Oriel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0202 (Rodrigo); 0203 (Rodrigo)

Jaina Lee Ortiz . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
0202 (Angela Tio); 0207 (Angela Tio); 0208 (Angela

Tio)
Randy Orton. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Guest Star)

P
Kila Packett. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0306 (Security Guard #1)
Corey Mendell Parker . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0302 (Capitol Policeman Bill)
Dale Pavinski . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Jules / Hitman #1)
Eddie Perez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0306 (Cop)
Miguel Perez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0305 (Ramon Gutierrez)
Rhea Perlman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0312 (Supreme Court Justice Gibson); 0313 (Supreme
Court Justice Gibson)

Stefanie von Pfetten. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0103 (Kasper); 0107 (Kasper)

Derek Phillips . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
0301 (Earl Swagger); 0302 (Earl Swagger (voice));

0303 (Earl Swagger); 0304 (Earl Swagger); 0305
(Earl Swagger); 0306 (Earl Swagger); 0308 (Earl
Swagger)

Tony Plana . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0306 (Guitierez)

Freddie Poole . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0207 (Mexican Federale)

Angelos Poulis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Police officer)

Yaroslav Poverlo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (President of Ukraine)

Austin Priester . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0313 (Secret Service Agent #2)

Lindsay Pulsipher . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3
0301 (June Swagger); 0303 (June Swagger); 0305

(June Swagger)

Q
Angel Qinan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Embassy Receptionist)

R
Ardeshir Radpour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Afghan Military)
Craig Reed. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0201 (Prosthetic Ball Guest)
Kamar de los Reyes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Guest Star)
Dalton Rondell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0309 (Alpha One)
Costa Ronin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Guest Star)
Trenton Rostedt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0311 (Hotel Guard)
Michael Rothhaar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Guest Star)
Shahaub Roudbari . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (Afghan Village Gunman)
E.R. Ruiz . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Vet)
Kurt Max Runte . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Ruffled Man)
Nick Rush . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Russian Embassy Guard)

S
Patrick Sabongui . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .5

0201 (Yusuf Ali); 0202 (Yusuf Ali); 0204 (Yusuf Ali);
0205 (Yusuf Ali); 0206 (Yusuf Ali)

Akrosia Samson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0201 (Adrienne); 0202 (Adrienne)

Alex Saxon. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Joey Richards)

Owen Saxon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0311 (Delgado)

Dana Schick. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0305 (DC Elite)

Michael Segovia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0303 (O’Shea)

Nestor Serrano . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0207 (Guest Star)

Matt Shallenberger . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
0108 (John Wheeler); 0301 (John Wheeler); 0302

(John Wheeler); 0303 (John Wheeler); 0304
(John Wheeler); 0305 (John Wheeler); 0306
(John Wheeler); 0307 (John Wheeler); 0308
(John Wheeler); 0310 (John Wheeler); 0311
(John Wheeler); 0312 (John Wheeler); 0313
(John Wheeler)

Sheila Shaw .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Doris)

Tom Sizemore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
0102 (Hugh Meachum); 0104 (Hugh Meachum); 0105

(Hugh Meachum); 0107 (Hugh Meachum); 0108
(Hugh Meachum)

Connor Skific. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0104 (Marine at Funeral)

Anthony Skordi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0202 (Maltese Consul)

Kristin Slaysman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0301 (Edie Poole); 0304 (Edie Poole)

Susan Slome . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0312 (Mrs. Carter)

Nick Smoke. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0312 (Anthony)

Lawrence Stachowiak. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0109 (Krukov Body Man)

Noah Staggs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0303 (Skeet Operator)

Josh Stewart . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0301 (Solotov)

Ethan Stone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Marine)

David Stuart. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (President of the USA)

Larry Sullivan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0313 (Dr. Mitchell)

Owen Szabo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0309 (Alpha)

T
Christopher Tardieu . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0308 (Orderly)
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Felisha Terrell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
0303 (Carlita); 0305 (Carlita); 0306 (Carlita); 0307

(Carlita); 0308 (Carlita); 0310 (Carlita)
Vladimir Tevlovski . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0203 (Elbek)
Antonio Lewis Todd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0306 (Atlas Agent #1)
Chad Todhunter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Paparazzo)
Troy Tomerlin Jr.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0304 (Bus Driver)
Emiliano Torres . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0202 (Guest Star); 0203 (Edgar Rodriguez); 0204
(Edgar Rodriguez)

Kayli Tran . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0303 (Hue)

Tierre Turner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0304 (Homeless Guy)

V
Jose Vasquez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0313 (Shooter #1)
Brandon Van Vliet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Militia)
Torrey Vogel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0309 (Tripp)

W
Dee Wallace. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0307 (Katherine Mayfield)
James Harvey Ward. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (John Quince)
Eric Watson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0305 (Bookworm)
Sydney Wease . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0302 (Suzy Poole); 0304 (Suzy Poole)
Justin Welborn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0102 (Prison Guard Raines)
Monier West . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Captain Rahim)
Kade Wise . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0308 (Stu Oliver)
Tom Wright . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0303 (Jason Colby)
Chris Wu .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0301 (Fisher County Officer)

Y
Kurt Yaeger . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (S.C. Jones)
PeiPei Alena Yuan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0308 (Vietnamese Woman)

Z
José Zúñiga . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Author in Parking Lot)
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